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Continuity '?

Since 1890, HK Electric has been
providing customers with a safe and
reliable electricity supply. Whether it is
power for entertainment or lifesaving
medical technology, we are proud to
contribute to Hong Kong's progress
and development.

Today, we are expanding our contribution.
From promoting environmental awareness
among young people to developing
NN et S TE S e o

wnfelong learming for. the elderly, e, are s

committed to Hong Kong's success.

Under the new Scheme of Control,

we will continue to support Hong Kong’s
prosperity, benefiting our customers,
shareholders, employees and the
community at large.




Horgkong Electric Holdings Limited Annuat Repert 2007 g

‘Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited (HEH) is the holding company of The Hongkong
Electric Company, Limited (HEC), Hongkong Electric International Limited (HE!} and
Associated Technical Services Limited (ATS).

HEC is the main operating company of HEH. Founded in 1889, HEC is responsible

for the generation, transmission and distribution of power to Hong Kong Island and
Lamma Island.

HE! was established in 1997 as the international investment arm of HEH. HEI has

“interests in several power-related businesses in Australia, Thailand, Canada and
the United Kingdom. )

ATS is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HEH. It was established in 1975 as an
~.-.engineering gonsultagn,cyn irm.serving the electricity supply industry.

@ HEH'i$ listed on'The Stoek Exthandé-of Hong Kong and i§'one ot the4 3 constitdent *
shares of the Hang Seng Index in Hong Kong.
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Financial Highlights

HKS million 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Turnover _ 12,524 ‘ 12,181 11,622 11,407 11,250
Profit attributable to shareholders 7,448 6,842 8,562 6,256 6,000
Dividends 4,290 3,948 4,952 3.778 3,650
Fixed assets 46,058 46,496 46,258 45,276 45,024
Shareholders’ funds - 48,104 - 44,085 41,685 37,572 35,061
HK$

Earnings per share 3.49 3.217 4.01 2.93 2.81

Dividends per share

Ordinary 2.01 1.85 1.59 1.77 1.71
Special - - 0.73 - -
Profit Attributable to Shareholders k3 = o2 Fixed Assets s o
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Chairman’s Statement

Canning Fok Kin-ning
Chairman

The year 2007 saw the Group progress its businesses both in Hong Kong and
internationally culminating in early January 2008 with the signing of a new Scheme of

Control Agreement (SCA) for our Hong Kong electricity business.

The new SCA signed by The Heongkong Electric Co., Ltd. (HEC) and the Hong Keng
Govermnment is for ten years commencing 1st January 2009 with a Government option
to extend the SCA for a further term of & years. The agreement provides for a 9.99%
permitted rate of return on average net fixed assets other than for renewable energy fixed
assets for which the permitted returmn is 119%. The new SCA also contains provisions
which encourage emission reduction, energy efficiency, operational performance,
service guality and the use of renewable energy. | believe that in the current regulatery
environment, the new SCA effectively balances the interests of our customers in reliable
and secure electricity supply at reasonable prices while providing cur shareholders with

the benefit of the certainty and stability of a long term regulatory framework.

Qutside of Hong Kong, the Group’s international operations performed well with
results for 2007 ahead of those for 2008, In December 2007, as part of our strategy of
investing outside Hong Kong, we acquired an interest in six power plants in Canada with

a total generating capacity of 1,352 MW,




Chairman’s Statement

Results

The Group’s audited consolidated net profit after

tax for the year ended 315t December 2007 was
HK$7,448 million (2006 : HK$6,842 million},

an increase of 8.9%. Earnings from the Group’s

Hong Kong operations were HK$6,727 million

(2006 : HK$6,173 milion). Higher HEC unit sales of
electricity and the impact of no special rebate in 2007
and higher interest income contributed to the higher
garnings from Hong Kong operations. Earmings from

the Group's international operations were HK$721 million
{2006 : HK$669 milion). The higher international
operations earmings in 2007 were primarily dug to higher
earnings from the Australian electricity businesses.

Final Dividend

The Directors will recommend a final dividend of HK$1.43
per share, payable on 16th May 2008 to those persons
regisiered as shareholders on 15th May 2008. This,
together with the interim dividend of HK$0.58 per share,
will give a total dividend of HK$2.01 per share for the year
(2006 : HK$1.85 per share).

Hong Kong Operations

Lnit sales of electricity grew by 1.1% in 2007

compared with 0.2% in 2006. The number of domestic
and commercial customers increased slightly during

the year while the number of industrial sector customers
continued their declining trend. Maximum Demand in
2007 was 2,552 MW compared with 2,597 MW in 2006,

During 2007, Unit 8, HEC's first gas-fired combined

cycle unit which was commigsioned in October 2006,
generated 17% of the electricity sent out from the Lamma
Power Station helping to reduce emissions levels at

the power station. Gas for Unit 9 is supplied to the power
station through a 92 kilometre submarine pipeline from
the Guangdong Dapeng Liguefied Natural Gas Terminal
in Shenzhen. The Lamma Power Station coal-fired
generating units which generate the majority of electricity
at the power station operated satisfactorily during 2007,

Lamma Winds, the 800 kW wind turbine on Lamma Island
with its associated exhibition centre on renewable energy
continued to attract considerable interest in 2007.

High coal and gas prices continued to put pressure on fuel
costs in 2007 with the higher costs continuing to be felt
into 2008. In order to mitigate in part the impact of higher
coal costs we continued to source and use a variety of
coal during the year.

Our emission reduction programme at the Larmma Power
Station progressed well during 2007. Civil construction
work commenced for the flue gas desulphurisation (FGD)
plant and low nitregen oxide system retrofit works for

the coal-fired Units 4 and 5. The environmental permit
for the coal-fired Unit 2 FGD retrofit work has been
issued and the contract for the supply of the FGD plant
awarded. Conversicn of GTS7 from an cil-fired combined
cycle unit to a gas-fired unit was substantially completed.
By the end of 2010, it is expected that over 95% of

the electricity generated at the Lamma Power Station

wil be generated by gas and by coal-fired units fitted
with FGDs and low nitrogen oxide burners resuling

in lower emission levels as we work toward achieving

the Hong Kong Government's emission targets.

As we enter into the new regulatory framework for

the electricity industry in Hong Kong, we plan to
undertake a review of the mix of cur generating capacity
at the Lamma Power Station which comprises coal-fired
units, some of which will be nearing the end of their useful
lives over the next ten years, gas-fired generating ptant,
oil-fired gas turbine generating plant, and renewable
energy plant with a view to continuing to reduce

the emission levels at the Lamma Power Station.

Part of this review will include the evaluation of the
potential for a 100 MW offshore wind farm. As part of this
evaluation, we have commissioned a marine traffic impact
assessment and an environmental impact assessment
study which are expected to be completed in early 2009.

Supply reliability was maintained at over 99.999%

in 2007 surpassing our pledged service standards.
This world class supply reliability has been consistently
maintained at above 99.998% since 1997.




During the year, a network reliability and operations

review was conducted on the reliability and safety of our
transmission and distribution assets as part of our ongoing
standard improvement efforts.

During 2007, we continued with our participation in
environmental and community activities. The Smart
Power 2006/2007 campaign which focused on reliable
power concluded successiully with a record number of
people taking part, the 2007/2008 campaign focusing
on sustainability and energy conservation was launched
in November 2007. The Hongkeng Electric Clean

Energy Fund continued its efforts in 2007 in promoting
renewable energy. The Hongkong Electric Volunteers
which celebrated its third anniversary in July 2007 now
has a membership of over 750 employees. Volunteer
activities in 2007 focused on care for the efderty and
those in the community in need as well as on imgroving
the environment. The Hongkong Electric Centenary Trust
continued to provide scholarships for secondary students
and funding for self learning centres for senior citizens.

International Operations

In Australia, ETSA Utilities in South Australia and Powercor
and CitiPower in Victoria, our electricity distribution
businesses, performed well in 2007 recording higher
revenue and meeting their operational targets. Reliability
levels contributed to improved customer service during

the year.

In the U.K.,, Northern Gas Networks (NGN) which cperates
a gas distribution network in the north of England
recorded results ahead of those for 2006. In a recent
independent benchmarking performed by the UK.'s

gas and electricity regulator, NGN was benchmarked

as the most efiicient network in the U.K.’s gas industry
setting the efficiency frontier for the industry. NGN
recently concluded a regulatory price reset review for

the regulatory period 2008-2013. The outcome was
considered acceptable and should permit NGN to record
a satisfactory return over the new regulatory period.

In Thailand, construction of the 1,400 MW gas-fired
Ratchaburi Power Station is nearing completion with

the first 700 MW unit scheduled to commence commercial
operation in March 2008 followed by the second unit
in June 2008,

In Canada, the acquisition of a 50% interest in

Stanley Power Inc. was completed at the end of 2007.
Stanley Power holds a 49.98% interest in TransAlta
Cogeneration L.P. TransAlta Cogeneration has interests
in six power plants located in three Canadian provinces
Alberta, Saskatchewan and Ontario with a total
attributable generating capacity of 810 MW. Five

of the power plants are gas-fired and one coal-fired.

Outlook

The current and past schemes of control have ensured
that the necessary investment in Hong Kong's electricity
infrastructure has been made over the years as

Hong Kong transitioned from a developing economy
with an industrial base to a developed economy with

a service base and an international financial centre.
With the signing of the new SCA, much of the recent
uncertainty surrounding the electricity industry in

Hong Keng has been removed and we can now focus
on planning for the future so as to continue contributing
to the economic development of Hong Kong.

Internationally, we will continue to look for investment
opportunities so as to increase the proportion of Group
earnings derived from activities outside Hong Kong.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to record our thanks
and appreciation to Mr. Ewan Yee who resigned as

a director at the beginning of 2008 for his contributions
over 40 years of service to the Company.

| would also like to express my appreciation to

the directors for their valuable counsel during the year
and to the management and staff for their loyalty and hard
work in 2007.

Canning Fok Kin-ning
Chairman
Hong Kong, 6th March 2008




Year at a Glance

01 January

Agreed with Government on
Emissions Trading Pilot Scheme
for thermal power plants in
Pearl River Delta.

02 February

Piling and civil works underway
to retrofit Units 4 & 5 with
desulphurisation plants.

03 March

Seven more agencies joined
the U3A network to promote
life-long learning.

04 April

Clean Energy Fund invited
applications for renewable energy
projects on campus.

Customer Reiationship Excelience Awards 2008
i Pt d rrrmeans on 4 Tudy 1B

05 May
Promoted electric cooking at
the biennial HOFEX exhibition.

06 June

Special task force ensured peak
reliabitity during celebrations of
the 10th HKSAR anniversary.

07 July

Won Customer Relationship
Excellence Award on the best use
of technalogy.

08 August

Over 25,000 people participated in
various activities under the Smart
Power Campaign.

09 September

Opened new cooking classroom
at Home Management Centre
te promote electric cooking and
modern living.

10 October

Entered into agreement with
Cheung Kong Infrastructure on
the TransAlta Power acquisition.

11 November

Innovative green initiatives
such as the wide use of fire
hazard-free transformers won
eco-business awards.

12 December

Discussions with the Government
over the new Scheme of Control
Agreement entered the final stage.



Group Managing Director's Report

Tso Kai-sum
Group Managing Director

For HK Electric, 2007 was a year of both change and continuity. Change came

in the form of higher prices for natural gas and coal. We saw a growing focus

on environmental issues among customers, regulators, shareholders and the community
at large. And, as the year came to a close, we prepared to sign a new Scheme of
Control Agreement, which will shape our operations in Hong Kong until at least 2018,
Each of these changes will have a profound impact on cur business. But they will not
change our commitment 1o delivering electricity at reascnable prices with the minimum
possible impact to the environment and to providing world class reliability, safety and

customer service.

Since we lit Hong Kong's first streetlight in 1890, we have helped to bring
convenience, modernity and prosperity to the people and businesses of Hong Kong.
Today and tomorrow, customers can rely on HK Electric to build and operate

the infrastructure needed to maintain a stable, reliable power supply. And they

can count on us to be a long-term partner in our city's success.
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Group Managing Director’'s Report

HONG KONG OPERATIONS
Generation

Located on a dedicated 72-hectare site, HK Electric’s
Lamma Power Station and its extension have a total
installed capacity of 3,755 MW. The station comprises
eight coal-fired units, five oil-fired open cycle gas
turbine units, one oil-fired combined cycle unit and one
gas-fired combined cycle unit. We also operate Lamma
Winds, Hong Kong's first wind turbine, con a separate
site at Tai Ling on Lamma Island.

Qverall efficiency at the Lamma Power Station greatly
improved in 2007, largely due to the higher operating
efficiency of Unit 9.

Unit 9

As part of an ongoing commitment to reduce emissions,
in October 2006 HK Electric: commissioned Unit 9,

the Company's first gas-fired combined cycle unit.

In 2007, Unit 9 completed its first full year of operation,
during which it generated 17% of the Lamma Power
Station’s output. Unit 9 helped us reduce the station's
emissions of sulphur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, respirable
suspended particulates and carbon dioxide by 16%,
17%, 36% and 7.8%, respectively, from 2006 levels.

Unit 9, which is fueled by natural gas supplied through
a 92-km submaring pipeline from the Shenzhen
Liquefied Natural Gas Terminal, was taken off-line for its
first inspection in June 2007, No major problems were
found and Unit 9 returned to service shortly afterwards.

Coal

While natural gas plays an increasingly important role in
our operations, the bulk of our output is generated from
coal, In 2007, we consumed 3.6 million tonnes of coal,
down from 4.1 million tonnes in 2006. During 2007,

we saw a dramatic increase in the price of coal with
the higher prices continuing in 2008.

Unit 9, HK Electric’s first gas-fired combined cycle unit, helps
the Company increase efficiency and reduce emissions.

In 2006, we awarded contracts for the installation of
flue gas desulphurisation (FGD) plants for Units 4

and 5. During 2007, the gas duct of Unit 5 was
modified to prepare for the retrofit of FGD, which will be
completed by 2009. Similar modification of the gas duct
of Unit 4 will be carried out in 2008. By 2010, more than
95% of the electricity from the Lamma Power Station
will be generated by gas-fired units or coal-fired units
equipped with FGDs and low nitrogen oxide burners.

Lamma Winds

Lamma Winds completed its first full year of operation
in 2007. The wind turbine produced 864,833 kWh
during the year. Lamma Winds is providing a great deal
of data and valuable experience for our engineers to
explore the feasibility of building a large wind farm in
Hong Kong.

Plant Ownership Scheme

During the year, seven new areas of the Lamma Power
Station were added to the plant ownership scheme,

a programme that empowers staff by making them
responsible for the plant’s performance. Now covering
46 areas, the plant ownership scheme helps us improve
equipment reliability, reduce operating and maintenance
costs, and train engineering staff.
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Group Managing Director's Report

Transmission and Distribution

HK Electric achieved a record reliability rating of over
99.999% in 2007. It was our best performance since
we began publishing service targets in 1993 and

the 11th censecutive year cur reliability rating
exceeded 99.999%.

System maximum demand was 2,552 MW, down 1.7%
from 2,597 MW in 2006. The number of customers
increased to 560,909, from 559,167 a year earlier.

Unit sales of electricity were 10,891 million Kwh,

a 1.1% increase from the 10,773 million kWh

recorded in 20C6. In 2007, 74.4% of cur sales were to
commercial customers, 22.0% to residential customers
and 3.8% to industrial customers.

The modest sales growth was due to the cocler
and dryer weather during the year and to the effect
of various energy saving initiatives which together
substantially offset the impact of the sironger
Hong Kong economy.

Our environmental management system for
transmission and distribution activities once again
successfully passed internal and external audits
verifying its full compliance with all related legislative
requirements as well as those of ISQ 14001:2004
international standard.

Productivity 1988 - 2007 imv.ions of kwh)

98 9 00 01 0z 03 04 as 08 o7

Units sold per employee

Investment in our Supply Network

During the year, we continued to renew and enhance
our supply network. Following the commissioning of
one 275KV subrmarine cable between Lamma Island
and Cyberport on Hong Kong Island, we are working
on a second 275kV submarine cable which will

enter service in 2008. Work continued on the 275kV
substation on Marsh Road, which will be commissioned
in August 2008,

Two 132kV circuits between the Wong Chuk Hang
switching station and the Chung Hom Kok zone
substation were commissioned in 2007, while a 132kV
circuit was overlaid between the Ming Yuen and Taikoo
Zone substations.

During the year, 31 new distribution substations were
commissioned. In addition, 171 km of distribution cable
was laid.

To ensure the availability of our supply system, in 2007
we conducted a network reliability and operation review.
The review identified 155 reliability-related and 34
environmental health and safety items for enhancement.

These items are now being addressed.

The state-oi-the-art supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA)
system helps HK Electric maintain exceptional reliability.
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Group Managing Director's Report

Customer Service

HK Electric's companywide focus on customer service
continues to produce results. All our pledged customer
service standards were achieved or surpassed in 2007
and, for the seventh consecutive year, we received

a record number of customer commendations.

Biliing

During the year, we expanded a programme that lets
customers pay electricity bills at convenience stores.
Customers can now settle their bill at any 7-Eleven or
Circle-K convenience stores in Hong Kong, with a limit
of HK$5,000 per transaction.

Technology plays a central rele in our drive to enhance
customer service. In March 2007, for example, we
intfreduced a short message service (SMS) billing

lntroduced in 2007, the SMS billing service brings new convenience to
our customers.

Written Commendation Statistics 1998 - 2c07

%0 - .

service that allows customers to receive their electricity
bill on their mobile phone. This saves paper and
increases efficiency by reducing the need to print and
mail the paper bills.

New Technology

In 2007, we began using SMS messages to advise
customers and contractors of the results of our
inspections and to confirm their installation had been
connected to our network. We also launched e-REW
Express, an email-based subscription service that
lets contractars and electrical workers stay abreast of
electricity-related developments. These efforts were
recognised with the "Best Use of Technology of

the Year” award from the Asia Pacific Customer
Service Consortium.,

At our Customer Centre in North Point, we expanded
the call centre and installed new ticketing and public
address systems.

Home Management Centre

In 2007, we completed a new cookery classroom ai
the Home Management Centre. An opening ceremony,
complete with a cooking competition and a selection of
celebrity chefs, was held on 9 September. During

the year, over 7,500 people participated in 222 cookery
classes and 266 special interest classes at the Home
Management Centre.

1200 - ————— = e e —
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Group Managing Director's Report

Health and Safety

Through ongoing educational programmes and
awareness campaigns, HK Electric strives to maintain
an accident-free workplace. We use pre-job risk
assessments, process hazard analyses and job safety
evaluations to promote a safety culture throughout
the Company.

In 2007, the longest pericd without a lost-time injury
was 247 days compared with 217 days in 2006
and 98 days in 2005. As at 31 December 2007,
we recorded 83 consecutive accident-free days.

Safety Training

In 2007, our Generation and Transmission and
Distribution divisions held 59 government-accredited
and 115 non-accredited safety courses, 21 of which
were new programmes developed by our Safety &
Training Section. Altogether, there were 15,764 hours
of safety training.

We also organised an Environmental Health & Safety
Month {or our employees and contractors and
began offering talks and wellness programmes to
prevent injuries and encourage health awareness.
Our daily safety briefings now begin with a 3-minute
exercise session.

Before commissioning Unit 9 in 20086, we established

a natural gas safety team, which comprises members of

the Projects and Generation divisions as well as a gas
advisor. The team met on a monthly basis during 2007,
and will continue to refine and strengthen HK Electric's
gas safety skills in the year ahead.

OHSAS18001

Since 2001, our occupational health and safety (OHS)
management system has met OHSAS18001:1999,
an international standard that helps organisations

manage their OHS risks and improve their performance.

In July 2007, this standard was upgraded to

OHSAS18001:2007, a new and more stringent
specification. Our safety management system
surpasses the requirements of new standard, and we
are one of the few organisations in Hong Kong to have
achieved OHSAS18001:2007 certification.

Improving our Talent Base

An extensive range of training and development
programmes helps HK Electric attract and retain
highly skilled employees. They also enable us to
increase safety, efficiency and customer satisfaction.

In 2007, our staff underwent 66,286 hours of training.
Belivered through workshops, seminars and on-the-job
learning, the training encompassed safety, technical
skills, environmental awareness and computing skills.

Awards

In 2007, cur OHS efforts were recognised with

a gold award for Safety Technological Achievement
at the Sixth Hong Kong Occupational Health and
Safety Awards, where we also won a bronze award
in the Safety Management System for our natural
gas safety management system. In addition, teams
from HK Electric won the top three awards in quiz
competitions amongst local enterprises organised by
the Occupational Safety & Health Council and

the Labour Department.

Our daily safety briefings now begin with a 3-minute exercise session.
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Group Managing Director's Report

Community Activities

Community service is an important part of

HK Electric’s corporate culture. In addition to
thousands of volunteer hours, in 2007 we donated to
88 community, environmental and professional projects.

Smart Power Campaign 2007

Following the success of the 2006 programme, which
attracted over 25,000 participants, we launched

the Smart Power Campaign 2007/8 in November
which encourages people to conserve resources

and adopt a sustainable lifestyle. A variety of activities
were organised, including a fashion design competition,
a cooking contest, road shows and open days with

the twin themes of sustainability and energy
conservation,

Helping People

With over 750 members, the HK Electric Volunteers
Team includes mare than 40% of our emptoyees.

In 2007, our volunteers participated in 54 events and
donated over 3,700 hours of community service, with
a focus on improving the environment and caring for
the elderly and the disadvantaged. In addition, our
volunteers actively support the work of other charitable
and community organisations.

“Cruise and Learn” is a new programme that promotes a sense of
belonging among underprivileged children.

Through the “Caring Always" campaign, festive parties
were held for single-parent families to celebrate

the Lantern Festival while rice dumplings were made
and distributed to elderly people living alone in Eastern
District during the Dragon Boat Festival. The elderly
also benefit from free inspections of their home
electrical installations.

In 2007, we introduced “Cruise and Learn”, a new
initiative designed to promote a sense of belonging
among underprivileged teenagers. More than

600 teenagers and their parents have taken part

in the programme, which features guided tours of

Victoria Harbour and visits to the Lamma Power Station.

Lifelong Learning

Funded by the Hongkong Electric Centenary Trust
and organised by HK Electric and the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service (HKCES}, the University of
Third Age (U3A) establishes self-learning centres

for senior citizens. Since it was established in March
2006, over 4,800 seniors have participated in 322
U3A courses.

In September 2007, we cenvened a conference where
experts from Hong Kong, the Mainland and the United
Kingdom shared their views on lifelong learning among
the elderly. We also organised various workshops to

share knowledge and experience with USA participants.

For the fifth consecutive year, in 2007 HK Electric was
awarded a "Caring Company” logo from the HKCSS.
In October 2007, we received the President’s Award
fraom the Community Chest for our support of their
fund-raising activities.
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Group Managing Director's Report

Environment
HK Etectric plays a leading role in promoting
conservation, green technologies and environmental

awareness in the community.

Education

The HK Electric Clean Energy Fund encourages
students in local schools and universities to learn about
and develop technologies that use renewable energy.
The Fund’s first projects were completed in July 2007
and awards for 12 new projects were announced in
November 2007.

In partnership with Green Power, we produced

Hong Kong's first renewable energy teaching kit

for pre-scheoolers. To enhance their knowledge of
renewable energy, in May 2007 we arranged visits for
100 kindergarten teachers to Lamma Winds. Over 100
visits to the Lamma Power Station and Lamma Winds
were organised during 2007.

Community Programmes

For the 12th consecutive year, in 2007 we were

the main spoensor of “Clean Up the World in

Hong Kong”. The morning after the Mid-Autumn
Festival, 100 HK Electric volunteers cleaned up

the barbecue site at Aberdeen Country Park. Our
support for this programme is part of a broader effort to
encourage environmental awareness during traditicnal
festivals. In 2007, this included a campaign to eliminate
hill fires during Ching Ming and Chung Yeung festivals
and efforts to reduce waste during Lunar New Year.

Woarking with the Conservancy Association, we
continued with “Green Lamma Green” to promote
eco-tourism and sustainable development on Lamma
Island. In the project’s third and final year, 50 volunteers
performed check-ups on the 2,000-plus seedlings

that we planted along the Family Trait. Environmental
training was held for HK Electric volunteers and Lamma

residents to prepare them as eco-tour leaders.

Clean Energy Fund supports renewable enargy projects in schools.

Environmental Management

In 2007, all of our envircnmental management
objectives and targets were accomplished.

During the year, we accumulated and reused about
127,000 m? of rainwater and wastewater, reduced
consumption of paper and non-rechargeable batteries
by 8% and 18% respectively.

in 2007, a total of 2,388 man-hours were devoted
to varicus training courses designed for refreshing
awareness of legislative requirements and enhancing
environmental awareness for our Transmission and
Bistribution employees.

Awards

In 2007, we weare awarded a Wastewi%e Gold Logo by
the Environmental Protection Department in April as
well as the Grand Awara and two Certificates of Merit
in the Green Innovative Practice Award of Hong Kong
Eco-Business Awards organised by the Environmental
Protection Department. Other awards included

the Prime Award for Eco-business 2007 and

the 2007 Environmental Paper Award organised by
the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. In addition,
we were also awarded with a third consecutive
“Excellent Class" Indoor Air Quality Certification for
the Hongkong Electric Centre.
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INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

HK Electric invests abroad to diversify the Company's
revenue sources and leverage its experiise in energy
businesses. The Company’s international investment
arm, Hongkong Electric International Limited (HEI),
focuses on opportunities that combine stable earnings
and acceptable levels of risk.

Australia

CHEDHA Hoeldings Pty Limited comprises

CitiPower | Pty Ltd., Powercor Australia Limited and
CHED Services Pty Ltd.. Powercor is Victoria's largest
electricity distributor while CitiPower operates a
distribution network across the Melbourne metropolitan
area. The Company has a 27.93% interest in both
businesses. They delivered strong results and outstanding
network reliability in 2007, CHEDHA Holdings' sclid
financial performance reflected higher than anticipated
distribution revenue and unregulated revenue, and lower
than forecast regulated business costs.

ETSA Utilities in which the Company has 27.93%
interest is the sole electricity distributor in the state of
South Australia. ETSA Utilities continued to meet key
financial and non-financial targets in 2007. Extending
its outstanding safety record, ETSA Utilities had no
lost-time injuries during the year.

Canada

In 2007, HEI acquired a 50% stake in Stanley Power
Inc., a company that has a 49.99% interest in TransAlta
Cogeneration, L.P. (TransAlta Cogen). TransAlta

Cogen has stakes in five gas-fired cogeneration facilities
in Alberta, Ontario and Saskatchewan and in a coal-fired,
mine-meuth generation facility in Alberta. The acquisition
adds 202 MW to HEI's portfolio.

Thailand

Construction of Ratchaburi Power Company Limited's
two 700 MW gas-fired, combined cycte power plants, in
which the Company has a 25% interest, is on schedule.

This coal-fired power plant in Sheerness, Alberta, is one of six cower
plants included in the Stanley Power Inc. transaction.

The plants are expected to enter commercial service in
March and June 2008 respectively and their output will
be sold to the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand
under a long-term power purchase agreement.

United Kingdom (U.K.}

Northern Gas Networks Limited (NGN) in which the
Company has a 19.9% interest operates a gas distribution
network in the North of England. NGN is one of the four
regional gas distribution networks in the U.K. In 2007,
NGN was tenchmarked as the U.K.'s most efficient gas
network by the Office of Gas and Electricity Markets,
NGN's goal is to be benchmarked in the top two
cormparable utilities in the U.K. for safety, custormer
service and efficiency. NGN recently concluded a
regulatory price reset review far the regulatery pericd
2008-2013. The outcorme was considered acceptable
and should permit NGN to record a satisfactory return
over the new regulatory period.

Renewable Energy
HEI continues to investigate opportunities to develop its
renewable energy business.

Tso Kai-sum
Group Managing Director
Hong Kong, 6th March 2008




The Board of Directors

Canning Fok Kin-ning

Chairman

Aged 56. Appointed 1o the Board in 1985 and became Chairman

in 2005. He is the Group Managing Director of Hutchison Whampoa
Limited (*Hutchison”), the Deputy Chairman of Cheung Kong
Infrastructure Holdings Limited {“CKI") and a Non-executive Director of
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (*Cheung Xong"}, all being substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of

the Securities and Futures Qrdinanca ("SFQ"). In addition,

he is the Chairman of Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited,

Hutchisen Telecommunications International Limited,

Hutchison Telecommunications (Australia} Limited and Partner
Communications Company Ltd., and the Co-Chairman of

Husky Energy Inc.. He also acts as a Director of Hutchison
International Limited (“HIL"), a substantial shareholder of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree and a Diplorna in Financial Managemeni, and is a member of
the Australian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Tso Kai-sum

Group Managing Director

Aged 76, Appointed to the Board in 1985 and became Group Managing
Director in 1997. Mr. Tso initially worked with the Hongkong Electric
Group from 1966 to 1981, holding the positions of Chief Project Engineer
of The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited and Executive Director

of Associated Technical Services Limited. In 1981, ha joined
Intermational City Holdings Limited as an Executive Director, In 1987,

he joined the Hutchison Whampoa Group as the Group Managing
Director of Hutchison Whampoa Properties. In 1997, he re-jcined

the Hongkong Electric Group as Group Managing Dirsctor. He is also
an Executive Diractor of CKI, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Tso holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering and is

a Chartered Engineer. He is a member of the Instituie of Civil Engineers
and the Institute of Struciural Engineers in the United Kingdom,.

Susan Chow Woo Mo-fong

Aged 54, Appointed to the Board in 1896 and re-designated from

a Non-executive Director to an Executive Director in May 2006.

She is the Deputy Group Managing Director of Hutchison and

an Executive Diractor of CK!l and Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited.

She is also a Non-exacutive Diractor of Hutchison Telecommunications
International Limited and TOM Group Limited and a Director of
Hutchison Telecommunications (Australia) Limited and Pariner
Communications Gompany Lid.. She acts as a Director of the substantial
sharehelders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO,
namely Hutchison, CKI, Interran Development Inc.. Monitor Equities
S.A., Univest Equity S.A., Venniton Development Inc., HIL and

Hutchison Infrastructure Holdings Limited. She is a solicitor of

the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and

the Supreme Court of England and Wales. She holds a Bachelor's degree
in Business Administration.

Andrew John Hunter

Aged 49, Appointed o the Board in 1999, prior te which he was Finance
Director of the Hutchison Property Group, He was Group Finance
Director from 1998 to January 2006. Mr. Hurter is Chief Financial
Officer of Chaung Kong and an Executive Director and Chief Operating
Officer of CKI, both substantial shargholders of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. He is also a Non-executive Director
of Spark Infrastructure Group. Mr. Hunter holds Master of Arts and
Master of Business Administration degrees and is a member of tha
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountanis.

Kam Hing-lam

Aged 61. Appointed to the Board in 1993. He is President and Chief
Executive Officer of CK Life Sciences Int'l., (Holdings) Inc. ("CK Life"),
the Deputy Managing Director ¢f Cheung Kong, an Executive Director
of Hutchison, the Group Managing Director of CKI and a Non-executive
Director of Spark Infrastructure Group. Mr. Kam acts as a Director of
the substantial shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the 8FO, narnely Cheung Kong, Hutchison, CKI, Hyford Limited,
Interman Development Inc., Monitor Equities S.A., Univest Equity S.A.,
Venniton Davelopment Inc. and HIL. Mr. Kam is a member of the Beijing
Committee of the Chinese People’s Palitical Consultative Conterence of
the People's Republic of China. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Engineering and a Master's degree in Business Administration.

Mr. Kam is an uncle of Mr. Victor Li Tzar-kuoi, an Executive Director

of the Company.

Francis Lee Lan-yee

Diractor & General Manager (Engineering)

Aged 67. Appointed 10 the Board in 1997. Having served the Group for
over 30 years in various capacities, Mr. Lee is presently responsible for
all the engineering activities of the Group, including the development and
operation of power generation, transmission and distribution systems.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree anc a Master of Science degree
in Engineering. He is a Chanterad Engineer and a Fellow of the Institute
of Mechanical Engineers in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.

Victor Li Tzar-kuoi

Aged 43, Appointed t¢ the Board in 1984, He is the Chairman of

CKI and CK Life, the Managing Director and Deputy Chairman of
Cheung Kong, Deputy Chairman of Hutchison, the Co-Chairman of
Husky Energy Inc. and a Director of The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. Mr. Li serves as a member of the Standing
Committee of the 11th National Commitiee of the Chinese Pecple’s
Political Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic of China.
He ig also a member of the Commission cn Strategic Development

of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Li acts as

a Director of the substantial shareholders of tha Company within

the meaning of Part XV of tha SFQ, namely Cheung Kong, Hutchison,
CKI, Hyford Limited and HIL. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Civil Engineering and a Master of Science degree in Structural
Engineering. Mr. Li is a nephew of Mr, Kam Hing-lam, an Executive
Direcior of the Compary.



Neil Douglas McGee

Group Finance Director

Aged 56. Appointed to the Board in 2005 and became Group
Finance Director on 1st February 2006. Mr. McGee worked with

the Hongkong Electric Group and 1he Hutchison Whampoa Group
from 1878 holding legal, corporate finance and corporate secretarial
pasiticns. He then joined Husky Cil Ltd. in 1998 as Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer and from 2000 o Ociober 2005, he served as
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Husky Energy Inc..

Mr. McGee holds a Bachelor of Arts degree and a Bachelor of

Laws degree.

Frank John Sixt

Aged 56. Appoeinted to the Board in 1398. He is Group Finance Director
of Hutchison, the Chairman of TOM Group Limited and &n Executive
Director of CKI. Ha is also a Non-executive Director of Cheung Kong and
Hutchison Telecommunications International Limited and a Director of
Hutchison Telecommunications (Australia) Limited, Husky Energy Inc.
and Partner Communications Company Ltd.. Mr, Sixt acts as a Director
of the substantiai shareholders of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO, namely Cheung Kong, Hutchison, CKI, Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trustcorp Limited, Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited,

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited, HIL and Hutchison
Infrastructure Heldings Limited. Mr. Sixt holds a Master's degree in Arts
and a Bachelor's degree in Civil Law, and is a member of the Bar and
of the Law Society of the Provinces of Quebec and Ontario, Canada.

Wan Chi-tin

Director of Engineering (Planning & Development)

Aged 57. Appointed 1o the Board in 2005, Mr. Wan has worked for
the Hongkong Electric Group since 1978, helding various positions
within different Group companies. Between September 2000 and
June 2003 he served as Chief Executive Officer of Powercor Australia
Limited and CltiPower Pty., associate companies of the Group in
Australia. He returned 1o Hong Kong in July 2003 taking up the role
of General Manager (Corporate Development). Mr. Wan holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering and is also a
Chartered Engineer. He is an Honorary Fellow of the Energy Institute,
a Fellow of the Institution of Engineering and Technology and a Fellow
of the Hong Kong Institution of Engingers.

Yuen Sui-see

Director of Qperations

Aged 57. Appointed to the Board on 1st March 2008. Mr. Yuen
joined the Hongkeng Electric Group in May 1986 and prior 1o

his appointment as an Executive Director, was General Manager
{Transmission & Distribution), Mr. Yuen has over 30 years of experience
in the transmission and distribution of electricity. He holds a Bachelor
of Science degree and a Masler of Science degree in Engineering.
He is a Chartered Engineer in the United Kingdom, a Registered
Professional Engineer in Hong Kong and a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers.

Chan Loi-shun

{Alternate Director}

Aged 45. Appointed Aliernate Director 1o Mr. Kam Hing-lam,

an Executive Dirgctor, on 11ih February 2008. He is Chief Financial
Officer of CKI, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and a Director
of Envestra Lirmited. Mr. Chan is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Charlered
Certified Accountants.

Ronald Joseph Arculli*

Aged 69. Appointed to the Board in 1997, He is a practising solicitor
and a non-official member of the Executive Council. Mr. Arculli atso
serves on the committees of various government and public service
bodies. Mr, Arculli is Chairman of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and a Director of a number of listed companies in Hong Kong.
He has served on tha Legislative Council from 1988 to 2000.

George Colin Magnus*

Aged 72. Appointed 10 the Board in 1985. He was Chairman from
1993 10 October 2005. Mr. Magnus is a Non-execulive Director of
Cheung Kong, Hutchison and CKI, all being substantial sharehclders
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ. He holds
a Master's degree in Economics,

Holger Kluge*

Aged 66. Appointed to the Board in 1999. He was formerly President
of Personal and Commercial Bank, CIBC, one of the largest financial
services institutions in Morth America. He is an ndependent
Non-executive Director of Hutchisen, a substantial shareholder

of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ., He is

also a Director of Husky Energy Inc. and Shoppers Drug Mart.

He holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration.

Ralph Raymond Shea”
Aged 74, Appointed to the Board in 1985. He is a salicitor of
the Suprema Court of England and of Hong Kong.

Wong Chung-hin*

Aged 74. Appointed to the Board in 1985. He is an Independent
Non-executive Director of Hutchison, a substantial sharaholder of

the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Ha is also an
Incependent Non-executive Director of The Bank ¢f East Asia, Limited.

Executive Director  "Non-executive Director  “Independent Non-executive Director




Senior Management

Tso Kai-sum

Group Managing Director

Aged 76. Appointed 1o the Board in 1885 and became Group Managing
Director in 1997, Mr. Tso initially worked with the Hongkong Electric

Group from 1966 to 1981, holding the positions of Chief Project Engineer
of The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited and Executive Director of
Associated Technical Services Limited. In 1981, he joined International City
Holdings Limited as an Executive Director. In 1887, he joined the Hutchison
Whampaoa Group as the Group Managing Director of Hutchison Whampoa
Properties. In 1997, he re-joined the Hongkong Electric Group as Group
Managing Director. Ha is also an Executive Director of CKl, a substanial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Tso holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Civil Engineering and is a Chartered Engineer. He is a member of

the Institute of Civil Engineers and the Institute of Structural Engineers in
the United Kingdom.

Trini Chan Lai-yee

Aged 53, General Manager {(Human Resources), has been with the Group
since December 2005. Ms. Chan has over 25 vears of experience in
human resources management and administration. She holds a Bachelor's
degree in Politics and Education.

Francis Cheng Cho-ying

Aged 51, General Manager (Generation), has been with the Group since
August 1978, Prior 10 his promotion to the present position, Mr. Chang
has worked in the Technical Services, Operations and Maintenance
Departments of tha Generaticn Division. He holds a Bachelor's degree in
Chemistry and is a Fellow of the Roya! Society of Chemistry in the United
Kingdom, He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,

Chu Wing-kin

Aged 57, General Manager (Group Cormmercial}l, has been with

the Group since July 1674, Dr. Chuis a Chartered Engineer and a Fellow
of the Hong Kong Institution of Enginears and Institution of Engineering

and Technology in the United Kingdom. He is also a Fellow of the Institution
of Engineers in Australia and holds a Master’s and a Doctoral degree in
Business Administration.

Francis Lee Lan-yee

Director & General Manager (Enginecering)

Aged 67. Appointed to the Board in 1997 Having served the Group for
over 30 years in various capacities, Mr. Lee is presently responsible for
all the engineering activities of the Group, including the develepment and
operation of power generation, transmission and distribution systems.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree and a Master of Science degree
in Engineering. He is a Chartered Engineer and a Fellow of the Institute of
Mechanicat Engineers in Hong Koeng and the United Kingdom.

Neil Douglas McGee

Group finance Director

Aged 56. Appointea to the Board in 2005 and became Group Finance
Director on 1st February 2006. Mr, McGee worked with the Hongkong
Electric Group and the Huichison Whampea Group from 1978 holding
legal, corperate finance and corporate secretarial positions. He then
joined Husky Qil Ltd. in 1998 as Vice Prasident and Chief Financial Officer
and from 2000 to October 2005, he served as Vice President and

Chigf Financial Officar of Husky Energy Inc.. Mr. McGes holds

a Bachelor of Arts degree and a Bachelor of Laws degree.

From left: Lillian Wong Lee-wah, Tso Kai-sum, Tso Che-wah, Francis Cheng Che-ying, Wan Chi-tin, Mimi Yeung Yuk-chun



Charles Tsai Chao-chung

Aged 51, Director and General Manager of Bongkong Electric Internaticnal
Limited, has been with the Group since June 1987. Mr. Tsai has over 12
years of experience in the power investment sector. He holds a Bachelor
of Applied Science Degree in Mechanical Engineering, and is a Registered
Professional Engineer and a Chartered Engineer. He is also a member of
the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and the Institute of Mechanical
Engineers in the United Kingdom.

Tso Che-wah

Aged 58, General Manager {Projects), has been with the Group since

April 1980. Dr. Tso has ovar 30 years of experience in project
management. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Engineering, a Master's
degree in Thermal Power Engineering and a Docioral degres in Business
Administration. He is a Chartered Engineer, and a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers and the Institution of Mechanical Engineers

in the United Kingdom.

Wan Chi-tin

Director of Engineering {Planning & Development)

Aged 57. Appointed 1o the Board in 2005. Mr. Wan has worked for

the Hongkong Eiectric Group since 1978, holding various positions within
different Group companies. Batween September 2000 and June 2003
he served as Chief Executive Cfficer of Pewercor Australia Limited and
CitiPower Pty., associate companies of the Group in Australia,

He retumed to Hong Kong in July 2003 taking up the role of General
Manager (Corporate Development). Mr. Wan holds a Bachelor of Science

degres in Electrical Engineering and is also a Charered Engineer.

He is an Henorary Fellow of the Energy Institute, a Fellow of the Institution
of Engineering and Technology and a Fellow of the Hong Keng Institution
of Engineers,

Litlian Wong Lee-wah

Aged 53, Company Secretary, has been with the Group since dune 1987,
Ms. Wong has over 20 years of experience in company secretarial
practice. She is a Fellow of the Institute of Chanered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Instituta of
Chartered Secretaries.

Mimi Yeung Yuk-chun

Aged 44, General Manager (Public Affairs), has been with the Group since
July 2003, Ms. Yeung has over 20 years of expefience in jounalism and
corporate communications. She helds a Bachelor of Arts degree and

a Master's degree in Public Administration.

Yuen Sui-see

Director of Operations

Aged 57. Appointed to the Board on 1st March 2008. Mr. Yuen joinsed

the Hongkong Electric Group in May 1986 and pror to his appointment as
an Executive Directer, was General Manager (Transmission & Distribution).
Mr. Yuen has over 30 years of experience in the transmission and
distribution of electricity. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree ard

a Master of Sclence degree in Engineering. He is a Chartered Engineer in
the United Kingdom, a Registerad Professional Engineer in Hong Kong and
a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

From left: Charles Tsai Chao-chung, Neil Douglas McGee, Trini Chan Lai-yee, Chu Wing-kin, Francis Lee Lan-yee, Yuen Sui-see




Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high
standards of carporate governance. The Company
recognises that sound and effective corporate
governance practices are fundamental to the smoaoth,
effective and transparent operation of a company
and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights
of shareholders and stakeholders, and enhance
shareholder value.

The Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices ("Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (*Listing Rules”™)

throughout the year ended 31st December 2007 except

as noted heraunder,

Board of Directors

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for

the approval and monitoring of Group-wide strategies
and policies, approval of annual budgets and business
plans, evaluating the performance of the Group, and
oversight of management. Management is responsible
for the day-to-day operations of the Group under

the leadership of the Group Managing Director.

As at 31st December 2007, the Board comprised
sixteen Directors as iollows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Canning Fok Kin-ning
(Chairman)
Mr. Tso Kai-sum
(Group Managing Director)
Mrs. Susan Chow Woc Mo-fong™"
Mr. Andrew John Hunter
Mr. Kam Hing-lam® @&
Mr. Francis Lee Lan-yee
(Director & General Manager (Engineering))
Mr. Victor Li Tzar-kuoi®
Mr. Neil Douglas McGee
{Group Finance Director)
Mr. Frank John Sixt
Mr, Wan Chi-tin
{Director & General Manager
{Corporate Development))®

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ronald Joseph Arculli
Mr. George Colin Magnus
Mr. Ewan Yee Lup-yuen®




Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Holger Kluge

Mr. Ralph Raymond Shea

Mr. Wong Chung-hin

Notes:

(1) Mrs, Susan Chow Woo Mo-fong is also Alternate Diractor to
Mr. Canning Fok Kin-ning and Mr. Frank John Sixt.

{2) Mr. Kam Hing-lam appointed Mr. Chan Loi Shun as his Altemata
with effect from 11th February 2008.

{3) Mr. Kam Hing-lam is an uncle of Mr, Victor Li Tzar-kuoi.

{4) Mr. Wan Chi-tin’'s title has been changed to Director of Enginearing
{Planning & Development} with effect from 15t March 2008.

(8) Mr. Ewan Yee Lup-yuen resigned as a Director on 2nd January 2008.

(8 Mr. Yuen Sui-see was appointed an Executive Director on
1st March 2008,

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in
“The Board of Directors" section on pages 22 to 23 of
the Annual Report,

The Board meets at least four times a year. Additional
board meeting will be held when warranted. Regular
meetings of a year are scheduled during the last quarter
of the preceding year providing Directors with adequate
time to plan their schedules to attend. The Direciors
may attend meetings in person, by telephone or other
electronic means or by their alternate directors in

accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Throughout the year, Directors also participate in

the consideration and approval of matters of the
Company by way of writien resolutions circulated to
Directors together with supporting explanatory
write-up, coupled with briefings from the Group
Managing Director, the Group Finance Director and
the Company Secretary as required. Directors are
required to declare their interests, if any, in the matters
to be considered by them during board meetings and
in the circular resolutions,

Directors at all times have full access to informaticn
on the Group. They have independent access to
senior management for information on the Group and
unrestricted access to the services of the Company
Secratary. Further, a procedure has been established
to enable Directors tc seek independent professional
advice whenever deemed necessary by them ai

the Company’s expense.

Directors receive at least 14 days prior written notice
of a regular meeting and may propose matters for
discussion to be included in the agenda. An agenda
with supperting board papers is sent to Directors no
less than three days prior to a regular meeting.
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The Board held five meetings during the 2007 financial year. The record of attendance of each Director is as follows:

Number of Meetings

Name of Director Attended

Executive Directors

Mr. Canning Fok Kin-ning (Chairman) 5

Mr. Tso Kai-sum (Group Managing Director}

Mrs. Susan Chow Woo Mo-fong

Mr.

Andrew John Hunter

Mr.

Kam Hing-lam

- w (&) ()]

Mr.

Francis Lee Lan-yee

Mr.

Victer Li Tzar-kuoi

Mr.

Neil Douglas McGee

h | B

Mr.

Frank John Sixt

5*

Mr.

Wan Chi-tin

Non-executive Directors

. Ronald Joseph Arculli

. George Coiin Magnus

. Ewan Yee Lup-yuen

Independent Non-executive Directors

. Holger Kluge

|G|l O,

. Ralph Raymond Shea

. Wong Chung-hin

alo, | w

*One meeting was attended by his Alternate Director.

The minuies of board meetings are prepared by

the Company Secretary with details of the decisions
reached, any concerns raised and dissenting views

During the year, the Chairman and the Non-executive

expressed. The draft minutes are sent to all Directors

the Executive Directors.

Directors held two meetings without the presence of

As Dirgctors, including the Non-executive Directors,

within a reasonable time after each meeting for their

are required to retire and be subject to re-election by

comment before being formally signed by the chairman

shareholders every three years, the Non-executive

of the meeting. Copies of the final version of board

Directors have not been appointed for a specific term

minutes are sent to Directors for their information and

as provided for under Code A.4.1 of the Code.

records. The signed minutes are kept in safe custody by

the Company Secretary and are available for inspection

by Directors.

From 15th October 2007, in order to comply fully

with the Code, the Non-executive Directors have

been appointed on annual twelve-month basis.




Directors are required to retire from office by rotation
and are subject to re-election by shareholders at

the annual general meeting once every three years
pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.
Directors retiring by rotation and offering themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting are Mr. Canning Fok Kin-ning, Mr. Tso Kai-sum,
Mr, Ronald Joseph Arculli, Mrs. Susan Chow Woo
Mo-fong, Mr. Andrew John Hunter, Mr. Karm Hing-lam,
Mr. Holger Kluge, Mr. Victor Ui Tzar-kuoi and

Mr. George Colin Magnus. Additional Directors
appointed subsequent to the annual general meeting
are required to retire and offer themselves for
re-election at the next annual general meeting.

Mr Yuen Sui-see, a Director appointed on 1st March
2008, will retire in accordance with this provision

at the forthcoming annual general meeting and

will offer himself for re-election. None of the
abovementioned Directors has a service contract which
i5 not determinable by the Company within one

yaar without payment of compensation {other than
statutory compensation).

The Chairman and the Group Managing Director may
recommend candidates for election to the Board.

The principal consideration is to build an effective

and complementary board with the expertise, skills
and experience relevant to the Group's businesses.
Potential candidates for Independent Non-executive
Director will also be reviewed to determine whether
they are independent according to the requirements of
the Listing Rules, and their ability to devote sufficient
time to Board and committee meetings. Credentials

of candidates are put forward to the Board for
censideration in respeact of any proposed appoiniment
of new Director. During 2007, no additional Director
was appointed by the Board.

Newly appointed Directors receive briefings and

a package of orientation materials on the operations
and businesses of the Group, together with inferrnation
relating to duties and responsibilities of directors

under statutory regulations and the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary updates Directors on the latest
developments and changes to the Listing Rules and
the applicable legal and regulatory requirements
regarding subjects necessary in the discharge of

their duties. As part of the continuous professional
development exercise, Directors are invited to seminars
on corporate governance and directors’ duties
conducted by members of the legal profession.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors (*Model Code") set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules as the Group’s code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors
have confirmed following specific enquiry that they

have complied with the required standards set out

in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
December 2007,

Senior managers who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information regarding
the Company and its securities are also required to
comply with the Model Code.
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Directors’ Responsibility for Preparing
Accounts and publishing required
disclosures

Annual and Interim Reports and Accounts
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to
prepare financial staterments for each half and full
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group. The annual
and interim results of the Company are published in

a timely manner within three months and two months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing financial
statements, the Group ensures statutory requirements
are met and applies appropriate accouniing policies
that are consistently adopted and makes judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the Group
keeps proper accounting records which disclose at
any time the financial pesition of the Group upon which
financial statements of the Group could be prepared

in accordance with statutory requirements and

the Group's accounting policies.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable
and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of

the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and

other irregutarities within the Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Group has adequate resources 1o
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and are not aware of material uncertainties

relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as

a going concern. The Group's financiat statements have
accordingly been prepared on a going concern basis.

Disclosure

The Board is aware of the reguirements under

the applicable Listing Rules and statuiory regulations
with regard to the timely and proper disclosure of price
sensitive information, announcements and financial
disclosures and authorises their publication as and
when required.

Chairman and Group Managing
Director

The positions of the Chairman (Mr. Canning

Fok Kin-ning) and the Group Managing Director
{Mr. Tso Kai-sum) are held by separate individuals.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership
to, and overseeing the functioning and effective running
of, the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Group. The Chairman approves Board
meeting agendas and ensures that Board mestings are
planned and conducted effectively. In addition to Board
meetings, the Chairman holds meetings with Executive
Directors and at least one meeting annually with
Non-executive Directors without the presence of
Executive Directors. The Chairman also acts in an
advisory capacity to the Group Managing Director in

all matters covering the interests and management of
the Group.

The Group Managing Director, working with the
executive management team of each operating unit,

is responsible for managing the businesses of

the Group, attending to the formulation and successful
implementation of Group policies and assuming full
accountability to the Board for all Group operations.
The Group Managing Director attends 1o developing




strategic operating plans and is directly responsible
for maintaining the operational performance of

the Group. Working with the Group Finance Director,
other Executive Directors and the general manager of
each operationat division, he ensures that the funding
requirements of the businesses are met and closely
monitors the operating and financial regults of

the businesses against plans and budgets, taking
remedial action when necessary. He maintains an
ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and all other
Directors to keep them informed of alf major business
development and issues. He is also responsible for
building and maintaining an effective team to support
him in his role.

Independent Non-executive Directors
The Board must satisfy itself that an Independent
Non-executive Director does not have any material

relationship with the Group. The Board is also guided
by the criteria of independence as set out in the Listing
Rules in determining the independence of Directors.

Each of Messrs. Holger Kluge, Ralph Raymond Shea
and Wong Chung-hin, Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, has provided to

the Company a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board continues to consider all the Independent
iNon-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

of Significance

No contract of significance to which the Company

or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which

a Director of the Company had a material interest
subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year
ended 31st December 2007.

£
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The Company's annual general meeting is a main channel of communication petween Directors and shareholders.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities of the Company
At 31st December 2007, the interests of the Directors in the issued share capital of the Company and its associated

corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SF Ordinance™) as recorded in the register

required 10 be kept under section 352 of the SF Ordinance were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares of the Company

Nature of Number of Approximate %
Name of Director Capacity Interests Shares Held Total of Shareholding
Francis Lee Lan-yes Beneficial owner Personal 739 739 = (0%
Ronald Joseph Interest of controlled Corporate 2,011 2,011 = 0%
Arculli corporation
Victor Li Tzar-kuoi Interest of child Family 151,000 }
or spouse )
Beneficiary of trusts Other 829,599,612 ) 829,750,612 = 38.87%
(Notes 1 and 2} )
Notes:

(1

These shares are held by subsidiaries of Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited {("CKI").

The discrationary beneficiaries of gach of The U Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust ("DT17) and another discretionary trust ("DT2") are, inter alia, Mr. Victor
Li Tzar-kuoi, his wife and children, and Mr. Richard Li Tzar-kai. Each of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1", which is the trustes of OT1)
and Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited {(“TDT2", which is the trustes of DT2) holds units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust ("UT+7) but is not entitled to any
interest or share in any particufar properly camprising the trust assels of the said unit trust. Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited ("TUT1") as trustee
of UT1 and its related companies in which TUT1 as trustes of UT1 is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
their general meetings {“TUT1 related companies”) hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of Cheung Kong (Haldings) Limited {*CKH"). Certain
subsidiaries of CKH in turn together hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of Hutchison Whampoa Limited (*HWL"). A subsidiary of HWL in
tum holds more than cne-third of tha issued share capital of CKI.

The entire issued share capital of TUT1 and of the trustees of DT1 and DT2 are owned by Li Ka-Shing Unity Hotdings Limited (*Unity Holdco"). Each of

Mr. Li Ka-shing, Mr. Victor Li Tzar-kuoi and Mr. Richard Li Tzar-kai is interested in one-third of the entire issued share capital of Unity Holdco. TUT1 is only
interested in the shares of CKH by reason only of its obligation and power to hold interests in those shares in its ordinary course of business as trustee and,
when performing its funclions as trustee, exercises its power to hold interests in the shares of CKH independently without any reference to Unity Holdco or
any of Mr, Li Ka-shing, Mr. Victor Li Tzar-kuoi and Mr. Richard Li Tzar-kai as a holder of the shares of Unity Holdco as aforesaid,

By virtue of the above and as a discretionary beneficiary of each of DT1 and DT2 and as a Director of CKH, Mr. Victor Li Tzar-kuoi is taken to have a duty

of disciosure in relation to the shares of CKH held by TUT1 as trustee of UT1 and TUT1 related companies, the shares of HWL held by the subsidiaries

of CKH, the shares of CKI held by the subsidiary of HWL and the shares of the Company held by the subsidiaries of CKI under the SF Ordinance as

a Director of the Company. Although Mr, Richard Li Tzar-kai is interested in one-third of the entira issued share capital of Unity Holdco and is a discretionary
beneficiary of sach of DT1 and DT2, he is not a director of GKH and has no duty of disclosure in re‘ation to the shares of CKH held by TUT1 as trustee of
UT1 and TUT1 related companies under the SF Ordinance.

Mr. Vigtor Li Tzar-kuoi, by virtue of his interests as describad in Note (1) above and as a Direclor of the Company, is also deemed to be interested in the
shares of the subsidianes and associated companies of tha Company held through the Germpany under the SF Ordinance.




Save as disclosed above, at 31st December 2007, none of the Directors or chief executives had any interests or

short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
{(within the meaning of Part XV of the SF Ordinance) which were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant 1o Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SF Ordinance
(including interest and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of

the SF Ordinance) or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352

of the SF Crdinance, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

the Model Code.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year of 2007, the interests of Directors in businesses which may compete with the Group's business of
investing overseas in power generation, transmission and distribution and other infrastructure facilities (*Overseas
Business”) were as follows:

Name of Director Name of Company Nature of Interests
Canning Fok Kin-ning Hutchison Whampoa Limited Executive Director
Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited Executive Director

Tso Kai-sum Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited Executive Director
Susan Chow Woo Mo-fong Hutchison Whampoa Limited Executive Director
Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited Executive Director

Andrew John Hunter Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited Executive Director
Spark Infrastructure Group Non-executive Director

Kam Hing-lam Hutchison Whampoa Limited Executive Director
Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited Executive Director

Spark Infrastructure Group Non-executive Diractor

Victor Li Tzar-kuoi Hutchison Whampoa Limited Executive Dirzctor
Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited Executive Diractor

George Colin Magnus Hutchison Whampoa Limited Non-executive Director
Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited Non-executive Director

Frank John Sixt Hutchison Whampoa Limited Executive Director
Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited Executive Director

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying on its Overseas Business independent of, and at arm's
length from the businesses of the above companies. When making decisions on the Overseas Business, the above
Directors, in the performance of their duties as Directors of the Company, have acted and will continue to act in

the commercia! best interest of the Group and all its shareholders.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by

the Chairman, Mr. Canning Fok Kin-ning with

Mr. Ralph Raymond Shea and Mr. Wong Chung-hin,

both Independent Non-executive Directors as members.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include reviewing and considering

the Company’s policy for remuneration of Executive
Directors and senior management, and determining
their remuneration packages. The Remuneration
Committee reports to the Board of its decisions and
recommendations at the next Board meeting after
the meeting of the Committee. Committee members
may seek independent professional advice at

the expense of the Company to discharge their duties
as members of the Committee. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee are published on

the Company’s website.

The Group's human resources division assists

the Remuneration Commiitee by providing relevant
remuneration data and market conditions for

the Committee's consideration. The remuneration

of Executive Directors and senior management

is determined with reference to the Company's
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration
benchmarks in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. Remuneration is performance-based and
coupled with an incentive system is competitive to
attract and retain talented employees.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting

in 2007 which was attended by all members.
During the meeting, the Committee considered and
determined the performance-based bonus payable
to the full iime Executive Directors and senior
management of the Group in respect of the 2007
financial year and their remuneration for the next

year. None of the Executive Directors or senior
management participated in the determination of
their own remuneration.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members. It is
chaired by Mr. Wong Chung-hin (an Independent
Non-executive Director} and the other members are
Mr. Ronald Joseph Arculli (2 Non-executive Director),
Mr. Holger Kiuge (an Independent Non-executive
Director} and Mr. Ralph Raymend Shea (an Independent
Non-executive Director). None of the Committee
members is a partner or former partner of KPMG,
the Group’s external auditors.

The Audit Committee reports directly to the Board of
Directors and its principal responsibilities include

the review and supervision of the Group’s financial
reporting and internal control systems and the review
of the Company’s financial statements. The Audit
Committee also meets regularly with the Company's
external auditors to discuss the audit process and
acceounting issues. The chairman of the Commitiee
summarises the subjects discussed and dectsions
or recommendations made in a written report to

the Board after each meeting. Committee members
may seek independent professional advice at

the expense of the Company o discharge their
duties as members of the Committee. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are published on
the Company's website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in 2007.
The record of attendance of its members is as follows:

Number of

Name of Member Meetings Attended

Mr. Wong Chung-hin (Chairman) 2 ;
Mr. Ronald Joseph Arculli 2
Mr. Holger Kluge 2

Mr. Ralph Raymond Shea




During those meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed
and considered the Group accounts and Annual Report
for the year ended 31st December 2008, the audit fee
for the 2006 Group accounts, the re-appointment of
auditors, the internal control assessment declaration
for the year 2006 in respect of the effectiveness of

the system of internal controls of the Group made by
the Group Managing Director and Group Finance
Director, the Group's risk management report as

of December 2006, non-audit services provided by
KPMG in the year 2006, internal audit plan for 2007,
the accounts for the six months ended 30th June
2007, the Group’s policy on hiring employees or former
employees of the external auditors, and all internal audit
reports compiled during the year. Representatives from
KPMG, the external auditors, were invited to attend
one of the mestings and they discussed the 2006
audited accounts and various accounting issues with
the Committee. Committee members also considered
the external audit plan for the 2007 financial statements
which was circulated to them for review.

Internal Control and Risk Management
Introduction

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
system of internal control and reviews its effectivenass
1o ensure that policies and procedures in place

for the identification and management of risks

are adequate,

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibility for maintaining an effective system of
internal controls. The Committee reviews all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
contrels and risk management functions. It reviews

the process by which the Group evaluates its control
environment and its risk assessment process, and

the way in which business and control risks are
managed. It also reviews the annual work plans of

the Group Manager - Internal Audit, and considers

the repart of the Group Managing Director and Group
Finance Director to the Committee on the effectiveness
of internal controls in the Group business operations.
These reviews and reports are taken into consideration
by the Committee when it makes its recommendation
to the Board for approval of the annual consolidated

financial statements.

Internal Control Environment

The Group's management encourages a risk aware
and control conscious environment throughout

the Company. Management sets objectives,
performance targets and policies for the management
of key risks including strategic planning, business
operations, acquisitions, investments, expenditure
control, treasury, environment, health and safety,

and customer service. Defined levels of responsibility
and authority together with reporting procedures have
been put in place.

Full-time Executive Directors review operational and
financial reports and key operating statistics of each
division and hold regular meetings with the division
general managers to review their reports.

Full-time Executive Directors and senior executives
are appointed to the boards and board committees
of all material operating subsidiaries and associates
for monitering the operations of those companies.
There is a comprehensive system for reporting
information by those companies to the Company's

management.

Budgets are prepared annually by the management

of the operating units and are subject to review and
approval firstly by the Group Managing Director and
then by the Board. Re-forecasts of operating results
for the current year are prepared on a quarterly basis,
reviewed for differences to the budget and for approval
by the Executive Directors.
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The Group Finance Director has established guidelines
and procedures for the approval and control of
expenditures. Operating expenditures are subject to
overall budget control, with approval levels being set
by reference to the level of authority of each executive
and officer. Capital expenditures are also subject 1o
overall control within the approved budget of individual
projects with more specific control and approval being
required for overspending, unbudgeted expenditures
and material expenditures within the approved budget.
Monthly reports of actual versus budgeted and
approved expenditures are also reviewed.

The Group Finance Director is in charge of the treasury
function overseeing the Group’s investment and
lending activities. Treasury regularly reports on

the Group's cash and liquid investments, borrowings
and movements thereto, outstanding contingent
liabilities and financial derivatives commitments.

The Board has approved and adopted treasury
policies to manage the financial risks of the Group

and the operational risks associated with such risk
management activities.

The Group Manager-Internal Audit, reporting to

the Group Finance Director, provides independent
assurance as to the existence and effectivenass of

the risk management activities and controls in

the Group's business operations. Using risk assessment
methodelogy and taking into account the dynamics of
the Group's activities, Internal Audit prepares its yearly
audit plan which is reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee. Internal Audit’'s reports on the Group's
operations are reviewed by the Audit Commitiee.
Internal Audit follows up on its reports te ensure that
its recommendations are implemented by the operating
units. The scope of work perfermed by Internal Audit

includes financial and operations review, recurring and

unscheduled audits, fraud investigation and productivity
efficiency reviews. With the assistance of Internal Audit,
the Group Managing Director and Group Finance
Director assess the Group's internal control system,
formulate an opinion on the system, and report their
findings to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Each division is required to undertake risk identification,
mitigation and monitoring by compiling and updating
on an ongeoing basis a risk register taking into account
emerging issues and new regulations. An internal
control self agsessment has also been established
requiring division general managers and department
heads to half-yearly assess the effectiveness of centrols
over the operaticns within their areas of accountability
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Reports from the external auditors on internal
controls, if any, are presented to the Audit Committee.
These reports are considered and reviewed and

the appropriate action taken if required.

The Group Managing Director and Group Finance
Director have the responsibility of developing and
implementing risk mitigation strategies including

the deployment of insurance to transfer the financial
impact of risk. The Company Secretary, working
with the operating units, is responsible for arranging
appropriate insurance coverage for the Group.

Code of Conduct

The Group places great emphasis on employees’ ethical
standards and integrity in all aspects of its operations.
Employees are required to adhere to the standards set
out in the Group's Code of Conduct.

External Auditors

Independence

An independence confirmation has been obtained
from KPMG, the external auditors, confirming that they




have been for the year ended 31st December 2007
independent of the Group in accordance with

the independence requirements of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Rotation of engagement partner

KPMG adopts a policy of rotating every seven
years the engagement partner servicing its client
companies. A rotation tocok effect for the audit of
the 2007 financial statements.

Reporting Responsibilities

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG are stated in
the Independent Auditor's Report on page 49 of
the Annual Report.

Remuneration

An analysis of the fees of KPMG and other external
auditors is shown in note 8 1o the financial statements
on page 70 of the Annual Report.

Shareholders

The Company has established a range of
communication channels between itself and its
shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

These include the annual general meeting, the annual
and interim reports, notices, announcements and
circulars, the Company's website at www.heh.com and
meetings with investors and analysts.

2007 Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting is a main channel of
communication between Directors and shareholders.
The 2007 Annual General Meeting was held on 10th
May 2007. The notice of meeting, the Company's
annual report and the circular containing information
on the proposed resolutions were sent to shareholders
more than 21 days prior to the meeting. The chairman

and members of the Audit Committee and

the Remuneration Committee were available

to answer guestions from the shareholders.

At the meeting, a separate rasolution was proposed by
the Chairman in respect of each substantially separate
issue, and voting on each resolution was conducted

by way of a poll. The procedure for demanding a poll

by shareholders was set out in the circular despatched
together with the Company's annual report, and the poll
voting procedure was explained fully to shareholders
during the meeting. Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, the Company's share registrar, was
appointed as scrutineer to monitor and count the poll
votes cast at the meeting. The resoclutions proposed at
the meeting and the percentage of votes cast in favour
of thern are set out below:-

- Statement of accounts and the reports of
the directors and auditors for the year ended
31st December 2006 (99.9928%);

- Declaration of a final dividend of HK$1.27 per share
(99.9999%);

— Election of Messrs. Francis Lee Lan-yee and
Frank John Sixt as Directors (99.56378% and
99.5415% respectively);

- Re-appointment of KPMG as auditors and
authorisation of Directors to fix their remuneration
(99.9940%);

- General mandates to Directors to issue additicnal
shares of the Company (61.9887%;) and to
repurchase shares of the Company {99.9969%),
and extension of the general mandate to issue
shares {70.4315%}).

The results of the poll were posted on the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company’s websites on the same
day of the meeting and published in the newspapers
on the next day.
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Extraordinary General Meeting

An Extraordinary General Meeting was held on

27th December 2007 for the purpose of approving

the acquisition of 50% of the entire issued share capital
of Stanley Power In¢. from Cheung Kong Infrastructure
Holdings Limited (*CKI"). A circular containing
information on the proposed resolution, including

the respective advice of the independent board
committee and the independent financial adviser,

and notice of the meeting were sent to shareholders
on 20th November 2007 and 7th December 2007
respectively. At the meeting, the independent board
committee was available to answer questions from
shareholders, and voting was conducted by way

of a poll. The procedure for demanding a pcll by
shareholders was set out in the circular, and the poll
voting procedure was explained fully to shareholders
during the meeting. As the acquisition constituted

a cennected transaction under the Listing Rules,

CKI and its associates had abstained from voting.
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
the Company's share registrar, was appoeinted as
scrutineer to monitor and count the poll votes cast at
the meeting. The percentage of votes cast in favour

of the resolution was 89.9947%. The poll results were
posted on the Stock Exchange's and the Company's
websites on the same day of the meeting and published
in the newspapers on the next day.

Company’s Website

The Company maintains a website at www.heh.com.
For the dissemination of published information,

the Company uploads such information including
press releases, results announcements and other
announcements onto its website.

Memorandum and Articles of Association
No changes were made to the memorandum and

articles of association of the Company during the year
ended 31st December 2007.

Key Dates

Annguncement of

2007 interim results Sth August 2007

Payrment of 2007
interim dividend

(58 cents per share) 21st September 2007

Announcement of audited
results for the year ended

31st December 2007 Bth March 2008

Last day to register for

2007 final dividend 7th May 2008

Closure of register of
members

8th May 2008 to
15th May 2008

15th May 2008

2008 annual general meeting

Payment of 2007 final dividend 16th May 2008

Connected Transaction

During the year, the Company entered into a connected
transaction. On 30th Qctoer 2007, the Company and
Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited (*CKi"),

a substantial shareholder holding approximately 38.87%
of the issued share capital of the Company, entered
into an agreement {"*Agreement"} pursuant to which

CKl agreed io procure the sale and the Company
agreed to procure the purchase by its subsidiary of
50% of the entirg issued share capital of Stanley Power
Inc. ("Stanley”). Stanley, a wholly owned subsidiary of
CKI, had made an offer {*Offer"} to purchase all of the
outstanding units (*Units"} of TransAlta Power, L.P.
{(“TransAlta Power”) on the basis of CAD$8.38 per Unit.
TransAlta Power has a 49.99% of partnership interest
in TransAlta Cogeneration, L.P. which owns interests

in five gas-fired cogeneration facilities in Alberta,
Ontario and Saskatchewan, Canada and in a coal-fired,
mine mouth generation facility in Alberta.




A comprehensive website helps HK Electric communicate with shareholders, customers and other stakeholders.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the consideration payable
by the Company to CKI was an amount equivalent to
{a) CAD$1,000,000 being 50% of the initial capital in
Stanley plus (b) 50% of the aggregate amount of the
amecunt paid by Stanley for the purchase of the Units,
the amount paid for the interest of the general partner
of TransAlta Power in TransAlta Power and the costs of
the Offer and its related transactions (but excluding any
amount or costs paid with the initial share capital

in Stanley), less (c) 50% cf the amount cutstanding
under the bridge facility ("Bridge Facility”) to be obtained
by Stanley for paying the costs of the acquisition of

the Units. The Company also agreed to assume

the guarantee in respect of the Bridge Facility to

the extent of 50% of its amount on a several basis.

The Agreement and its related transactions were
approved by independent sharehoiders (being
shareholders other than CKI and its associates) of
the Company at an extraordinary general meeting
held on 27th December 2007 and completion of
the Agreement took place on 28th December 2007,

The Agreement constituted a connected

transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Shareholders have been informed of the Agreement in
an announcemeant posted on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company on 30th October
2007, and a circular to sharehotders dated 20th
November 2007, and the particulars thereof are herein
disclosed pursuant to Rule 14A.45 of the Listing Rules.




Financial Summary

Commentary on the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet

Increase/
Consolidated Profit 2007 2006 (Decrease)
and Loss Account HKSM  HKSM HK$M % Commentary
Turnover 12,524 | 12,181 343 2.8 The increase is mainly due to higher electricity sales
and no special rebate in 2007.
Other Revenue and 1,547 1,044 503 48.2 The increase is mainly due to an actuarial
Other Net Income adjustment to retirement scheme and higher
interest income from cash deposits partly offset
by classification of the investment in Northern
Gas Networks Limited as an associate with effect
from 2007 with its income accounted for under
i the equity method.
i
Direct and Other 5,202 E 4,894 311 6.4 The increase is mainly due to higher Government
Operating Costs E rates and depreciation.
Finance Costs 634 E 420 214 51.0 The increase is mainly due to less interest
capitatised and higher interest rates.
Share of Profits less 524 229 295 128.8 The increase is mainly due to higher earnings from
Losses of Associates the Australian electricity businesses and share of
earnings from Northern Gas Networks Limited.
Income Tax 1,296 1,301 (5) -0.4 The decrease is mainly due to reversal of
over-provision of income tax in prior years.
Scheme of Control 15 - 15 —  Scheme of Control ("SOC") Transfers arg
Transfers calculated in accordance with the SOC Agreement.
Profit Attributable to
Equity Shareholders
- Hong Kong 6,727 6,173 554 9.0 The increase is mainly due tc higher electricity sales,
Operations no special rebate, actuarial adjustment to retirement
scheme and higher interest income from cash
deposits partly offset by higher costs.
- International 721 669 52 7.8 The increase is mainly due to higher earnings from
Operations the Australian electricity businesses and a stronger
Australian dollar.
Profit for the Year 7,448 6,842 606 8.9




Consolidated
Balance Sheet

Increase/
2007 2006 (Decrease)
HKSM HKSM HK$M

%

Commentary

i 1
Fixed Assets | 46,058 | 46,496 438) -0.9 The Group's capital expenditure for 2007 amounted
: to HK$1,747 miillion, invested principally in generation,
) ' transmission and distribution assets. Depreciation
: and amortisation charges for the year were HK$2,144
! million. Total disposals of fixed assets amounted to
' | HK$41 million (net book value).
4 Coe—t
Interest in Assaciates 9,071 6,339 2,732 43.1 The increase is mainly due to classification of
' | the investment in Northern Gas Networks Limited as
! an associate from 2007 instead of as available-for-
: sale investment, a stronger Australian dollar and
‘ the acquisition of new investments.
(R }
Other Assets b 15,548 ¢ 14,944 602 4.0 Theincrease is mainly due to higher cash deposits
! \ and employee retirement benefit assets partly offset
‘I I by reclassification of the investment in Northern Gas
' Networks Limited as an associate from 2007.
Bank Loans and 13,495 | 14,689 (1,194}  -8.1 The decrease is mainly due to less financing
Other Borrowings requirements for the Hong Kong electricity business.
Current and Deferred 5,868 : 5,983 (115) -1.8 The decrease is mainly due to settlement of
Taxation provisional profits tax in 2007.
Other Liabilities - 3,193 3,022 171 5.7 The increase is mainly due to the higher employee
; retirement benefit liabilities and customers’ deposits
L . balance.
Development Fund and 3 15 - 15 - The balances are calculated in accordance with
Rate Reduction Reserve J the SOC Agreement.
Net Assets 48,104 44,085 4,019 9.1

Net Gains Not 519 Exchange differences arising on the translation

Recognised in of the Group's investment in overseas subsidiaries

Consolidated Profit and associates, cash flow hedge derivative

and Loss Account financial instruments and actuarial gains and
losses on employee retirement schemes which
were credited directly to reserves.

Dividends Paid (3,948} Previous year's final dividend and current year's
interim dividend, which were approved and paid
during 2007 .

4
Profit tor the Year 7,448




Financial Review

Capital Expenditure, Liquidity and
Financial Resources

Capita! expenditure during the year amounted to
HK$1,747 million, which was primarily funded by cash
from operations. Total external borrowings outstanding
at the year end were HK$13,495 million {2006 :
HK$14,689 million), comprising unsecured bank loans
and debt securities in issue. In addition, the Group had
undrawn committed bank facilities of HK$7,145 million
(2006 : HK$5,686 million) and available liquid funds of
HK$12,180 million (2006 : HK$10,462 million).

Treasury Policies, Financing Activities
and Capital Structure

The Company manages its financial risks in accordance
with guidelines laid down in its treasury policy, which

is approved by the Board. The Company aims to
ensure that adequate financial resources are available
for refinancing and business growth whilst managing
the Group's currency, interest rate and counterparty
credit risks.

By Currency
6% Sterling Pounds

[ 31% Australian Collars
[ 83% Hong Kong Dollars

By Structure

[] 25% Capital Markst Instrumenis
[ 75% Bank Loans

In January 2007, The Hongkong Electric Company,
Limited (“Hongkong Electric”), through its subsidiary,
Hongkong Electric Finance Limited, issued HK$500
million fixad rate notes due 2012 at a coupon rate of
4.32% p.a.. During the third quarter of 2007,
Hongkong Electric refinanced HKSS hillion of its bank
facilities at competitive rates and at the same time,
extended the Group's debt maturity profile.

Following a review of the financing structure of iis UK
investment, the Company refinanced approximately
50% of its equity contribution with bank borrowings in
November 2007.

The Group's financial profile remained strong during the
year. Standard and Poor’'s affirmed the A+ long term
credit ratings of Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited
and Hongkeong Electric with a stable outlook in January
2008. As at 31st December 2007, net debt of the
Group was HK$1,315 million (2006 : HK$4,227 million)
with a net debt-to-equity ratio of 3% (2006 : 10%).

The profile of the Group’s external borrowings, after
taking into account currency and interest rate swaps,

was as follows:
By Maturity

B 14% Beyond 5 Years

] 16% Within 1 Year
[J 70% Betwsen 2 and 5 Years

By Interest Rate Structure

[C] 41% Floating Rate
{7] 59% Fixed Rate




Currency and interest rate risks are actively managed in
accordance with the Group’s treasury pclicy. Derivative
financial instruments are used primarily for managing
interest rate and foreign currency risks and not for
speculative purposes. Treasury transactions are only
executed with counterparties with acceptable credit
ratings to control credit risk exposure.

The Group's policy is to maintain a portion of its debt
in fixed or capped interest rates. Interest rate risk

is managed by either securing fixed or floating rate
borrowings or by using interest rate swaps and caps.
As at 31st December 2007, 59% of the Group’s total
borrowings were fixed rate.

The Group's principal foreign currency exposuras arise
from its overseas investments and from the import of fuel
and capital equipment for Hongkong Electric. Fargign
currency transaction exposure is managed, utilising
forward contracts and currency swaps. As at 31st
December 2007, over 95% of the Group's transaction
exposure was either denominated in US dollars or
hedged into Hong Kong or US dollars. Where considered
appropriate, foreign currency exposure arising from

the Group’s cverseas investments is mitigated by
financing those investments in local currency borrowings.
Foreign currency fluctuations will affect the translated
value of the net assets of overseas investments, with the
resultant translation differences included in the Group’s
reserve account. Since such differences do not have any
impact on cash flows until the investments are disposed
of, currency translation exposure is not hedged.

The contractual notional amounts of derivative financial
instruments outstanding at 31st December 2007
amounted to HK$9,576 million {2006 : HK$5,306 million).

Charges on Group Assets

The shares of an asscciate were pledged as part of

the security arrangements for project financing facilities
for that associate. The carrying value of the associate as
at 31st December 2007 was HK$281 million (2006 :
HK$75 million).

Contingent Liabilities

The Company had given guarantees in respect of
banking facilities made available to an associate
amounting ta HK$2,482 million {2006 : HK$nil}.

The Company had given guarantees and indemnities

in respect of bank and other borrowing facilities made
available to and financial commitments of subsidiaries
totalling HK$5,286 million (2006 : HK$5,563 million).

Qut of this amount, HK$5,156 million (2006 : HK$5,257
million), while being a contingent liability of the Company,
is reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of

the Group.

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Hongkong
Electric, has given guarantees to third partias in respect
of the value of leased equipment of HK$210 million
{2006 : HK$210 million) at expiry of the lease.

Employees

The Group continues its policy of pay by performance
and market pay levels are monitored to ensure
competitiveness is maintained. The Group's total
remuneration costs for the year ended 31st December
2007, excluding directors” emoluments, amounted

to HK$843 million (2006 : HK$887 million). As at

31st Decemizer 2007, the Group employed 1,874
(2006 : 1,931} permanent staff. No share option
scheme is in operation.

Apart from well-established training schemes

for university graduates, trainee technicians and
apprentices, the Group provides training for employees
in management and functional skills, language skills,
computer knowledge and technclogy relevant to

the Group's industry by toth classroom training and
e-learning platforms. Educational courses relevant to
the job are also provided to develop and enhance

the general skills and knowledge of employees.




Report of the Directors

(Expressed in Hong Kong Daollars)

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31st December 2007 .

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal activities of the subsidiaries are

the generation and supply of eleciricity. Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in Appendix
2 on page 108 of the financial statements.

Financial Statements

The Consclidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st December 2007 is set out on page 50 and shows
the Group profit after tax and Scheme of Control transfers, of $7,448 million (2006 : $6,842 million). The state of

the Company’s and the Group’'s affairs as at 31st December 2007 are set out in the financial statements on pages
50 to 109.

Dividends
An interim dividend of 58 cents (2006 : 58 cents) per ordinary share was paid to shareholders on 21st September 2007

and the Directors recommended a final dividend of $1.43 (2006 : $1.27) per ordinary share payable on 16th May 2008
to shareholders who are registered on the register of members on 15th May 2008.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to $3 million (2006 : $2 million).

Fixed Assets
Additions of fixed assets for the year amounted to $1,747 million (2006 : $2,305 million). The movements in fixed
assets during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Subsidiaries
The names, principal activities, places of incorporation and operation and particulars of the issued share capital
and debt securities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Appendix 2 on page 108 of the financial statements.




Summary of Five Year Financial Results
The summary of five year financial results of the Group is set out on page 110.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The Group's five largest customers combined did not exceed 30% of the Group's total turnover for each of the vears
ended 31st December 2007 and 2006.

The largest supplier of revenue items for the year represents 28.7% (2006 : 20.5%) of the Group's total purchase of
revenue items, and the combined total of the largest five suppliers accounts for 68.9% (2006 : 64.7%) for the year
ended 31st December 2007.

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any shareholders of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the above
major customers and suppliers.

Directors

The Directors in office during the year were Mr. Canning Fok Kin-ning, Mr. Tso Kai-sum, Mrs. Susan Chow Woo
Mo-fong, Mr. Andrew John Hunter, Mr. Kam Hing-lam, Mr. Francis Lee Lan-yee, Mr. Victor Li Tzar-kuoi, Mr. Neil
Douglas McGee, Mr. Frank John Sixt, Mr. Wan Chi-tin, Mr. Ronald Joseph Arculli, Mr. George Colin Magnus,
Mr. Ewan Yee Lup-yuen, Mr, Holger Kluge, Mr. Ralph Raymond Shea and Mr. Wong Chung-hin,

Mrs. Susan Chow Woo Mo-fong, a Direcior, alse served as Alternate Director to Mr. Canning Fok Kin-ning and
Mr. Frank John Sixt during the year.

Mr. Ewan Yee Lup-yuen resigned as a Director on 2nd January 2008.
Mr. Chan Loi-shun was appeinted as Alternate Director to Mr. Kam Hing-lam on 11th February 2008,
Mr. Yuen Sui-see was appointed as an Executive Director on 1st March 2008.

Messrs. Canning Fok Kin-ning, Tso Kai-sum, Ronald Joseph Arculli, Andrew John Hunter, Kam Hing-lam,

Holger Kluge, Victor Li Tzar-kuoi, George Colin Magnus and Mrs, Susan Chow Woo Mo-fong will retire by rotation

at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 15th May 2008 in accordance with Article 116 of

the Company's Articles of Association and Code Provision A.4.2 set cut in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), while Mr. Yuen Sui-see will
retire at the said Meeting in accordance with Article 99 of the Company's Articles of Association, The abovement'oned
Diractors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.




Report of the Directors

interests of Shareholders Discloseable under the Securities and Futures Ordinance

(“SF Ordinance”)

According to the register kept under Section 336 of the SF Qrdinance and information received by the Company,
at 31st December 2007, shareholders {other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or

short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SF Ordinance were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares of the Company

Number of Approximate %
Name Capacity Shares Held of Shareholding
Silchester International Investors Limited  Investment Manager 128,423,957 6.02%
Interman Development Inc. Beneficial owner 186,736,842 (Note 1) 8.75%
Venniton Development Inc. Beneficial owner 197,697,511  (Note 1) 9.26%
Univest Equity S.A. Beneficial owner 279,011,102 (Note 1) 13.07%
Monitor Equities S.A. Beneficial owner & Interest of 287,211,674 (Note 1) 13.46%
controlled corporation
Hyford Limited Interest of controlled corporations 829,598,612 (Note 2) 38.87%
Cheung Kong Infrastructure Interest of controlled corporations 829,599,612 (Note 2) 38.87%
Holdings Limited
Hutchison Infrastructure Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporations 829,599,612 (Note 3) 38.87%
Hutchison International Limited Interest of controlied corporations 829,599,612 (Note 3) 38.87%
Hutchison Whampoa Limited interest of controlled corporations 829,599,612  (Note 3) 38.87%
Cheung Kong {Holdings) Limited Interest of controlled corporations 829,589,612  (Note 4} 38.87%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Trustee 829,589,612 (Note 5) 38.87%
Limited as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trust
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Trustee & beneficiary of a trust 829,599,612 (Note 6) 38.87%
Limited as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing
Unity Discretionary Trust
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited as Trustee & beneficiary of a trust 829,599,612 (Note 6) 38.87%
trustee of another discretionary trust
Li Ka-shing Founder of discretionary trusts & 829,599,612 (Nole 6) 38.87%

interest of controlled corporations




Notes:
(1) These are direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Hyford Limited (“Hyford") and their interests are duplicated in the same 829,599,612 sharas of
the Company held by Hyford described in Note (2} below.

(2) Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“CKI™) is deemed 1o be interested in the 829,599,612 shares of the Company as referred to in Note (1) above
as it holds more than ane-third of the issued share capital of Hylord indirectly. its interests are duplicated in the interest of Hutchison Whampoa Limited
{"HWL"} in the Company described in Note (3) below,

{3} HWL is deemed io be interested in the 829,599,612 shares of the Company as referred to in Note {2} above as it holds more {han one-third of the issued
share capital of Hutchison Intermational Limited, which holds more than one-third of the issued share capital of Hutchison Infrastruciure Holdings Limited
(“HIH"}, HIF hoids more than one-third of the issued share capital of CKI

(4} Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH") is deamed to be interested in the 826,599,612 shares of the Company as refermed to in Note (3] above as certain
subsicliaries of CKH hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of HWL.

{(5) Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (*TUT1"} as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (*UT1") is deemed (o be interested in those shares of
the Company described in Nota (4) above as TUT1 as trustee of UTT and its related companies in which TUTT as trustee of UTT is entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at their general meetings hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of CKH.

(6} By virtue of the SF Ordinance, each of Mr. Li Ka-shing, being the settior and may being regarded as a founder of each of The Li Ka-Shing Unity
Discretionary Trust (*DT17) and ancther discretionary trust (*DT2°) for the purpose of the SF Ordinance, Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited
(“TDT17) as trustee of DT and Lj Ka-Shing Unity Trusteorp Limited (“TDT2" as trustee of DT2 is deemed to be interested in the same block of shares TUT1
as trustee of UT1 is deemed to be interested in as referred to in Note (5) above as all issued and outstanding units in UTT are held by TOT? as trustee of
DT1 and by TDT2 as trustes of DT2. More than one-third of the fssued share capital of TUT1 and of the trustees of the said discretionary trusts are owned
by Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“Unity Holdco"), Mr. Li Ka-shing owns one-third of the issued share capital of Unity Holdco,

Save as disclosed above, at 31st December 2007, the Company has not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company, which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SF Ordinance, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SF Ordinance.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s issued shares
during the year (2006 : Nil}.

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporaie (2006 : Nil}.

Sufficiency of Public Float
According to information that is available to the Company, the percentage of the Company's shares which are in
the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company's total number of issued shares.




Report of the Directors

Disclosure under Rule 13.22 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules

In relation to the provision of financial assistance by the Group to certain affiliated companies, a combined balance
sheet of the affiliated companies as at 31st December 2007 required to be disclesed under Rule 13.22 of Chapter 13
of the Listing Rules is set out below :

Combined Balance Sheet of the Affiliated Companies

as at 3ist December 2007 $ million
Non-current assets 71,221
Current assets 4,758
Current liabilities (14,099}
Non-current liabilities (51,483)
Net assets 10,397
Share capital 5,488
Reserves 4,909
Capital and reserves 10,397

As at 31st December 2007, the consolidated attributable interest of the Group in these affiliated companies amounted
to $7,320 million.

Auditors
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. There was no change in Auditors in any of the preceding three years.

By Order of the Board

Canning Fok Kin-ning
Chairman
Heng Kong, 6th March 2008




Independent Auditor's Report

7o the Shareholders of Hongkong Electric Hoidings Limited
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited (the “Company”} set
out on pages 50 to 108 which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st December 2007,
the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense and the
consolidated cash fiow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Stetements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the trug and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; setecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
matertal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessmants,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectivaness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Cpinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31st December 2007 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Qrdinance.

KPWIG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 6th March 2008




For the year ended 31st December 2007

ansolid_ated P_r_Qﬂt and Loss Acc

ount

2007 2006
Note  HKS$ million  HK$ million
Turnover 4 12,524 12,181
Direct costs (4,218) (4,083)
8,306 8,098
Other revenue and other net income 5 1,547 1,044
Other operating costs (984) (808)
Finance costs 7 (634) (420)
Operating profit 8,235 7.914
Share of profits less losses of associates 524 229
Profit before taxation 8 8,759 8,143
Income tax: 9
Current {1,301} (1.314)
Deferred S 13
(1,296) (1,301}
Profit after taxation 7,463 6,842
Scheme of Control transfers 1
To:
Development Fund (14) -
Rate Reduction Reserve 1) -
(15) -
Profit attributable to equity shareholders
Hong Kong operations 6,727 6,173
International operations 721 669
Profit for the year 7,448 6,842
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year: 12
Interim dividend paid during the year 1,238 1,238
Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date 3,052 2,710
4,290 3,948
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted 13 $3.49 $3.21

The notes on pages 54 to 109 form part of these financial stalements.




B@Ian_c_:e @eets_

At 31st December 2007

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Note HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
- Property, plant and equipment 41,112 41,763 -
— Agsets under construction 2,623 2,355 - -
- Interests in leasehold fand held for
own use under operating leases 2,323 2,378 - -
14 46,058 46,496 - -
Interest in subsidiaries 15 - - 28,801 26,992
Interest in associates 16 9,071 6,339 - -
Other non-current financial assets 17 66 1,687 - -
Derivative financial instruments 24 122 47 - -
Deferred tax assets 25 - 1 - 1
Employee retirement benefit assets 28 1,106 578 62 34
56,423 55,148 28,863 27,027
Current assets
Inventories 18 539 484 - -
Trade and other receivables 19 1,197 1,119 102 51
Fuel Clause Account 20 336 566 - -
Bank deposits and cash 21 12,180 10,462 12,154 10,417
14,252 12,631 12,256 10,468
Current liahilities
Trade and other payables 22 {1,071} (1,095) (43) (37)
Bank overdrafts — unsecured - (4} - -
Current portion of bank loans and
other borrowings 23 (2,191) {1,089) - -
Current taxation (424) {551) {12) (9}
{3,686) (2,739) (55) (46)
Net current assets 10,566 9,892 12,201 10,422
Total assets less current liabilities 66,989 65,040 41,064 37,449
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 23 (11,304} {13,596) - -
Derivative financial instruments 24 7 {1 - -
Customers’ deposits (1,585) {1,537) - -
Deferred tax liabilities 25 (5,444) {5,432) - -
Employee retirement benefit liabilities 26 (530) (389) (105) {81)
(18,870} {20,955) (105) 81)
Rate Reduction Reserve 11(b) (1) - - -
Development Fund 11(a) (14) - - -
Net assets 48,104 44 085 40,959 37,368
Capital and reserves
Share capital 27 2,134 2,134 2,134 2,134
Reserves 45,970 41,951 38,825 35,234
Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 28 48,104 44,085 40,959 37,368

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 6th March 2008

Canning Fok Kin-ning
Chairman

The notes on pages 54 to 109 form part of these financial statements.

Tso Kai-sum
Group Managing Director




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st December 2007

2007 2006
Note  HKS$ million  HK$ million

Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 29 9,639 9,739
Interest paid (658) (374)
Interest received 1,109 686
Hong Kong profits tax paid (1,427) (983)
Overseas tax paid N -
Net cash generated from operating activities 8,662 9,068
Investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets and capital stock (1,568) (1,978}
Increase in bank deposits maturing over three months (4,102) -
Capitalised interest paid (117) {231)
Receipts and deposits from sale of fixed assets 6 12
Investments in associates {203} (12}
Investments in available-for-sale equity securities - (5)
New loans to associates (27) (11)
Loans repaid by associates - 126
Dividends received from associates 429 94
Dividends received from available-for-sale equity securities - 177
Net cash used in investing activities (5,582) (1,828)
Financing activities
New bank loans and other borrowings 1,308 7,354
Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings {2,868) (3,692)
Repayment of deferred creditors - (74)
New customers’ deposits 263 251
Repayment of customers’ deposits (215) (222)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company (3,948) {(4,952)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,460) (1,335}
Net {(decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,380) 5,905
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January 10,458 4,553
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 8,078 10,458
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents 21 8,078 10,462
Bank overdrafts - unsecured - 4

8,078 10,458

The notes on pages 54 to 109 form part of thesa financial statements.




Consolidated Statement of

Recognised Income and Expense

For the year ended 31st December 2007

2007 2006
Note  HK$ million  HK$ million
Exchange differences on translation of:
Financial statements of overseas subsidiaries 282 (33)
Overseas associates 171 103
Redesignation of available-for-sale investment as an associate 28{a) (79) -
Cash flow hedge:
Effective portion of changes in fair value, net of deferred tax 122 130
Transferred to profit or loss - -
Transferred to initial carrying amount of non-financial hedged items 3 {6}
Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit retirement schemes,
net of deferred tax 20 316
Net income recognised directly in equity 28(a) 519 510
Profit for the year 7.448 6,842
Total recognised income and expense for the year 28(a) 7,967 7,352
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 7,967 7.352

The notes on pages 54 to 109 form part of these financial statemants.




Notes to the Financial Statements )

{Expressed in Hong Kong Dallars)

General Information
Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is 44 Kennedy Road, Hong Kong.

Significani Accounting Policies

()

(b)

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Keng Financial
Reporting Standards (*HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants {"HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Information on the changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these new and revised standards to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements is provided in note 3.

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2007 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the applicétion of policies and reported amounts

of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based

on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are
discussed in note 36.




Basis of Consolidation

The Group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Hongkong Electric Holdings
Limited and all its subsidiaries made up to 31st Decembier each year, together with the Group’s share of
the results for the year and the relevant share of the post acquisition results of its associates.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

in the Company's Balance Sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(i)).

Associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the
Group’'s share of the associate's net assets. The Consolidated Profit and Loss Account includes the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associates for the year, including any
impairment loss on goodwill relating to the investment in associates recognised for the year (see notes 2{f)
and 2(1)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest in the associate is the carrying amaount of the investment under the equity method together

with the Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.



Notes 1o the Financial Statements

{Expressed in Hang Kong Dollars)

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (contnuea)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination or an investment in an associate
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goedwill is allocated to cash-generating
units and is tested annually for impairment {see note 2(l). In respect of associates, the carrying amount of
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the interest in the associate.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an investment in an associate is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit or an associate during the year, any attributable amount of
purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other Investments in Debt and Equity Securities
The Group's and the Company's policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investmeants in subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at cost, which is their transaction price unless
fair value can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or inierest earned on these investments as these are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2{u)iii).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have the positive ability and intention to hold to
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated in the Balance
Sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 2{))).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the Batance Sheet at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(N).




(h)

(i

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised directly in equity, except foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from changes

in the amortised cost of monetary items such as debt securities which are recognised directly in profit

or loss. Dividend income from these investments is recognised in profit and loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(u){iii) and , where these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note
2(u)(iii). When these investments are derecognised or impaired (see note 2())}, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value, At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is charged immediately to profit or
loss, except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge the net investment in
a foreign operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain or toss depends on the nature of the
item being hedged (see note 2(i)).

Hedging

() Fair Value Hedges
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and quatify as fair value hedges are
recognised in profit or loss, along with any changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

(i) Cash Flow Hedges
Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk of
a committed future transaction, the effective portion of any gain or loss on remeasurement of the
derivative financial instrument to fair value is recognised directly in equity. The ineffective portion of
any gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset
or non-financial liability, the associated gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the initiat
cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability,

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or a

financial liability, the associated gafn or loss is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss
in the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit or

loss {such as when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding two policy statements, the
associated gain or loss is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss in the same period or
periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Hedging (continued)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Cash Flow Hadges (continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the Group revokes
designation of the hedge relationship but the hedge forecast transaction is still expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the
above paolicy when the transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take
place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognisad in equity is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Hedge of Net Investments in Foreign Operations

The portion of the gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value of an instrument used to hedge a

net investment in a foreign operation that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised
directly in equity until the disposal of the foreign operation, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss. The ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit ar loss.

Fixed Assets, Depreciation and Amortisation

(i)

(i}

(i

(iv)

{v)

Fixed assets are stated in the Balance Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation (see note 2(j}(vi)),
amortisation (see note 2(k)) and impairment losses (see note 2())).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of materials,
direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(w)).

Subsequent expenditure relating to a fixed asset that has already been recognised is added to the
carrying amount of the asset when it is probatle that future economic benefits, in excess of the
originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to the enterprise. All other
subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed asset are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or toss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Leasehold land held for own use under operating leases is stated in the Balance Sheet at cost less
accumulated amortisation (see note 2{k)) and impairment losses (see note 2())).




(vi) Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years
Cable tunnels 100
Ash lagoen and gas pipeline 50
Buildings, generation plant and machinery, transmission and distribution
equipment and overhead lines (132kV and above) 35
Overhead lines (below 132kV), cables and gas turbines 30
Meters, microwave and optical fibre equipment and trunk radio system 15
Furniture, fixtures, sundry plant and equipment 10
Workshop tools and office equipment 5
Computers 5t0 10
Mator vehicles and marine craft 5t06

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(k) Leased Assets and Operating Lease Charges
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a ‘ease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangernent and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(Y Impairment of Assets

fi}

impairment of investments in Debt and Equity Securities and Other Receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other than investments in subsidiaries and associates (see
note 2(I4ii}} and other current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows:

- For ungquoted equity securities and other financial assets carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amouni of the financial asset and
the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.

- For trade and other current receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impatrment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively where
financial assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the coilective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring atter the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined had
no impairment (0ss been recognised in prior years.




i)

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that had been recognised directly in equity
is removed from equity and is recognised in profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised directly in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly.

Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identity
indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised nc longer exists or may have decreased:

- fixed assets;
- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being held under an operating lease;
- investrments in subsidiaries and associates; and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
the recoverable amount is astimated annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of Recoverable Amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently {i.e. a cash-generating
unit),

- Recognition of Impairment Losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying vailue of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
valug less costs 1o sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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2. Significént Accounting Policies (contnued)

U]

{m)

(n}

impairment of Assets (continued)
(i} Impairment of Other Assets (continued)
- Reversals of Impairment Losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(i) Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
Financial Reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing, reccgnition and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see notes 2{)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill and available-for-sale equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed in a subseguent period. This is the case even if no loss,

or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories
Coal, stares, fuel oit and liquefied natural gas are valued at cost on a weighted average basis.

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other casts incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes
the write-off and all losses of inventories.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2{l)), except where the receivables are interest-
free toans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debis.

Interest-bearing Borrowings

interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the pericd of the borrowings, together with any interest and tees payable, using the effective interest

method.




(p)

(a)

{r

(s}

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 2({t)(i}, trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement.

Employee Benefits

{t/  Short Term Employee Benefits
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

{iiy  Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes Obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement schemes is calculated separately
for each scheme by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present
value and the fair value of any scheme assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at balance
sheet date on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Group's obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the “Projected Unit
Credit Method".

Any cumutative unrecognised actuarial gains or losses in respect of the defined benefit retiremant
schemes are recognised in full in the period in which they occur, outside profit or loss, in equity.

(i) Contributions to Defined Contribution Retirement Schemes
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes, including contributions
payable under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred.

Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly to equity, in which case they are recognised in
equity,

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustmeant to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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2. Significani Accounting Policies (continued)
(s)

income Tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively,
being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax
credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabitities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax batances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from
geach other and are not offset.

Financial Guarantees Issued, Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

(i}  Financial Guarantees Issued .
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee {the "holder”} for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrurnent.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimatad) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(t)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will cali upon the Group under the guarantee, and (i} the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other payables in respect of
that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.




(i) " Other Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of meney is material, provisions are stated at the present valus of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(u} Revenue Recognition

(i)

{ii}

Regulation of Earnings under the Scheme of Control

The sarnings of The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited (*"HEC") are regulated by the Hong

Kong SAR Government under a Scheme of Control (“SOC”) which provides for a permitted level

of earnings based principally on a return on HEC's capital investment in electricity generation,
transmission and distribution assets (the “Permitted Return”). HEC is required to submit detailed
financial plans for approval by the Government which project the key determinants of the Permitted
Return HEC will be entitled to over the Financial Plan period.

The Government has approved the current Financial Plan covering the period from 2004 to 2008.
No further Government approval is required during this period unless a need for significant rate
increases, over and above those set out in the Financial Plan, is identified during the Annual Review
conducted with the Government under the terms of the SCC.

Fuel Clause Account
Under the SOC, any difference between the standard cost of fuel and the actual cost of fuel
consumed is debited (or credited) to the Fuel Clause Account (“Fuel Clause Transfer”).

Fuel Clause Surcharges (or Rebates) are charged (or given) to customers by in¢creasing {or reducing)
the Basic Tariff rate to a Net Tariff rate payable by customers and are credited {or debited) to the
Fuel Clause Account.

The balance on the Fuel Clause Account at the end of a financial year represents the difference
between Fuel Clause Rebates {or Surcharges) and Fuel Clause Transfers during the year, together
with any balance brought forward from the prior year. Any debit balance is carried forward as a
deferred receivable to be recovered from Fuel Clause Transfers or Fuel Clause Surcharges and any
credit balance is carried forward as a deferred payable to be cleared by Fuel Clause Transfers or
Fuel Clause Rebates.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
(u} Revenue Recognition (continued)
(i) Income Recognition
Electricity income is recognised based on units of electricity consumed by customers during the year
at basic tariff rates, which is the unit charge agreed with the Government during the Annual Tariff
Review for each financial year.

Fuel Clause Rebates included in the 1999-2004 Financial Plan include amounts in excess of Fuel
Clause Transfers in certain financial years, which are utilised to smooth increases in Net Tariffs

paid by customers during the Financial Plan period. The impact of tariff smoothing is to reduce

the Net Tariffs payable by customers in certain years and increase the Net Tariffs in other years.
However, the tariff smoothing has no impact on HEC's total earnings and the related balance on

the Fuel Clause Account (see note 2(u)(ii)) is expected to be recovered by Fuel Clause Surcharges

in excess of Fuel Clause Transfers. It has been agreed with the Government that any deficit balance
outstanding at the end of 2008 will be carried forward and recovered under the new Scheme of
Control regime effective from 1st January 2008. In accounting for income, Fuel Clause Account debit
balances are therefore treated as deferred receivables in the Balance Sheet and not accounted for in
profit or loss each year.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payrnent is established.

Interest income is recognised on a time apportionment basis using the effective interest method.

(v) Translation of Foreign Currencies
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at contract rates if foreign currencies are fixed in
supplier agreements or hedged by forward foreign exchange contracts. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are transtated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the batance sheet date. '

Exchange gains and losses in respect of fixed assets under construction are, up to the date of
commissicning, incorporated in the cost of the assets. All other exchange differences are dealt with in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
transiated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1st January 2005,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate component of equity. Goodwill arising
on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1st January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the curnulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.




(w) Borrowing Costs

{x)

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commeances when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related Parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to controf the
Group or exercise significant influence over the Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;
(i} ~ the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management perscnnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close
family member of such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals: or

(vi} the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services {(business segment}, or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
{geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group has chosen business segment
information as the primary reporting format and geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial statements.
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Changes in Accounting Policies
The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs and Interpretations that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting paolicies applied in these financial statements for the
years presented as a result of these new standards and interpretations. However, as a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures and the amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements: Capital disclosures, there have been some additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial statements include expanded disclosure regarding
the significance of the Group's financial instruments and the nature and extent of risk arising from those
instruments, compared with the information praviously required to be disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial
instruments; Disclosure and presentation. These disclosures are provided throughout these financial
statements, in particufar in note 30.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure requirements to provide information regarding the
leve! of capital and the Group's and the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.
These new disclosures are set out in note 28(g).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment 1o HKAS 1 do not have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurement of any amounts recegnised in the financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period (see note 37).

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the generation and supply of electricity.

Group turnover represents the sales of electricity, other electricity-related income and engineering and
consulting services fees. The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised during the year is
analysed as follows:

2007 2006

$ million $ million
Sales of electricity 12,452 12,326
Special subsidy - (205)
Concessionary discount on sales of electricity {5) {5)
Electricity-related income 3 23
Technical service fees 46 42

12,524 12,181




5.

Cther Revenue and Other Net income

2007

2006
$ million $ million
Other Revenue

Interest income from financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss 1,039 724
Dividend income from unlisted available-for-sale equity securities - 177
Curtailment gain on defined benefit retirement scheme (see note 26) 422 -
Sundry income 73 25
1,534 926

Other Net Income
Foreign exchange differences - loans and receivables 10 110
Net profit on sale of fixed assets 3 8
13 118
Total 1,547 1,044

Segment Information
(a) Business Segments

The Group's principal business segments are sales of electricity and infrastructure investments. Financial

information about the Group’s business segments is set out in Appendix 1(a) on page 106.

(b) Geographical Segments

The Group operates, through its subsidiaries and associates, in two major geographical regions - Hong
Kong and Australia. Financial information about the Group’s operations by geographical region is sat out

in Appendix 1{b) on page 107.

Finarnce Costs

2007

2006
$ million $ million
Interest on overdrafts, bank loans and other borrowings

repayable within five years 620 574
Interest on other borrowings repayable over five years 138 79
Less: Interast capitalised to fixed assets {111) (221}
Interest transferred to fuel cost (13) {12)

Total interest expense relating to financial labilities not at fair value
through profit or loss 634 420

Interest expenses have been capitalised at the average rate of approximately 4.5% p.a. (2006 : 4.5% p.a.) for

assets under construction.
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8. [Profit before Taxation

2007

2006
$ million $ million
Profit before taxation is shown after charging:
Depreciation 1,963 1,832
Amortisation of leasehold land 57 55
Costs of inventories 2,176 . 1,774
Write down of inventories 4 4
Staff costs 493 486
Operating lease charges — equipment 62 62
Fixed assets written off 22 21
Auditors’ remuneration:
Audit and audit related work
~ KPMG 4 4
— Other auditors 1 -
Non-audit work '
- KPMG 2 -
— Other auditors 3 2

The consolidated profit attributable to equity sharehoiders of the Company inciudes a profit of $7,552 million
(2006 : $5,870 million) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.




e.

Income Tax

(a)

Taxation in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account represents:

2007

2006
$ million $ million
Current Tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
Provision for the year 1,300 1,313
Current Tax — Overseas
Pravision for the year 1 1
1,301 1,314
Deferred Tax
Qrigination and reversal of temporary differences (see note 25(a)) (5) (13)
1,296 1,301

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for at the rate of 17.5% (2006 : 17.5%;) based on the estimated
assessable profits for the year. Overseas taxation has been provided for at the applicable rate on the

estimated assessable profits for the year.

Reconciliation between Tax Expense and Accounting Profit at Applicable Tax

Rates:

2007 20086
$ miltion $ million
Profit before taxation 8,759 8,143

Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates
applicable to profits in the countries concerned 1,443 1,386
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 4 57
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (151) {142)
Actual tax expenses 1,296 1,301
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10. Directors’ Emoluments and Senior Wlanagemeni Compansation
(a) Directors’ Emoluments

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the Company and its subsidiaries in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The emoluments of each of the
Directors of the Company are as follows:

2007

Basic Salaries, Retirement 2006
Allowances & Scheme Total Total
Fees Other Benefits Contributions Bonuses Emoluments Emoluments
Name of Directors S million $ million $ million % million $ million $ million
Executive Directors
Canning Fok Kin-ning
Chairman o2 0.27 - - 0.39 0.37
Tso Kai-sum
Group Managing Director 0.07 7.35 - 9.50 16.92 14.82
Susan Chow Woo Mo-fong g.07 0.03 - - 0.10 0.10
Andrew John Hunter 0.07 0.08 - - 0.15 2.93
Kam Hing-lam 0.07 0.05 - - 012 0.12
Francis Lee Lan-yee
Director & General Manager
{Engineering) 0.07 4.55 - 4.11 8.73 8.40
Victor Li Tzar-kuoi 0.07 0.37 - - 0.44 0.29
Neil Douglas McGee M1
Group Finance Director 0.07 3.82 0.28 2.42 6.59 6.23
Frank John Sixt 0.07 0.04 - - 0.11 0.1
Wan Chi-tin ®
Director & General Manager
{Corporate Development) 0.07 3.80 0.43 3.24 7.52 6.77
Non-executive Directors
Ronald Joseph Arculli & 0.14 0.05 - - 0.19 0.20
George Colin Magnus 0.07 0.02 - - 0.09 0.08
Holger Kluge @® 0.14 - - - 0.14 0.14
Ralph Raymond Shega @@« 0.16 0.03 - - 0.19 0.19
Wong Chung-hin @@ 0.18 0.09 - - 0.25 0.25
Ewan Yee Lup-yuen @ 0.07 0.03 - - 0.10 0.10
Total for the year 2007 1.49 20.58 0.69 19.27 42.03 40.91
Total for tha year 2006 1.49 21.36 0.72 17.34 40.91

Notas:

(1) During the year, Mr. Neil Douglas McGee received diractor's fees of THB255,000 from Ratchaburi Power Company, Limited, an

associgle of the Group. The director's feas were then paid back to the Company.

2} Independent non-executive directors.
3) Members of the Audit Committee.

4) Members of the Remuneration Cornmittes,

(5} Ceased to be Group Finance Director with effect from 1st February 2006.

(8) Assumed position of Group Finance Director with effect from 1st February 2006.

(7) Rasigned as a director with effect from 2nd January 2008.
(8} Mr. Wan Chi-tin's title has bean changed to Director of Engineering (Planning & Developrnent} with effect from 1st March 2008.




(b} Senior Management Compensation
The five highest paid individuals in the Group included four directors (2006 : four) whose total emoluments
are shown above. The emoluments of the other one individual (2006 : one individual) who comprises the
five are set out below:

2007 2006

$ million $ million

Salaries and other benefits 3.80 3.79
Retirement scheme contributions 0.39 0.37
419 4,16

The total emoluments of the individual (2006 : one individual) are within the following bands:

2007 2006
Number Number
$4,000,001 to $4,500,000 1 1

1. Scheme of Control Transfers
The financial operations of The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited (“HEC™), a whoelly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, are governed by a Scheme of Control {"SOC") agreed with the Hong Kong SAR Government
which provides for HEC to earn a Permitted Return {see note 2({u){i)). Any difference between this Permitted
Return and the SOC net revenue as calculated in accordance with the SOC must be transferred to/{from) a
Development Fund from/{to) the Profit and Loss Account of HEC, Where the SOC net revenue is less than the
Permitted Return, the amount transferred from the Development Fund to the Profit and Loss Account shall not
exceed the balance of the Development Fund. In addition, 8% of the average balance of the Development Fund
is transferred from the Profit and Loss Account of HEC to a Rate Reduction Reserve, which is subseguently
rebated to customers. Movements in the Development Fund and Rate Reduction Reserve are as follows:

(@) Development Fund

2007 2006

$ million $ million
At 1st January - -
Transfer from the Profit and Loss Account 14 -

At 31st December 14 -
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1. Scheme of Control Transfers cortnuea)
(b) Rate Reduction Reserve

2007 2006

$ million $ million
At 1st January - -
Transfer from the Profit and Loss Account 1 -
At 31st December 1 -

12. Dividends
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the year

2007 2006

$ million $ million
Interim dividend declared and paid of 58 cents per ordinary share
(2006 : 58 cents per ordinary share} 1,238 1,238
Final dividends proposed after the balance sheet date of $1.43
per ordinary share (2006 : $1.27 per ordinary share} 3,052 2,710

4,290 3,948

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date is based on 2,134,261,654 ordinary shares
(2006 : 2,134,261,654 ordinary shares), being the total number of issued shares at the year end. The final
dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet
date.

(b) Dividends payable to equity sharehoiders of the Company attributable to the
previous financial year, approved and paid during the year

2007 2006

$ million $ million
Final dividend and special dividend in respect of the previous financial year, - '
approved and paid during the year:
Ordinary — $1.27 per ordinary share (2006 : $1.01 per ordinary share) 2,710 2,156
Special - $nil per ordinary share (2006 : $0.73 per ordinary share) - 1,558
2,710 3,714

13. Earnings per Share
The calculation of earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $7,448 million (2006 : $6,842 million} and 2,134,261,654 ordinary shares (2006 : 2,134,261,654
ordinary shares) in issue throughout the year.

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 31st December 2007 and
2006.




14, Fixed Assets

Interests in
Leasehold
Land Held
Site Plant, for Own Use
Fermation Machinery Assets under Total
and and under Operating Fixed
£ million Buildings  Equipment Construction Sub-total Leases Assets
Group
Cost:
At 1st January 2006 12,045 47,453 5,524 65,022 2,818 67,840
Additions - 228 2,081 2,309 {4) 2,305
Transfers between categories 1,330 3,820 {5,250) - - -
Disposals 2) (170} - 72 (3) (175)
At 31st December 2006 13,373 51,431 2,365 67,159 2,811 69,970
At 1st January 2007 13,373 51,431 2,355 67,159 2,811 69,970
Additions 5 285 1,454 1,744 3 1,747
Transfers between categories 54 1,132 (1,186} - - -
Disposals (3) {120} - (123) 1) {124)
At 31st December 2007 13,429 52,728 2,623 68,780 2,813 1,583
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortisation:
At 1st January 2006 3,496 17,708 - 21,204 378 21,682
Written back on disposals (1) (1286) - (127) - {127)
Charge for the year 335 1,629 - 1,964 85 2,018
At 31st December 2006 3,830 19,211 - 23,041 433 23,474
At 1st January 2007 3,830 19,211 - 23,041 433 23,474
Written back on disposals (1) (82) - (83) - {83}
Charge for the year 364 1,723 - 2,087 57 2,144
At 31st December 2007 4,193 20,852 - 25,045 490 25,535
Net Book Value: . .
At 31st December 2007 9,236 31,876 2,623 43,735 2,323 46,058
At 31st December 2006 9,543 32,220 2,386 44,118 2,378 46,486

The above are mainly electricity-related fixed assets in respect of which financing costs capitalised during the
year amounted to $111 million (20086 : $221 million).

The Group’s leasehold land at 31st December 2007 is held in Hong Kong and comprises $50 million {2006:
$50 million) and $2,273 million {2006 : $2,328 million) of long-term and medium-term leasehold land
respectively.

Depreciation charges for the year included $124 milion (2006 : $132 million}, retating to assets utilised in
development activities which has been capitalised.
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15.

16.

Interest in Subsidiaries
Company

2007 2006
% million $ million
Unlisted shares, at cost 2,425 2,417
Loan capital {see note below) 21,845 19,646
Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,531 4,929
28,801 26,992

Loan capital is paid to The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited. These interest free loans, defined as “Loan
Capital” in the Scheme of Control Agreement effective 1st January 1994, are not repayable without the prior
agreement of the Government.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and no fixed repayment terms,

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Appendix 2 on page 108.

interest in Associates
Group

2007 2006
$ million $ million
Share of net assets 4,131 1,750
Loans to unlisted associates (see note below)} 4,748 4,269
Amounts due from unlisted associates (see note below}) 192 320
9,071 6,339

The loans to unlisted associates are unsecured, interest bearing at rates ranging from 6.28% p.a. to 13.79%
p.a. (2006 : 6.28% p.a. to 13.79% p.a.) and not due within five years.

Included in the loans to unlisted associates are subordinated loans totalling $4,652 million (2006 : $4,206
million). The rights in respect of these loans are subordinated to the rights of any other lenders to the
associates and they are treated as part of the investment in the associates.

The amounts due from unlisted associates are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed repayment terms but are
not due within one year.

Neither the lcans to unlisted associates nor the amounts due from unlisted associates are past due or impaired.

The shares of an associate owned by the Group were pledged as part of the security arrangement for project
financing facilities made available to that associate. The carrying value of the associate as at 31st December
2007 was $281 million (2006 : $75 million).




The financial guarantees issued by the Company in respect of banking facilities available to associates have
been disclosed in note 33.

Particulars of the principal associates are set out in Appendix 3 on page 109.

Summarised Financial Information based on the unaudited Management Accounts of the associates is as

follows:
2007 2008
$ million $ rnillion
Assets 101,966 60,473
Liabilities (84,839) {52,893)
Equity 17,127 7,580
Revenues 17,618 10,475
Profit 1,579 806

17. Ctrher Non-current Financial Assets
Group

2007 2006
$ miilion $ million
Unlisted available-for-sale equity securities, at cost 66 1,687

The Group has increased its influence over unlisted available-for-sale investment, Northern Gas Networks
Holdings Limited ("NGN"), by participating in the financial and opsrating policy decisions of NGN since the
appointment of a director of the Company to the NGN Board and four Board Committees. Accordingly, this
unlisted available-for-sale investment, the cost of which was $1,621 million, has been accounted for as an
associate of the Group with effect from 1st January 2007,

18. (nventorizs

Group
2007 2006
$ million $ million
Work in progress 3 2
Coal, fuel oil and liquefied natural gas 255 204
Stores and materials (see note below) 281 278
539 484

Included in stores and materials is capital stock of $177 million {2006 : $176 million) which was purchased for
the future maintenance of capital assets.
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12. Trade and Cther Receivables

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2008
$ million % million $ million $ million
Trade debtors {see note below) 643 635 - -
Other receivables 519 452 94 49
1,162 1,087 94 49

Derivative financial instruments

- held as cash flow/fair value hedging

instruments 10 19 5 -
Deposits and prepayments 25 13 3 2
1,197 1,119 102 51

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

Debtors' ageing is analysed as follows:

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ million $ million $ million $ million

Current 600 596 - -

1 to 3 months overdue 32 29 - -
More than 3 months cverdue but

less than 12 months overdue 11 10 - -

Total trade debtors 643 635 - -

Electricity bills issued to domestic, small industrial, commercial and miscellaneous customers for glectricity
supplies are due upon presentation whereas maximum demand customers are allowed a credit period of
16 working days. If settlements by maximum demand customers are recsived after the credit period, then a
surcharge of 5% can be added to the electricity bills.

The Group's and the Company's trade debtors are individually assessed for impairment. Any impairment losses
are written off against the trade debtors directly. No separate account is maintained for impairment losses.

Trade debtors of electricity charges under the categories "1 to 3 months overdue” and "More than 3 months
overdue but less than 12 months overdue” of the above ageing analysis that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade debtors of electricity charges that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers. The Hongkong Electric Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary company, obtains sufficient
collateral in the form of security deposits from customers (see nots 30(a)} and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable.




20.

219.

Fueg! Clause Account

The surcharge per unit of electricity sales was 5.9 cents from 1st January 2007 (2006 : 4.9 cents). Movements

on the Fuel Clause Account were as follows:

Group
2007 2006
$ million $ million
At 1st January 566 1,079
Transfer to profit or loss 413 15
Surcharge during the year (643) (528)
At 31st December 336 566

This account, inclusive of interest, has been and will continue to be used to stabilise electricity tariffs (see note

2(u)).

The outstanding amount of Fuel Clause Account was neither past due nor impaired (see note 2(u)(ji}).

Bani Deposits and Cash

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
% million % miltion $ million 8 million
Deposits with banks and other financial
institutions with three months or less to
maturity when placed 8,070 10,435 8,052 10,417
Cash at bank and in hand 8 27 - -
Cash and cash equivatents for the purpose of
cash flow statement 8,078 10,462 8,052 10,417
Deposits with banks and other financial
institutions with more than three months to
maturity when placed 4,102 - 4,102 -
12,180 10,462 12,154 10,417
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22.

23.

Trade and Other Payables

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ million % million $ million 3 million
Creditors measured at amortised cost
{see note below) 1,068 1,090 43 37
Derivative financial instruments
- held as cash ftow/fair value hedging
instruments 3 5 - -
1,071 1,095 43 37
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year.
Creditors' ageing is analysed as follows:
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ million $ miliion $ million $ million
Due within 1 month or on demand 474 349 11 3
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 240 267 - -
Due after 3 months but within 12 months 321 441 6 5
1,035 1,057 17 8
Other payables 33 33 26 29
1,068 1,090 43 37
Non-current Interest-bearing Borrowings
Group
2007 2006
$ million $ million
Bank loans 10,092 11,278
Current portion (1,191} (577)
8,901 10,701
Hong Kong dollar notes (see note below) 3,403 3,407
Current portion (1,000) (512)
2,403 2,895
Total 11,304 13,596




2¢.

Hong Kong dollar fixed rate notes bear interest at rates between 4.13% p.a. to 4.55% p.a. (2006 : 4.13% p.a.
to 7.35% p.a.), while interest on fioating rate notes is determined with reference to the Hong Kong Interbank

Offered Rate. Details of issuers of Hong Kong dollar notes are set out in Appendix 2 on page 108. None of the
non-current interest-bearing borrowings is expected to be settled within one year.

These borrowings have final maturities extending up to 2016 and are repayable as follows:

Hong Kong
Bank Loans Dollar Notes Total
$ million 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Within 1 year 1,191 577 1,000 512 2,191 1,089
After 1 year but within 2 years 1,300 2,700 - - 1,300 2,700
After 2 years but within 5 years 7,601 5,751 507 1,000 8,108 5,751
After 5 years - 2,250 1,896 1,895 1,896 4,145
10,092 11,278 3,403 3,407 13,495 14,685
perivetive Fingncizl Instruments
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ million $ million $ million $ million
Derivative financial instruments used for hedging:
Cross currency swaps - 4 - -
Interest rate swaps 113 56 - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts 9 - 5 -
Total 122 60 5 -
Current portion of derivative financial instruments
{see notes 19 and 22) (7) (14) (5) -
115 46 - -
Represented by:
Derivative financial instruments assets 122 47 - -
Derivative financial instruments liabilities (7} (1) - -
115 46 - -
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25. Deferred Taxation
(a} Movements in deferred taxation during the year are as follows:

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ million $ million $ million $ million
At 1st January (5,431) (5,368) 1 13
Credited/{charged) to profit or l0ss
(see note 9(a)) 5 13 (1) (3)
Charged to reserves (18) (78) - (9)
At 31st December (5,444) {5,431} - 1
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ million $ million $ million $ miltion

Net deferred tax assets recognised on
the Balance Sheet - 1 - 1
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised

on the Balance Sheet

(5,444) {5,432}

At 31st December

(5,444) (5,431)

(b) Major components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are set out below:
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ miltion $million  § million $ million
Tax effects of:
Depreciation allowances in excess of
the related depreciation (5,373) {5,338) - -
Fuel clause rebates (59) (99) - -
Others (12) 6 - 1

(5,444) (5,431)




28. Employee Retirement Benefils
{a} Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme

The Company and its principal subsidiaries operate two retirement schemes which cover substantially

all permanent staff in the Group. The Schemes are established under trust and are registered under the
Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. They are defined benefit in nature whereby the
retirement benefits are based on the employee's final basic salary and length of service. The assets of the
Schemes are held independently of the Group's assets in separate trustee administered funds.

The funding policy in respect of the Schemes is based on valuations prepared periodically by independent
professionally qualified actuaries at Watson Wyatt Hong Kong Limited. The policy on employer's
contributions is to fund the Schemes in accordance with the actuary’s recommendations on an on-going
basis, whereas emptoyees’ coniriputions, if applicable, are fixed at 5% of basic pay. The most recent
actuarial valuations of both Schemes have been carried out by the appointed actuary, represented by

Mr. A. Wong, FSA, FCIA as at 1st January 2007. The principal actuarial assumptions used include a long
term vyield gap, which is the long term expected rate of investment return net of satary increase, of 1.5% to
2.0% p.a., pension increase of 2.5% p.a., together with appropriate provisions for mortality rates, iurnover
and adjustments to reflect the short-term market expectation of salary increases. The valuations revealed
that the Scheme assets in each case were sufficient to cover the respective value of aggregate vested
liabilities as at the valuation date,

Retirement scheme costs charged to the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st December
2007 were determined in accordance with HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”, under which the Schemes are
required to be valued using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”.

il  The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 20086

$ million $ million $ million $ million
Present value of funded obligations (4,510) (4,410) {464) (438)
Fair value of scheme assets 5,086 4,599 421 31
576 189 (43) (47)

Represented by:

Employee retirement benefit assets 1,106 578 62 34
Employee retirement benefit liabilities (530} {389) (105} (81)
576 189 {43) (47)

The scheme assets did not include ordinary shares issued by the Company for the years ended 31st
December 2007 and 2006.

A portion of the above liability is expected to be settled after more than one year. However, it is not

practicable to segregate this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as future
contributions will also relate to future services rendered and future changes in actuarial assumptions
and market conditions.
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| 23. Employes Retivemant Benefils contnueq)
(a) Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme (continued)
|
| {i) Changes in present value of funded obligations are as follows:

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ million % million % million $ million

At 1st January 4,410 4151 438 393

Current service cost 162 161 10 10

Interest cost 173 183 17 18
Employee contributions paid

to schemes 26 27 2 2

Actuarial losses 420 125 1 42

Benefits paid {259) (237) (23) 27)

Curtailment gain (422} - (21) -

At 31st December 4,510 4,410 464 438

(i) Changes in fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ million $ million $ million $ million

At 1st January 4,599 3,986 39 337

Expected return 300 299 25 25

Actuarial gains 387 447 23 49
Employer contributions paid

to schemes 33 77 3 5
Employee contributions paid

to schemes 286 27 2 2

Benefits paid (259) (237) {23) 27

At 31st December 5,086 4,599 421 391

The Group expects to contribute $59 million to its defined benefit retirement schemes in 2008.




(iv)

(Income)/expense recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, prior to any capitalisation
of employment costs attributable to fixed assets additions, is as follows:

2007 2006

% million $ million

Current service cost 162 161
Interest cost 173 183
Expected return on Scheme assets {300} (299}
Curtailment gain {see note below) (422) -
{387) 45

A decision was made in December 2007 to restructure a defined benefit retirement scheme into

a defined contribution arrangement in 2008. This event triggered a curtailment gain as of 31st
December 2007 which was calculated based on the difference between the defined benefit
obligations of the scheme before curtaiiment and the amount of funds to be transferred to the new
scheme attributable to the members' services prior to 1st January 2008.

The (income)/expense is recognised in the following line items in the Consolidated Profit and Loss
Account:

2007 2006

$ million $ million

Direct costs 19 25
Other operating costs 16 20
Cther revenue and other net income (422) -
(387) 45

The actual return on scheme assets of the Group (taking into account all changes in the fair value of
the scheme assets exciuding contributions paid and received) was net income of $687 million {2006:
$746 million).

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Statement of Recognised
Income and Expense is as follows:

2007 2006

$ million $ miflion

At 1st January ' 117 439
Actuarial losses/(gains) recognised in the Statement of

Recognised Income and Expense during the year 34 (322)

At 31st December 151 117
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26. Employee Retirement Benefits (cortnued)
(a) Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme (continued)
The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total Scheme assets are as follows:

{vi)

(vii)

{wiii)

2007 20086
Hong Kong equities 17.4% 18.7%
Europe equities 13.0% 13.8%
North America equities 13.3% 15.4%
Other Asia Pacific equities 11.4% 13.0%
Global bonds 38.8% 34.0%
Deposits, cash and others 6.3% 51%

The principal actuarial assumptions used at 31st December {expressed as weighted average) are as

follows:
Group and Company
2007 20086
Discount rate 3.4% 4.0%
Expected rate of return on scheme assets 6.5% -7.0% 6.5%-7.0%
Long term salary increase rate 5.0% 5.0%
Future pension increase rate 2.5% 2.5%

The expected long-term rate of return on scheme assets is based on the portfolio as a whole and

not on the sum of the returns on individual asset categories.

The amounts of defined benefit retirement schemes for the current and previous years are as

follows:
Group Company

$ million ~ 2007 | 2006 2005 2004 2007 2006 2005 2004
Present value of

funded obligations (4,510) (44100 (4,151) (3,701) {464) (438) (393) {354)
Fair vatue of scheme assels 5,086 4,599 3,986 3,639 41 391 337 312
Surplus/(deficit) ! 576 189 {165) ©2) 43) 47) (56) (42)
Experience adjustments on:

Scheme liabilities (26) {45) )] (26) 8 (26) (10) {(18)

13 14

Scheme assets 387 447 B7 148 23 49




{b) Defined Contribution Retirement Scheme
Since the introduction of the Hong Kong Mandatory Pravident Fund Scheme {*the MPF Scheme™)
in December 2000, the Group has also participated in a master trust MPF Scheme operated by an
independent service provider. All new recruits not previously covered by the defined benefit retirement
schemes are enrolled in this scheme.

The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme with the employer and its employees each
contributing to the plan in accordance with the relevant scheme rules. The scheme rules provide for
voluntary contributions to be made by the employer calculated as a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries, Forfeited contributions of $0.9 million have been received during the year {2006 : $nil).

2007 20086
$ million $ million
Expenses recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account 3 3
Shere Cepile!
Company
Number 2007 2006
of Shares $ million % million
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of $1 each 3,300,000,000 3,300 3,300
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of $1 each 2,134,261,654 2,134 2,134

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's
residual assets.
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28. Total Equity

(a) Group

$ million

Share
Capital
{note 27)

Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company

Share  Exchange
Premium Reserve
{note 28(c)) {note 28(d)}

Proposed/
Declared
Dividend

Revenue
Reserve
{note 28(f)

Hedging
Reserve
{nate 28(e))

Total
Equity

Total equity at
1st January 2006

2,134

4,476 132

2 31,227 3,714

41,685

Exchange differences

on translation of:

- financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries

- gverseas associates

Cash flow hedge:

- effective portion of
changes in {air value,
nat of deferred tax

- transferred to profit
or loss

- transferred to initial
carrying amount of
non-financial
hedged items

Actuarial gains and losses
of defined benefit
retirement schemes,

net of deferred tax

- (33)
- 103

in 19 -

8 - -

- 316 -

(@3)
103

130

)

316

Net income recognised
directly in equity
Profit for the year

105 335 -
- 6,842 -

510
6,842

Total recognised income and
expense {or the year

Final dividend in respect of
the previous year
approved and paid
(see note 12(b))

Interim dividend paid
{see note 12(a))

Proposed final dividend
(ses note 12(a})

105 7A77 -

1
]

{3.714)
- {1,238) -

- {2,710 2,710

7,352

(3.714)

(1,238)

Total equity at
31st December 2006

2,134

4,476 202

107 34,456 2,710

44,085




$ million

Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company

Share
Capital
(note 27)

Share
Premium
{note 28(c))

Exchange
Reserve
(note 28(d)

Proposed/
Declared
Dividend

Revenue
Reserve
{note 28(f))

Hedging
Reserve
(ncte 28(e)}

Total
Equity

Total equity at
1st January 2007

2,134 4,476

202

107 34,456 2,710

44,085

Exchange differences on
translation of:

- financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries

- Overseas asscciates

Redesignation of
available-for-sale
investmant as an associate

{see nots 17)

Cash flow hedge:

- effective portion of
changes in fair value,
net of deferred tax

- transferred to profit
or loss

- transferred to initial
carrying amount of
non-financial
hedged items

Actuariat gains and losses
of defined benefit
retiremnent schemes,

net of deferred tax

282
1M

- {79) -

122 - -

282
17

{79)

122

20

Net income/(expense)
recognised directly
in equity

Profit for the year

453

125 (59) -
- 7,448 -

519
7,448

Total recognised income and
expense for the year

Final dividend in respect of
the previous yaar
approved and paid
(see note 12(b))

Interim dividend paid
{see note 12(a))

Proposed final dividend
{see note 12(a))

453

125 7,389 -

(2,710)

{1,238) -

(3,052) 3,052

7,967

(2,710)

{1,238)

Total equity at
31st December 2007

2,134 4,476

655

232 37,555 3,052

48,104

Group revenue reserves as at 31st December 2007 include the Group's share of the retained profits of its
associates amounting to $1,776 million {2006 : $1,534 miltion).
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28. Total Equity (continued)
(b) Company

Proposed/
Share Share Hedging Revenue Declared Total
Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Dividend Equity
S million inote 27)  [note 28(c)) (note 28(e))  (ncta 28(f)
Total equity at 1st January 2006 2,134 4,476 - 26,128 3,714 36,452
Actuarial gains and losses of
defined benefit retirement schemes,
net of deferred tax - - - (2) - (2)
Net expense recognised directly in equity - - - 2) - 2)
Profit for the year - - - 5,870 - 5,870
Total recegnised income and
expense for the year - - - 5,868 - 5,868
Final dividend in respect of the
previous year approved and paid
(see note 12(b)) - - - - (3,714) (3,714)
Interim dividend paid (see note 12{a)) - - - {1,238) - {1,238)
Proposed final dividend (see note 12(a)) - - - {2,710) 2,710 -
Total equity at 31st December 2006 2,134 4,476 - 28,048 2,710 37,368
Total equity at 1st January 2007 2,134 4,476 - 28,048 2,710 37,368
Cash flow hedge:
- effective portion of changes in
fair value, net of deferred tax - - 5 - - 5
Actuarial gains and losses of
defined benefit retirement schemes,
net of deferred tax - - - (18) - (18)
Nat income/{expense) recognised
directly in equity - - 5 (18} - (13)
Profit for the year - - - 7,552 - 7,562
Total recognised income and
expense for the year - - 5 7,534 - 7,539
Final dividend in respect of the
previous year approved and paid
(see note 12(b)) - - - - (2,710) {2,710}
Interim dividend paid {see note 12(a)) - - - {1,238} - {1,238}
Proposed final dividend {see noia 12(a}) - - - {3,052) 3,052 -
Total equity at 31st December 2007 2,134 4,476 5 31,292 3,052 40,959

All of the Company’s revenue reserve is available for distribution to equity shareholders. After the balance
sheet date, the directors proposed a final dividend of $1.43 (2006 : $1.27) per ordinary share, amounting

to $3,052 million (2006 : $2,710 million). This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the

balance sheet date.




()

(d)

()

{f)

(9)

Share Premium
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section 488 of the Hong Kong Cormpanies
Ordinance.

Exchange Reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations as well as the effective portion of any foreign exchange
differences arising from hedges of the net investment in these foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in notes 2(i)(ii) and 2(v).

Hedging Reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges (net of any deferred tax effect) pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for cash flow
hedges in note 2{i)({i).

Revenue Reserve
The revenue reserve comprises the accumulated profits retained by the Company and its subsidiariss and
includes the Group's share of the retained profits of its associates.

Capital Management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are:

- to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

- to provide returns to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost;

- to support the Group's stability and future growth; and

- to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the Group's risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure, taking into consideration the
future capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, forecast profitability, forecast operating
cash flows, forecast capital expenditure and projected investment opportunities.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-
to-equity ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt as bank overdrafts and interest-bearing
borrowings (as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less bank deposits and cash. Equity comprises
all components of equity (as shown in the consolidated balance sheet),

During 2007, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2006, was to control its net debt-to-equity
ratio in order to secure access to finance at a reasonable cost. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio,

the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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28. Total Equi‘ity {continued)
(g} Capital Management (continued}
The net debt-to-equity ratio at 31st December 2007 and 2006 was as follows:

Group

2007 2006

$ million $ million

Bank overdrafts - 4
Interest-bearing borrowings 13,495 14,685
Less: Bank deposits and cash (12,180) (10,482)
Net debt 1,315 4,227
Total equity 48,104 44,085
Net debt-to-equity ratic 3% 10%

During the current year, the Company acted as the guarantor in respect of certain loan facilities granted
o its subsidiaries and an associate, and fully complied with the capital requirements under the loan facility
agreements.

28. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from operations

2007 2008

$ million $ million
Profit betore taxation 8,759 8,143
Adjustments for:
Share of profits less losses of associates (524) (229)
Interest income (1,039) (724}
Dividend income from unlisted available-for-sale equity securities - (177}
Finance costs 647 432
Depreciation 1,963 1,832
Amortisation of leasehold land 57 55
Fixed assets written off 22 21
Net profit on sale of fixed assets (3) {8)
Exchange gains (13) (85}
Operating profit before changes in working capital 9,869 8,260
Increase in inventories (52) {53)
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables {43) 4
Decrease in Fuel Clause Account 230 513
Increase in trade and other payables 55 47
Increase in net employee retirement benefits (420) {32)

Cash generated from operations 9,639 9,739




30. Financial Instruments
The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks in the normal course of its
businesses. The Group is alsc exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments in other entities.
In accordance with the Group’s treasury policy, derivative financial instruments are only used to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from operational, financing and investment
activities. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

{a) Credit Risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables of electricity charges, bank
deposits and over-the-counter derivative financial instruments entered into for hedging purposes. The
Group has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables of electricity charges, The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary company, obtains collateral in the form of security deposits from customers in
accordance with the Supply Rules. The outstanding amount of deposits received from customers at 31st
December 2007 was $1,585 million (2006 : $1,537 millicn). The credit policy is set out in note 19.

The Group has a defined minimum credit rating requirement and transaction limit for counterparties when
dealing in financial derivatives or placing deposits to minimise credit exposure. The Group does not expect
any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk in respect of trade and other receivables of
electricity charges, as the five largest customers combined did not exceed 30% of the Group's total
turnover.

The maximurn exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset,
including derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet. Except for the financial guarantees given
by the Group as set out in note 33, the Group has not provided any other guarantee which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the balance sheet date is disclosed in note 33.

Disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables is
set out in note 19.




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

3C. Financial Instrumants (contnuca)

(b)

Liquidity Risk

The Group operates a central cash managemant system for all its subsidiaries in order to achieve a
better control of risk and minimise the costs of funds. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with loan covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term. The Group had undrawn committed bank facilities of $7,145 million at 31st

December 2007 (2006 : $5,686 million).

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's
and the Company's non-derivative financiat liabilities and derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payment computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date} and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay.

Group
2007
Total More than  More than
Contractual Within 1 Year but 2 Years but
Carrying Undiscounted 1 Year or less than less than  More than
$ million Amount Cash Flows on Demand 2 Years § Years 5 Years
Bank toans and
other borrowings and
interest accruals 13,579 {15,986) (2,820) (1,893) (9.120) (2,153}
Bank overdrafts - - - - - -
Trade and other payables
(excluding interest accruals) 988 (988) (988} - - -
Interest rate swaps
{net settled) {119) 133 ar 42 54 -
14,448 {16,841) (3,771) (1,851} {(9,066) (2,153}
Derivatives settled gross:
Foreign exchange forward
contracts held as cash flow
hedging instruments
(note 30(d)(i}): 3)
Outflow {1,560) {1,560) - - -
Inflow 1,568 1,568 - - -
Other foreign exchange
forward contracts
(note 30(d){ii}): (1)
Outflow (189) {187) 2 - -

Inflow

190

188




2006
Total More than More than
Contractual Within 1 Year but 2 Years but
Carrying Undiscounted 1 Year or less than less than  More than
$ miflion Amount Cash Flows on Demand 2 Years 5 Years 5 Years
Bank loans and
other borrowings and
interest accruals 14,784 (17.789) (1,788) (4,374) {6,954) {4,673)
Bank overdrafts 4 {4 (4) - - -
Trade and other payables
(excluding interest accruals) 988 {o88) {988) - - -
Interest rate and cross
currency swaps
(net settled) {62) 147 25 39 83 -
15,714 {18,634) {2,755) (4,335) {6,871) (4,673)
Derivatives settled gross:
Foreign exchange forward
contracts held as cash flow
hedging instruments
(note 30(d)(i): 1
CQutflow {140) (3136) (4) - -
Inflow 138 133 5 - -
Other foreign exchange
forward contracts
(note 30{d)ii)}: 4]
Outflow (152 (140) {10} {2) -
Inflow 154 141 11 2 -
Company
2007
Total More than  More than
Contractual Within 1 Year but 2 Years but
Carrying Undiscounted 1 Year or less than less than  Mora than
% million Amount Cash Flows on Demand 2 Years 5 Years 5 Years
Trade and other payables 43 (43) (43) - - -
2008
Total More than More than
Contractual Within 1 Year but 2 Years but
Carrying  Undiscounted 1 Year or less than less than Mcre than
$ million Amount Cash Flows on Demand 2 Years 5 Years 5 Years
Trade and other payables 37 (37) (37} - - -
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30. Financial instruments (continued;
{(c} Interest Rate Risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on its interest-bearing assets and liabilities. Cash flow
interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

(i)

(i}

Hedging

The Group’s policy is to maintain a balanced combination of fixed and variable rate debt to reduce
its interest rate exposure. The Group also uses interest rate derivatives to manage the exposure in
accordance with its treasury policy. At 31st December 2007, the Group had interest rate swaps with
a total notional amount of $7,554 million (2006 : $5,005 million).

The Group classifies interest rate swaps as cash flow or fair value hedges and states them at fair
value in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(i).

The fair values of swaps entered into by the Group at 31st December 2007 were recognised as
derivative financial instrument assets and liabilities amounting to $122 million (2006 : $59
million) and $9 million (2006 : $3 million) respectively.

Interest Rate Profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s and the Cornpany's net interest-
bearing assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date, after taking into account of the efiect of
interest rate swaps designated as cash flow or fair value hedging instruments (see (i) above).

Group
2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Interest Interest
Rate % $ million Rate % $ million
Net fixed rate assets/(liabilities)
Loans to associates 11.2 4,748 11.3 4,269
Bank loans and other borrowings j 54 (7,945) 5.6 (6,410)
(3,197) (2,141)
Net variable rate assets/(liabilities)
Cash at bank and in hand ‘ - 8 - 27
Deposits with banks and
other financial institutions 1 4.6 12,172 4.0 10,435
Bank overdrafts 6.8 - 7.8 (4}
Bank loans and other borrowings 4.4 (5,550) 4.3 (8,275)
Customers' deposits ‘ 1.3 (1,585) 2.3 (1,537)

5,045 646




{1l

Company
2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Interest Interest
Rate % $ million Rate % $ million
Net variable rate assets/(liabilities)
Deposits with banks and
other financial institutions 4.6 12,154 4.0 10,417

Sensitivity Analysis

At 31st December 2007, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would increase/decrease the Group's profit

for the year and revenue reserve by approximately $67 million (2006 : increase/decrease by
approximately $26 million). Other components of consolidated equity would increase/decrease by
approximately $6 million (2006 : increase/decrease by approximately $45 million) in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
point increase or decrease represents management's assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as for 20086.

(d) Currency Risk

fi)

fri)

Committed and Forecast Transactions

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they relate, as well as through
income from its overseas investments. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States dollars, Sterling pounds, Euros, Japanese Yen, Thai Baht, Australian dellars, Renminbi and
Canadian dollars.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to manage its foreign currency risk and classifies these
as cash flow hedges. At 31st December 2007, the Group had forward exchange contracts hedging
committed and forecast transactions with a net fair asset value of $8 million (2006 : $1 million
liability) recognised as derivative financial instruments.

Recogriised Assets and Liabilities

The net fair value of forward exchange contracts and currency swap contracts used by the Group as
economic hedges of monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at 31st December 2007 was
a $1 million asset {2006 : $1 million asset) and $nil {2006 : $4 million asset) respectively recognised
as derivative financial instruments.

Except for borrowings designated to hedge overseas investments (see note 30{d)(iii)), the Group’s
borrowings are either hedged into Hong Kong dollars or are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Given this, the management does not expect that there would be any significant currency risk
associated with the Group’s borrowings.
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37, Firgneiat nstruments oo

{d) Currency Risk (continued)

fig)

{iv)

Ovearseas Investments

Currency exposure arising from overseas investments is mitigated in part by funding a portion of the
investment through external borrowings in the same currency as the underlying investment. The fair
value of these borrowings at 31st December 2007 was $4,842 million (2006 : $3,757 million).

Exposure to Currency RHisk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company's exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from highly probable forecast transactions or recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

Group
2007
$ million usD THB JPY AUD EUR GBP RMB CAD
Trade and other payables 34 - 454 - - 1 - 8
Less: Trade and other receivables 8) (1) 1 - - - - -
Bank deposits and cash (804) (7 (8) - - (11} - -

Gross exposure arising from

recognised assels and liabilities (778) 8) 445 - - (10) - 8
Notional amounts of forward

exchange contracts used

as economic hedges (28) - (301) - - 9 - -
Net exposure arising from
recagnised assets and liabilities (806) (8 144 - - {1} - 8

Estimated forecast purchases
{see note below) 285 - 162 - - 1 4 -
Estimated forecast income - - (10) - (4) - -

Gross exposure arising from

forecast transactions 285 - 162 (10) - (3) 4 -
Noticnal amounts of forward

exchange contracts used as

cash flow hedging instruments {224) - {91) 10 - 3 - -

Net exposure arising from
forecast transactions 61 - 71 - - - 4 -

Overall net exposure (745) (8) 215 - - m 4 8




2006

3 million usD THB JPY AUD EUR GBP RMB CAD
Trade and other payables 31 - 289 - 1 1 - -
Less: Bank deposits and cash - (12) (7) - - - - -
Gross exposure arising from

recognised assets and liabilities 31 {12) 282 - 1 1 - -
Notienal amounts of forward

exchange contracts used

as economic hedges (12) - (238) - (1) (1) - -
Net exposure arising from

recognised assets and liabilities 19 {12) 47 - - - - -
Estimated forecast purchases

(see note below) 290 - 863 - - 1 - -
Notional amounts of forward

exchange contracts used as

cash flow hedging instruments {4) - (749) - - - - -
Net exposure arising from

forecast transactions 286 - 114 - - 1 - -
Overall net exposure 305 (12) 161 - - 1 - -
The forecast purchases of fuel are for one year’'s commitment only.
Company

2007
$ million UsD AUD GBP
Trade and other payables - - -
Less: Trade and other receivables {7} - -
Bank deposits and cash (804) - {11)

Gross exposure arising from recognised assets and liabilities {811) - 1
Notional amounts of forward exchange contracts used as economic hedges {18} - 9
Net exposure arising from recognised assets and liabilities {829) - 2)
Estimated forecast purchases 8 - -
Estimated forecast income - (10) (4)
Gross exposure arising from forecast transactions 8 {10) {4)
Notional amounts of forward exchange contracts used as cash flow

hedging instruments {25) 10 4
Net exposure arising from forecast transactions {(17) - -
Overall net exposure {8486) - (2)
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30. Financizl :nstruments wcentnu .
(d) Currency Risk (continued)

v}

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table indicates that a 10 percent strengthening in the following currencies against
Hong Kong dollars at the balance sheet date would have increased/(decreased) the Group's profit
for the year (and revenue reserve) and other components of consolidated equity.

Group
2007 2006

Effect on Effect on
Profit for Effect on Profit for Effect on
the year and Other the year and Other
Revenue Components Revenue Components
Reserve of Equity Reserve of Equity
$ million $ million $ million $ million
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
{Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease} (Decrease)
Australian dollars - 287 - 237
Thai Baht - 28 - {7}
Japanese Yen - 1 - 5
Pounds Sterling 17 a5 - -
Canadian dollars (5) 1 - -
Renminbi - 2 - -

A 10 percent weakening in the above currencies against Hong Kong dollars at the balance sheet
date would have had an equal but opposite effect on the Group’s profit for the year (and revenue
reserve) and other compoenents of consolidated equity.

This sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to each of the Group’s entities’
exposure to currency risk for both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date, and that all other variables, in particutar interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet date. In this respect, it
is assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would
be materially unaftected by any changes in movement in value of the United States dollar against
other currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an aggregation
of the efiects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and equity measured in their respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the balance
sheet date for presentation purposes. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as for
2006.




(e)

Equity Price Risk
The Group is exposed to equily price changes arising from unlisted available-for-sale equity securities
which are held for strategic purposes (see note 17).

All of the Group's unlisted investments are held for long term strategic purposes. Their performance is
reviewed regularly based on information available to the Group.

These unlisted investments do not have a quoted market price in an active market and are stated at

cost. Any increase or decrease in impairment losses in respect of these investments would affect the
Group's net profit. As at the balance sheet date, none of these unlisted investments was considered to be
impaired. The review has been performed on the same basis as for 2006.

Fair Value
The carrying amounts of financial instruments are estimated to approximate their fair values.

Estimation of Fair Value
The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair value of
financial instruments,

() Securities
Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date without any deduction for
transaction costs, Unguoted equity investments do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and are measured at cost as their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

(i} Derivatives
The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market
rates at the balance sheet date. The fair value of interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps is
determined by discounting the future cash flows of the contracts at the current market interest and
foreign exchange rates.

(iii} Interest-bearing Bank Loans and Other Borrowings
The carrying amounts of bank loans and other borrowings are estimated to approximate their fair
values.

{iv) Financial Guarantees
The fair value of financial guarantees issued is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated
by reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of such information can be made.
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31. Operzting Lease
At 31st December 2007, the total future minimum lease payments by the Group under a non-cancellable
equipment operating lease are payable as follows:

Group
2007 2008
_ $ million $ million
Within 1 year 62 62
After 1 year but within 5 years 46 108
108 170

During the current year, under the terms of the non-cancellabte equipment operating lease agreement, the
lessee exercised the option to purchase all of the equipment at the fair market value at the end of the lease.

32. Commitments
The Group's commitments outstanding at 31st December and not provided for in the financial statements were

as foltows:
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ million $ million $ million $ million
Contracted for:
Capital expenditure 1,106 1,218 - -
Investment in associates 212 309 - -
Others 6 - - -
1,324 1,627 - _
Authorised but not contracted for:
Capital expenditure 8,436 8,674 - -
33. Coniingent Liabilities
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ million $ millien $ million $ millien
Financial guarantees have been issued in respect
of banking facilities available to (see note below):
Subsidiaries - - 4,156 3,757
Associates 2,482 - 2,482 -
Other guarantees given in respect of:
Subsidiaries 10 10 1,130 1,806
Others 210 210 - -

2,702 220 7,768 5,563




As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to the wholly-owned subsidiaries and an associate. The directors do not consider it probable thal a
claim will be made against the Company under any of the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at
the balance sheet date under the issued guarantees is disclosed above.

34, Wleteria! Related Party Transeactions
The Group had the following material transactions with related parties during the year:

{a) Associates
Interest income received/receivable from associates in respect of the loans to associates amounted to
$519 million (2006 : $461 million) for the year, At 31st December 2007, the total outstanding interest
bearing loan balances due from associates were $4,748 million (2006 : $4,269 million). The outstanding
batances with associates are disclosed in note 18.

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts paid to the Company’s Diractors as
disclosed in note 10(a) and the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10(b), is as follows:

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ million $ million $ million $ million
Short-term employee benefits 63 63 38 38
Post-employment benefits 3 3 ] 1
66 66 39 39

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” {see note 8). At 31st December 2007, the total outstanding
amount due from the key management personnel was $0.3 million (2006 : $1 million).

{c) Subsidiaries
Management fees and services fees recharged by the Company to subsidiaries amounted to $129 million
(2006 : $138 million) for the year. At 31st December 2007, the outstanding balances with subsidiaries are
disclesed in note 15. The transactions and balances with subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.
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34. Material Related Party Transactions (contnued)
{d} Other Related Parties

On 30th October 2007, thg Company and Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“CKI"), a
substantial shareholder holding approximately 38.87% of the issued share capital of the Company,
entered into an agreement (“Agreement”} pursuant to which CKI agreed to procure the sale and the
Company agreed to procure the purchase by its subsidiary of 50% of the entire issued share capital of
Stanley Power Inc. (“Stanley”) as at the completion date of the Agreement (*Completion Date™). Stantey,
a wholly owned subsidiary of CKI, had made an offer (“Offer”) to purchase all of the outstanding units
{(“Units"} of TransAlta Power, L.P. (“TransAlta Power”) on the basis of CAD$8.38 (approximately HK$68.05)
per Unit. TransAlta Power owns a 49.99% partnership interest in TransAlta Cogeneration, L.P. which in
turn owns interests in five gas-fired cogeneration facilities in Alberta, Ontario and Saskatchewan, Canada
and in a coal-fired, mine mouth generation facility in Alberta.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the consideration paid by the Company to CKl was an amount equivalent to
(@) CAD$1,000,000 (approximately HK$8,120,000) being 50% of the initial capital in Stanley prior to the
Completion Date plus (b) 50% of the aggregate amount of : the amount paid by Stanley for the purchase
of the Units, the amount paid for the interest of the general partner of TransAlta Power in TransAlta Power
and the costs of the Offer and its related transactions (but excluding any amount or costs paid with the
initial share capital in Stanley), less {c) 50% of the amount outstanding on the Completion Date under the
bridge facility (“Bridge Facility”) obtained by Stanley for paying the costs of the acquisition of the Units.
The Company also agreed to assume on the Completion Date the guarantee in respect of the Bridge
Facility to the extent of 50% of its amount on a several basis,

The Agreement and its related transactions were approved by independent shareholders {i.e. shareholders
other than CKI and its associates holding shares in the Company) of the Company at an extracrdinary
general meeting held on 27th December 2007 and completion of the Agreement took place on 28th
December 2007.

Contingent liabilities in relation to the guarantees issued in connection with this acquisition are included in
note 33.

35. Substantial Shareholder of the Company
The Company is a Hong Kong listed company and the shares are widely held by the public. Cheung Kong
infrastructure Holdings Limited currently holds approximately 38.87% of the issued share capital of the
Company and is a substantial shareholder of the Company.

36. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The methads, estimates and judgements the directors used in applying the Group's accounting policies have
a significant impact on the Group's financial position and operating results. Some of the accounting policies
require the Group to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are inherently uncertain. In addition to
notes 26 and 30 which contain infermation about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation
of defined benefit retirement obligations and financial instruments, certain critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group's accounting policies are described below.




37.

38.

(a) Depreciation and amortisation
Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any. Interests in leaseheld land held for own use under operating leases are amortised on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the leased assets and the lease term.
Both the period and methods of amortisation are reviewed annually. The depreciation and amortisation
expenses for future periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

(p) Impairment
In considering the impairment losses that may be required for the Group's assets which include available-
for-sale securities and fixed assets, the recoverable amount of the asset needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the vatue in use, It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling price because quoted market prices for these assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the assets are discounted to their present
value, which require significant judgement. The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount.

Any increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would affect the net profit in future years,

Rossioie Impzect of Amendments, New Standards and Interoretations [ssued
out not yet effective for the Year Ended 31st December 2007

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31st December 2007 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and financial
paosition.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or amended disclosures in the financial statements:
Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKAS 23 {Revised) Borrowing Costs 1st January 2009
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments 1st January 2009
HK{IFRIC) Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1st January 2008

Comparative Figures
As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures, and the amendments to HKAS 1,
Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosures, certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform with changes in disclosure in the current year and to show separately comparative amounts in respect
of items disclosed for the first time in 2007. Further details are disclosed in note 3.




Notes to the Financial Statements

{Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

Apoendix 1
Segment Information
{a} Business Segments
For the year ended 31st December

Infrastructure Unallocated
Sales of Electricity Investments & Other ltems Consolidated

$ million 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenue
Group turnover 12,478 12,139 - - 46 42 12,524 12,181
Other revenue 426 26 46 78 36 216 508 320
Segment revenue 12,904 12,165 46 78 82 258 13,032 12,501
Result
Segment result ' 7,858 7,347 46 78 (74} 185 7,830 7.610
Interest income - - 519 461 520 263 1,039 724
Finance costs {369) (186) (265) (234) - - (634} (420}
Operating profit 7,489 7,161 300 3058 446 448 8,235 7.914
Share of profits less losses

of associates - - 523 228 1 _ 1T 524 229
Profit before taxation 7,489 7,161 823 533 447 449 8,759 8,143
lncome tax {1,290} (1.286) (1 (2) (5) (13) (1,2968) (1,301)
Profit after taxation 6,199 5875 822 531 442 436 7,463 6,842
Scheme of CGontrol transfers (15} - - - - - (15) -
Profit attributable to

equity shareholders 6,184 5,875 822 _ 531 442 _ 436 7,448 6,842
At 31st December
Assets
Segment assets 49,107 49,209 183 1,733 134 36 49,424 50,978
Interest in associates - - 9,062 6,329 9 10 9,071 6,339

Bank deposits and cash - - - 12,180 10462 12,180 10,462

Consolidated total assets 49,107 49,209 9,245. 8,062 12,323 10,508 70,675 67,779

Liabilities
Segment liabilities 2,848 2,743 118 150 227 129 3,193 3,022
Current and deferred

taxation 5,836 5,972 19 1 13 10 5,868 5,983
Interest-bearing borrowings 8,559 10,937 4,936 3,751 - 1 13,495 14,689
Rate Reduction Reserve 1 - - - - - 1 -
Development Fund 14 - - - - - 14 -
Consolidated total liabilities 17,258 19,652 5,073 3,802 240 140 22,571 23,694

Other information
Capital expenditure 1,747 2,304 - - - 1 1,747 2,305
Depreciation and

amortisation 2,144 2,019 - - - - 2,144 2,019




{b) Geographical Segments
For the year ended 31st December

Unallocated
Hong Kong Australia & Other ltems Consolidated

$ million 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 20086 2007 2006
Revenue
Group turnover 12,503 12,166 - - 21 15 12,524 12181
Other revenue 460 65 48 78 2 177 508 320
Segment revenue 12,963 12,231 46 78 23 192 13,032 12,501
Result
Segment result 7,885 7,394 45 82 (100) 134 7,830 7,610
Interest income 520 263 519 460 - 1 1,039 724
Finance costs (369) {1886) (257) (234} (8) - (634) (420)
Operating profit 8,036 7,471 307 308 {108) 135 8,235 7,914
Share of profits less losses

of associates 1 1 327 254 196 {26) 524 229
Profit before taxation 8,037 7,472 634 562 88 109 8,759 8,143
Income tax (1,295) {1,299} (2) {2) 1 - (1,298) (1,301)
Profit after taxation 6,742 6,173 632 560 B89 109 7,463 6,842
Scheme of Control transfers (15) - - - - - (15) -
Profit attributable to

equity shareholders 6,727 6,173 632 560 B89 109 7,448 6,842
At 31st December
Assets
Segment assets 49,220 49,234 115 46 89 1,698 49,424 50,978
Interest in associates 9 10 7,030 6,254 2,032 75 9,071 6,339
Bank deposits and cash - - - - 12,180 10,462 12,180 10,462

Consolidated total assets 49,229 49,244 7,145 6,300 14,301 12,235 70,675 67,779

Other information
Capital expenditure 1,747 2,304 - - - 1 1,747 2,305
Depreciation and

amortisation 2,144 2019 - - - - 2,144 2,019




Notes to the Financial Statements

Appendix 2
Principal Subsidiaries

The following list conlains only the particulars of subsidiaries ag at 31st Decernber 2007 which principally affected the
results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Issued Percentage of Place of
Share Capitat and Equity Held Incorporation/
Name of Company Debt Securities by the Company Operation Principal Activity
The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited HK$2,411,600,000 100 Hong Kong  Electricity generation
. and supply
Associated Technical Services Limited HK$1,000,000 100 Hong Kong Consuiting
Cavendish Construction Limited HK$4,200,000 100 Hong Keng Contracting
Fortress Advertising Company Limited HK$2 100 Hong Keng Advertising
Hengkong Etectric Fund HK$20 100 Hong Kong Trustee
Management Limited
Gusbury Enterprises Incorporation ussg2 100 Panama/Hong Kong Investment holding
Hengkong Electric US$1 100 British Virgin Islands/ Investment holding
{Naturat Gas) Limited Hong Kong
Hongkong Electric {Cayman) Limited US$1 and 100 Cayman Istands/ Financing
HK$1,000 million Hong Kong
Hong Kong dollar notes
{see note 23)
Hongkong Electric Finance US$1 100 Cayman islands/ Financing
(Cayman) Limited Hong Kong
Fenning Limited HK$20 100 Hong Kong Contracting
Dunway tnvestment Limited US$H 100 British Virgin Islands lnvestment
Coty Limited US$ 100 British Virgin Islands tnvestment holding
Bonlink Investment Limited Uss1 100 British Virgin isfands Investment holding
Hongkong Efectric International Limiteg US$50,000 100 British Virgin Islands Investment holding
Hongkong Electric Finance Limited US$1 and 100" British Virgin Istands/ Financing
HK$2,400 million Hong Kong
Hong Kong dollar notes
{see note 23)
HE! Investment Holdings Limited HK$2 100" Hong Kong Investment hotding
Sigerson Business Corp. Us$1 100*  Britigh Virgin Islands Investment holding
HEI Utilities (Malaysian) Ltd A$637,510 100*  British Virgin Islands Investment holding
HEI Power (Malaysian) Ltd A$52,510 100" British Virgin Istands Investment holding
Hong Kong Electric International Finance AS1 100" Australia Financing
(Australia) Pty Limited
HEI Transmission Finance (Australia) A$12 100" Australia Financing
Pty Limited
HEI Distribution Finance {Australia) A$100 1007 Australia Financing
Pty Limited
Riverland Investment Limited UsH 100*  British Virgin Islands Investment holding
Hongkong Electric International Power us$z 100" Mauritiug Investment holding
(Mauritius) Limited
HEI Electrigity Distribution Us$100 100 Malaysia Investment holding
(Malaysian} Limited
Kentson Limited USs$i 100*  British Virgin Islands investment holding
Alpha Central Profits Limited US$1 100" British Virgin Islands Investment holding
Beta Central Prefits Limited GBP63,772,525 100* United Kingdom Investment holding
HKE Fund Management Limited S.A r.). EUR12,500 100” Luxembourg Investment holding
HEI China Limited US$1 100" British Virgin Islands Investment holding
Hongkong Electric Yunnan Dali Wind HK$1 100° Hong Kong Investment holding
Power Company Limited
Dako International Limited Us$1 100" British Virgin Islands Investment holding
More Advance Development Limited HK$10,000 100* Hong Kong investment holding
HE! Tap Limited S. A. CAD$1,050,000 100" Belgium Investment holding

* Indirectly held




Appendix 3
Principal Associates

The following list contains only the particulars of associates as at 31st December 2007 which principally affected the

results or assets of the Group:

Place of
Issued Percentage of Group's Incorporation/
Name of Associate Share Capital Effective Interest Operation Principal Activity
Secan Limited HK$10 20% Hong Kong  Property development
CKl Spark Holdings No. One Limited AUD303,146,236 54.76% Bahamas/Australia  Electricity distribution
(see note (a} below)
CKI Spark Ho!dings No. Two Limited AlJD498,038,537 54.76% Bahamas/Australia  Electricity distribution
(see note (b} below)
Hong Kong Tetfecommunication UsD150 33.33% Malaysia Investment holding
Holdings (Malaysian) Limited
{see note (C) below)
Ratchaburi Power Company, Limited THB5,370,000,000 25% Thailand  Electricity generation
{see note (d) below) and supply
Northern Gas Networks Holdings GBPS71,670,980 19.9% United Kingdom (Gas distribution
Limited (see note {g) below}
Stanley Power Inc. CAD$2,000,000 50% Canada  Electricity generation
(see note (f) below)
Huaneng Hongkong Electric RMB188,140,000 45% People's Republic  Electricity generation

Dali Wind Power Company Limited
(see note (g) below)

Notes:

of China

(a) CKIi Spark Holdings No. One Limited hoids a 51% attributable interest in CHEDHA Holdings Pty Limited (“CHEDHAH"), CHEDHAH is the holding
company of Powercor and CitiPower. Powercor operates and manages an electricity distribution business in the State of Victoria, Australia.
CitiPower, which is similar to Powercor, is one of five electricity distributors in the State of Victoria, Australia. The Group holds 54.76% of CK!
Spark Holdings No. One Limited but the Group does not have effective control over it and, therefors, it has been accounted for as an associate.

b) CKlt Spark Holdings No. Two Limited holds a 51% attributable interest in ETSA Utilities Partnership (“ETSA"). ETSA is an unincorporated body
and operates and manages the electricity distribution business in the State of South Australia. The Group holds 54.76% of CKI Spark Hoidings
No. Two Limited but the Group does not have effective control over it and, therefore, it has been accaunted for as an associate.

{c) Hong Kong Telecommunication Holdings (Malaysian) Limited through its wholly-cwned subsidiary holds certain telecommunication assels in

Australia.

{d) Ratchaburi Power Company, Limited is incorporated in Thalland and is principally engaged in the developmont, financing, construction,

instaliation, testing, operation and maintenance of a power generating station in Thailand,

fe) Northern Gas Networks Hoidings Limited (*NGN") operates a gas distribution netwark in the North of England. The directors consider that the
Group is able to axercise significant influence over the financial and operating policy decisions of NGN and, accordingly, it is accounted for as

an associate.

M

g -

Staniey Power Inc. indirectly hoids a 49.99% partnership interest in TransAlta Cogeneration L.P.. TransAlta Cogeneration L.P. owns interests in
five gas-fired cogeneration facilities in Alberta, Ontario and Saskatchewan and in a coal-fired, mine-mouth generation facility in Aiberta, Canada.
Huaneng Hongkong Electric Dali Wind Power Company Limited is engaged in the wind power development, operate, management and supply
of electricity in the People's Republic of China.




Five-year Group Profit Summary and
Group Balance Sheet

Five-Year Group Profit Summary

HK$ miltion _ 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Turnover _ 12,524 12,181 11,622 11,407 11,250
Operating profit 8,235 7,914 7,167 7,017 7,304
Profit on disposal of interest in associates - - 1,560 - -
Share of profits less losses of associates 524 229 1,050 419 71

Profit before taxation 8,759 8,143 9777 7,436 7,465
Income tax (1,296) {1,301) {1,215) (1,180) (1,598)
Profit after taxation 7,463 6,842 8,562 6,256 5,867
Scheme of Controf transfers (15} - - - 133
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 7,448 6,842 8,562 6,256 6,000

Five-Year Group Balance Sheet

HK$ miltion 2007 . 2006 2005 2004 2003
Fixed assets 46,058 486,496 46,258 45,276 45,024
Interest in associates 9,071 6,339 5,780 8,814 8,175
Other nan-current financial assets 66 1,687 1,682 39 7
Other non-current assets 1,228 626 213 296 236
Net current assets/{liabilities) 10,566 9,892 5,525 1,242 (845)
Total assets less current liabilities 66,989 65,040 59,458 55,767 52,597
Non-current liabilities (18,870} (20,955) (17,773) (18,195} (17,531)
Rate Recduction Reserve (1} - - - (5)
Developrnent Fund ‘ (14) - - - -
Net assets _ 48,104 44,085 41,685 37,572 35,061
Share capital 2,134 2,134 2,134 2,134 2,134
Reserves 7 45,970 41,951 39,551 35,438 32,927
Capital and reserves _ 48,104 44 085 41,685 37,572 35,061
Note:

In 2005, the Group adopted a number of new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA as part of its ongoing programme to align HKFRSs with
International Accounting Standards. Under the transitional arrangements, a number of the new standards were adopted prospectively, such as HKAS
32, Financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation and HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement and Amendments to HKAS
19, Employee Benefits — Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures, whilst others such as HKAS 28, Investments in Associales were
adopted retrospectively. (n the above analysis, the figuras for 2004 and earlier years have only baen restated to the extent that the new accounting
poficies were adopted retrospectively.




Ten-Year Scheme of Control Statement

The Hongkang Electric Company, Limited

(€)

(b)

Scheme of Control

The activities of The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited (*HEC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
are subject to a Scheme of Control (*SQC") agreed with the Hong Kong SAR Government. This SOC was
renewed with effect from 1st January 1994 and is effective untit 31st December 2008. During this period, each
party had the right, during the year ended 31st December 1998 and the year ended 31st December 2003, to
request modification of the SCC, subject to agreement being reached by all parties.

The SOC provides for HEC to earn a Permitted Return of 13.5% of average net fixed assets plus 1.5% of
average net fixed assets acquired after 1st January 1979 from the additional shareholders’ investment as
defined in the SOC. The Permitted Return is determined after any excess capacity adjustment, in accardance
with the Annex to the SOC. An excess capacity adjustment of HK$39 million was made in 2007. Any diffarence
between the Permitted Return and the SOC net ravenue of HEC must be transferred to or (from) a Development
Fund from or {to) the Profit and Loss Account of HEC. Where the SOC net revenue is less than the Permitted
Return, the amount transferred from the Development Fund to the Profit and Loss Account shall not exceed
the balance of the Development Fund. In calculating this SOC net revenue, interest relating to the acquisition
of fixed assets (whether it has been charged to revenue or capitalised) up to 8% per annum, is added to, and
a tax adjustment is made against, profit after taxation. In addition, each year 8% of the average balance of the
Development Fund is transferred from the Profit and Loss Account of HEC to a Rate Reduction Reserve, the
purpose of which is to rebate electricity charges to customers.

In accordance with the renewed SOC effective 1st January 1994, HEC is required to retain a SOC tax
adjustment at historical tax rates. This tax adjustment shall be retained within HEC until such time as it may be
required to pay the tax.

Ten-Year Scheme of Control Statement for the Year Ended 3ist December

HK$ miflion ' 2007 - 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Sales of electricity 12,452 12,326 12,370 11,442 11,263 11,522 10,911 10,543 9,577 9,627
Transfer from/(to) Fuel Clause Account 413 15 119 {443) (726) (724) (740) (801) {745) {623)
Other Scheme of Control revenue 455 42 56 51 66 56 59 54 64 62
Gress tariff revenue 13,320 12,383 12,485 11,050 10,603 10,854 10,230 9,796 B,896 3,066
Fuel costs (2,167) {1,780y (1,887) {1,301) {983} 972 {917} 823) {842) {973}
Operating costs (1,260) (1,155 (1,180) (1,105) {918} (833) (848) (845) (798) {759)
Interast (369) {186) (128) {83) {(195) (196) (359) (590) (648) (778)
Depreciation {2,025) (1,892} (1,832) (1.810) (1.782) (1,671) (1,672) (1,448) (1,348) (1,382
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - - - - 317 - - - - -
Net revenue before taxation 7,499 7,370 7,448 6,751 7,042 7.182 6,534 6,090 5,260 5178
Scheme of Control taxation (1,331) (1.,453) (1,314} (1,167 (1,193) (1134 (1,010 (862) 747 (822)
Net revenue after taxation 6,168 5917 6,134 5,584 5,849 6,048 5,624 5,228 4,513 4,356
Interest on borrowed capital 307 285 181 128 218 329 524 775 790 867
Interest on incremental

customers' deposits 9 g 3 - - - 3 3 1 -
Scheme of Control net revenue 6,484 6,211 6,318 5,712 6,067 6,377 6,051 6,006 5,304 5,223
Transfer {to)/from Development Fund (14) - - - 139 (1) 111 {160) 251 2)
Shortfall in Development Fund - 487 288 869 228 - - - - -
Permitted return 6,470 6,698 6,606 6,581 6,434 6,376 6,162 5,846 5,555 5,221
Shortfall in Development Fund - (487 (288) (869) {228) - - - - -
Interest on borrowed capital (307) (285) (181) (128) {218} (329 {h24) (775) (790) (B67)
Interest on ingremental

customers’ depasits )] (9 )] - - - 3 (3) M -
Transfer to Rate Reduction Reserve 1)) - - - {6) (11 {15) (14) (n 27

Net return - 6,153 5917 6,134 5,584 5,982 6,036 5,620 5,054 4,747 4,327




Ten-Year Balance Sheet

As at 31st December

The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited

HK$ million 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Non-current assets .
Fixed assets 46,123 46,565 46,331 45353 45104 45287 44,045 41688 39,761 37,750
Employee retirement benefit assets 1,033 539 159 277 220 212 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments . 8 1 29 - - - - - - -

47164 47,105 46519 45630 45324 45499 44045 41688 39761 37,750

Current assets

Coal, fuel oil and liguefied natural gas ‘ 255 204 164 189 86 120 138 100 142 135
Stores and materials 281 278 281 275 281 292 30 299 309 201
Fuel Clause Account 336 566 1,079 1,197 1,147 1,235 1,216 981 262 186
Trade and other receivables 1,071 1,056 1,013 1,049 1,018 1,039 664 633 641 525
Cash and bank balances 4 21 2 7 3 2 5 12 9 -

1,947 2125 2,539 2717 2,535 2,688 2,324 2,025 1,363 1,337

Current liabilities

Bank foans and other borrowings {14050 (3,735 (4,398) (7,535 (B.269) (9,266} (7,944) (6,573 (5992) (5,179
Trade and other payables (860) (898) (842 (1,010) (,011y {1,242y (1,858) (3.511) (1,867) (2,309
Current taxation {410) (540) {220) (229) (301) (419) (792) {209} (227) (179)
(2,675) {5173) (54600 (8,774) (9,581} (10,927) (10.594) (8,293) (8,086) (7,664}
Net current liabilities (728) (3,048) (2921) (6,057) (7,046) (8,239 (8,270) (6,268) (6.,723) {6,527)
Total assets Iess current liabilities 46,436 ' 44057 43,598 39,573 38,278 37,260 35,775 35420 33,038 31,223
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans and other borrowings (9,796) (9.845) (6,936) (4,276) (3,852) (7,295 (8,036) (9.639) (8,790) (8,444)
Deterred creditors - - (52) (548) (760) (972) (1,184 (1,362) (1,770) (2.036)
Customers' deposits (1,585) (1,637) (1,508) (1.455 (1,387) (1,350 (1,302) (1,242) {1,169 (1,131)
Employee retirement benefit liabilities (423) {307) {268) (79) {68) (57} - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities Note 4) {5,426) (5432) (5382} (5,236) (5105 {4,599 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments 7 m (5 - - - - - - -

(17,237) (17,122} {14,151y (11,594) (11,172} {14,273) (10,522) (12,243) (11.729) (11,611

Rate Reduction Reserve (Note 1) ! {1). - - - (5 (10 9 (14) (21} (62)
Development Fund (Note 2) {14} - - - - (139) {138) (249) (89} (340)
Net Assets , 29184 26,930 29,447 27979 27001 22838 25106 22914 21,199 19,210
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 2,411 2,41 2,411 2,411 2,411 241 2,411 2,411 2,411 2,411
Reserves (Notes 3 & 4} 6 4 - - - 937 2,460 2,201 1,975 1,724
Hedging reserves {6) {4) 3 - - - ~ - - —
Proposed dividend - 4928 4878 3,882 4,244 5,200 1,803 4,311 3,917 3,945 3,518

7,339 V 7,289 6,296 6,65 761 5,251 9,182 8,529 8,331 7,653

Loan capital 21,845 19,846 2351 21,324 19480 17587 15924 14385 12,868 11,557

.29,184. 26,935 29,447 27979 27301 22,838 25,106 22914 21,198 19210

Notes:
()
2}
(3

(4

The purpose of this reserve is to reduce, by means of rebatss, electricity tariffs to customers,

The main purpose of the development fund is to assist in financing the acquisition of fixed assets and it is not part of shareholders' funds.

Up to 2001, these reserves include a Scheme of Control tax adjustment, calculated in accordance with the renewed Scheme of Controf
Agreement effective st January 1994. These represent the accumulated difference between depreciation and the infand Revenue tax
allowances, applying the tax rate applicable to each respactive year. This Scheme of Controi tax adiustment was required to be retained
within The Hongkong Electric Campany, Limited ("HEC") untif such time as it may be required ta pay the tax. Starting from 2002 following the
implementation of Hong Kong Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No. 12 (revised) "income Taxes”, a deferred tax liability has been
recognised on HEC's balance sheet and this Scheme of Controf tax adjustment is no lenger considered necessary.

Hong Kong Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No. 12 {revised) “Incorne Taxes”™ was first effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1st January 2003. In order to comply with this revised Statement, the Group adopted & new accounting policy for deferred tax in 2003.
Figures for 2002 have been adjusted. However, it fs not practicable to restate earlfier years for comparison purposes.




Ten-Year Operating Statistics

The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Units Sold (Millions of kWh} -

Commercial 8,109 7,984 7,866 7,781 7,596 7,709 7.456 7,141 6,875 6,781
Domestic 2,394 2,372 2,445 2,332 2,346 2,443 2,359 2,346 2,288 2,448
Industrial 388 417 444 480 471 490 496 505 490 464
Total (Millions of kWh) (Note 1) 10,891 10,773 10,755 10,593 10,413 10,642 10,31 9,992 9,653 3,693
Annual Increase (%} 1.1 0.2 1.5 1.7 (2.2) 3.2 3.2 3.5 {0.9) 6.8

Average Net Tariff (Cents per kWh)

Basic Tariff 114.3 114.4 1149 108.5 108.5 108.5 105.7 105.7 9g.4 99.4
Fuel Clause Surcharge/(Rebate) 5.9 49 2.2 4.1) (6.1} 7.1) (9.3) {15.2) (8.5) {8.5)
Special Rebate - (1.9} 7.1 (1.0) (1.0) - - - - -
Rate Reduction Rebate - - - 0.1) 0.1) 0.1) 0.2) 0.2) (0.6) (0.6)
Net Tariff (Cents per kWh} 120.2 117.4 110.0 103.3 i01.3 1013 86.2 90.3 90.3 90.3

{Note 2) (Note 3}

Number of Customers (0005) 561 559 956 552 547 544 536 526 519 513

Installed Capacity (MW)

Gas Turbines and Standby Units 920 920 920 920 920 920 805 805 805 805
Coal-fired Units 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500
Gas-fired Combined Gycte Unit 335 335 - - - - - - - -
Wind Turbine 1 1 1 - - - - - - -
Total (MW) 3,756 3,756 3421 3,420 3,420 3,420 3,305 3,305 3,305 3,305
System Maximum Demand (MW) 2,552 2,597 2,565 2,588 2,440 2,436 2,516 2,417 2,343 2,316
Annual Increass (%) 1.9 1.2 0.9 6.1 0.2 (3.2} 4.1 3.2 1.2 50
Annual Load Factor (%) 54.8 53.6 54.3 52.9 55.3 55.2 53.0 535 53.4 54.2
Thermal Efficiency (%) 36.4 35.5 351 353 353 354 355 356 35.8 35.9
Coal-fired Plant Availability (%) 86.0 86.0 88.5 87.6 87.0 88.2 87.9 84.3 87.1 B9.2
Number of Switching Stations 23 23 23 22 23 22 20 20 20 18
Number of Zone Substations 26 26 26 26 28 26 25 25 25 23
Number of Consumer Substations 3,632 3617 3,597 3,570 3,531 3,487 3,444 3,39 3,309 3,230
Number of Employees 1,857 1,907 1,965 2,022 2,092 2,168 2,277 2,325 2,403 2,490
Capital Expenditure (HK$ Million) 1,747 2,307 3,006 2,248 2,106 3,145 4,133 3,549 3,622 4,248
Notes:

i) 2002 included a one-off adjustment arising from a change in the recognition of electricity units sold during the year.
2) Applicable trom April 2004 to Dacember 2004,
{3) Applicable from January 2003 to March 2004,




Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company will be held in the
Ballroom, 1st Floor, The Harbour Plaza, 20 Tak Fung Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Thursday, 15th
May 2008 at 12:00 noon for the following purposes:

Crdinary Business
1.  To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year
ended 31st December 2007.

2. To declare a final dividend.
3. To re-elect retiring Directors.

4.  To appoeint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration,

Special Business
5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

*THAT:

{a) ageneral mandate be and is hereby unconditionally given to the Directors during the Relevant Period
to issue and dispose of additional shares of the Company not exceeding twenty per cent of the existing
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing this resolution, such mandate to include
the granting of offers or options (including bonds and debentures convertible into shares of the Company)
which might be exercisable or convertible during or after the Relevant Period; and

{b) for the purpose of this resolution:
“Refevant Period" means the period from the passing of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:
il  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company,

il the expiration of the period within which the next annual genera!l meeting of the Company is required
by law to be hetd; and

{ii)  the revocation or variation of this resoclution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.”

6. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
“THAT:

(8) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period of all the
powers of the Company to repurchase shares of HK$1.00 each in the issued capital of the Company
in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as amended from time to time, be and is
hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the number of shares of the Company which may be repurchased by the Company pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed ten per cent of the number of shares of the Company
in issue at the date of this resolution; and




{c} for the purpose of this resalution:
“Refevant Period" means the period from the passing of this resclution until whichever is the earliest oi:
(i  the conclusion of the next annuatl general meeting of the Company;

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required
by law to be held; and

(i) the revocation or variation of this resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.”

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT the general mandate granted to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to
Resolution 5 set out in the notice convening this meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition thersto of
an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of any share capital of the Company repurchased by
the Company under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution 6 set out in the notice convening this meeting,
provided that such amount shall not exceed ten per cent of the aggregate nominat amount of the existing
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing the relevant resolution.”

By Order of the Board

)

(2

3

(4)

(5}

(e

Lillian Wong
Company Secretary
Hong Kong, 2nd April 2008

Notes:

At the Annual General Meeting, the Chairman of the Meeting will exercise his power under Article 80 of the Company’s Articles of Association to
put each of the above resolutions to the vote by way of g poll.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at tho Meeting is entitied to appoint a proxy to attend and on a poll, vote for Wim (The
number of proxies appointed by any member who is a holder of two or more shares shall not exceed two). A proxy need not be a member. To
be vajid, all proxies must be deposited at the registered office of the Company, 44 Kennedy Road, Hong Kong, not fater than 48 hours before
the time for holding the Meeting.

The register of members will be closed from Thursday, 8th May 2008 to Thursday, 15th May 2008, both days inclusive. To qualify for the

finat dividend and the right to attend and vote at the Meeting (or any adjournment therecf), all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates should be lodged with the Company's Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewelf Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 7th May 2008.

Ragarding Resclution 3 above, Mr. Canning Fok Kin-ning, Mr. Tso Kai-sum, Mr. Ronald Joseph Arcult, Mrs. Susan Chow Woo Mo-fong, Mr.
Andrew John Hunter, Mr. Kam Hing-lam, Mr. Hoiger Kiuge, Mr. Victor Li Tzar-kuoi and Mr. George Colin Magnus, will retire under Article 116 of
tha Company's Articles of Association, while Mr. Yuen Sui-see will retire under Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of Association, and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Meeting. Particulars of these Directors required to be disciosed by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Listing Rules”) are set out in Appendix Il to the circular mentioned in Note
(6) below.

With reference to Resolutions 5 and 7 above, the Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans to issue any new shares in the
Company. The general mandate fs being sought from members in compliance with the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rufes.

With reference to Resolution § ahove, the Directors wish to state that they will exercise the powers conferred theraby to repurchase shares in
circumstances which they deem appropriate for the benefit of the shareholders. The explanatory statement containing the information relating
to the repurchase of shares, as required by the Listing Rules, will be despatched to the members together with the 2007 annual report.




Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Non-executive Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors

AUDIT COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

COMPANY SECRETARY
REG!STERED OFFICE

BANKER
SOLICITORS
AUDITORS

SHARE REGISTRAR

ADR DEPOSITARY

Canning Fok Kin-ning (Chairman)

Tso Kai-sum (Group Managing Director)

Susan Chow Woo Mo-fong*

Andrew John Hunter

Kam Hing-lam

Francis Lee Lan-yee (Director & General Manager (Engineering})
Victor Li Tzar-kuoi

Neil Douglas McGee (Group Finance Director)

Frank John Sixt

Wan Chi-tin {Director of Engineering (Planning & Development))
Yuen Sui-see (Director of Operations)

Chan Loi-shun {Aiternate Director to Kam Hing-lam)

Renald Joseph Arculli
George Cclin Magnus

Holger Kluge
Ralph Raymond Shea
Wong Chung-hin

* Also Alternate Director to Canning Fok Kin-ning and Frank John Sixt

Wong Chung-hin (Chairman)
Ronald Joseph Arculli
Holger Kluge

Ralph Raymond Shea

Canning Fok Kin-ning {Chairmnar)

Ralph Raymond Shea

Wong Chung-hin

Lillian Wong

Hongkong Electric Centre, 44 Kennedy Road, Hong Kang
Telephone : 2843 3111 Facsimile : 2537 1013
E-mail : mail@heh.com Website ;| www.heh.com
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Gorporation Limited
Johnson Stokes & Master

KPMG

Computershare Hong Kong Investar Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Citibank, N.A.

Shareholder Services
P.0. Box 43077, Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3077, U.S.A.

Financial Calendar

Halt-year results
Full-year results

Annual Report

Share register closed
Annual Genera! Meeting
Dividends per share

Interim: HK$0.58
Final: HK$1.43

announced on 9th August 2007

announced on 6th March 2008

posted to shareholders on or befare 3rd April 2008
8th May 2008 to 15th May 2008

to be held on 15th May 2008

paid on 21st September 2007
payable on 16th May 2008
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited (the “Company™ will be
closed from Thursday, 8th May 2008 to Thursday, 15th May 2008, both days inclusive, to
ascertain shareholders qualified for the final dividend and the right to attend and vote at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15th May 2008 {(or any adjournment
thereof). To qualify for the abovementioned rights, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates should be lodged with the Company’s registrar, Computershare

Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 171h Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 .

Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m..on Wednesday, 7th May
2008.

By Order of the Board
Lillian Wong
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 2nd April, 2008

As at the date of this announcement, the Directors of the Company are:

Executive Directors: Mr. FOK Kin Ning, Canning (Chairman), Mr. TSO Kai
Sum (Group Managing Director), Mrs. CHOW w00 Mo
Fong, Susan (also alternate to Mr. FOK Kin Ning, Canning
and Mr. Frank John SIXT), Mr. Andrew John HUNTER,
Mr. KAM Hing Lam (Alternate Directar to Mr. KAM: Mr.
CHAN Loi Shun), Mr. LEE Lan Yee, Francis, Mr. LI Tzar
Kuoi, Victor, Mr. Neil Dougias MCGEE, Mr. Frank John
SIXT, Mtr. WAN Chi Tin and Mr. YUEN Sui See.

Non-executive Directors: Mr. Ronald Joseph ARCULLI and Mr. George Colin
MAGNUS.

Independent Non-executive  Mr. Holger KLUGE, Mr. Ralph Raymond SHEA and Mr.
Directors: WONG Chung-hin.

This announcement is also available for viewing on the website of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited at www.hkex.com.hk under “Latest Listed Company [nformation”
and on the website of the Company at www.heh.com under “Investor Relations - Nolices,
Announcements & Circulars”.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the
Company will be held in the Ballroom, st Floor, The Harbour Plaza, 20 Tak Fung Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Thursday, 15th May 2008 at 12:00 noon for the
following purposes:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts and the Reports of the Directors and
Auditors for the year ended 31st December 2007,

2. Todeclare a final dividend.

3.  Tore-elect retiring Directors.

4. To appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Special Business

5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"THAT:

(a) a general mandate be and is hereby unconditionally given to the Directors
during the Relevant Period to issue and dispose of additional shares of the
Company not exceeding twenty per cent of the existing issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of passing this resolution, such mandate to include
the granting of offers or options (including bonds and debentures convertible
into shares of the Company) which might be exercisable or convertible during
or after the Relevant Period; and

{(b) for the purpose of this resolution:

"Relevant Period" means the period from the passing of this resolution until
whichever is the earliest of-

) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(11) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by law to be held; and

(111) the revocation or variation of this resolution by an ordinary resolution
of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting."




6. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"THAT:

(2)

(b)

(©)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period of all the powers of the Company to repurchase shares of
HK$1.00 each in the issued capital of the Company in accordance with all
applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as amended from
time to time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the number of shares of the Company which may be repurchased by the
Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed ten
per cent of the number of shares of the Company in issue at the date of this
resolution; and

for the purpose of this resolution:

"Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this resolution until
whichever is the earliest of:

@ the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(i1) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by law to be held; and

(1i1) the revocation or variation of this resolution by an ordinary resolution
of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.”

7. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"THAT the general mandate granted to the Directors to aliot, issue and deal with
additional shares pursuant to Resolution 5 set out in the notice convening this meeting
be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of an amount representing the
aggregate nominal amount of any share capital of the Company repurchased by the
Company under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution 6 set out in the notice
convening this meeting, provided that such amount shall not exceed ten per cent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the existing issued share capital of the Company as at the

date of passing the relevant resolution.”

By Order of the Board

Lillian Wong

Company Secretary
Hong Kong, 2nd April 2008




Notes:

(1)

(2

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

At the Annual General Meeting, the Chairman of the Meeting will exercise his power under
Article 80 of the Company's Articles of Association to put each of the above resolutions to the
vote by way of a poll.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and on a poll, vote for him (The number of proxies appointed by any member
who is a holder of two or more shares shall not exceed two). A proxy need not be a member.
To be valid, all proxies must be deposited at the registered office of the Company, 44 Kennedy
Road, Hong Kong, not later than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting.

The register of members will be closed from Thursday, 8th May 2008 to Thursday, 15th May
2008, both days inclusive. To qualify for the final dividend and the right to attend and vote at
the Meeting (or any adjournment thereof), all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates should be lodged with the Company’s Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 7th May 2008.

Regarding Resolution 3 above, Mr. Canning Fok Kin-ning, Mr. Tso Kai-sum, Mr. Ronald
Joseph Arculli, Myrs. Susan Chow Woo Mo-fong, Mr. Andrew John Hunter, Mr. Kam Hing-lam,
Mr. Holger Kluge, Mr. Victor Li Tzar-kuoi and Mr. George Colin Magnus, will retire under
Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association, while Mr. Yuen Sui-see will retire under
Article 99 of the Company's Articles of Association, and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the Meeting. Particulars of these Directors required to be disclosed by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Listing
Rules") are set out in Appendix 1] to the circular mentioned in Note (6) below.

With reference to Resolutions 5 and 7 above, the Directors wish to state that they have no
immediate plans to issue any new shares in the Company. The general mandate is being sought
from members in compliance with the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

With reference to Resolution 6 above, the Directors wish to state that they will exercise the
powers conferred thereby to repurchase shares in circumstances which they deem appropriate
for the benefit of the shareholders. The explanatory statement containing the information
relating to the repurchase of shares, as required by the Listing Rules, will be despatched to the
members together with the 2007 annual report.
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
document, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this document.
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Registered office: 44 Kennedy Road, Hong Kong
Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors
FOK Kin-ning, Canning (Chairman) Ronald Joseph ARCULLI
TSO Kai-sum (Group Managing Director) George Colin MAGNUS
CHOW WOQO Mo-fong, Susan*
Andrew John HUNTER Independent Non-Executive Directors
KAM Hing-lam Holger KLUGE
LEE Lan-yee, Francis Ralph Raymond SHEA
LI Tzar-kuoi, Victor WONG Chung-hin

Neil Douglas MCGEE

Frank John SIXT

WAN Chi-tin

YUEN Sui-see

CHAN Loi Shun (Alternate to KAM Hing-lam)

* Also alternate to FOK Kin-ning, Canning and Frank John SIXT

2nd April 2008
To the Shareholders,

Dear Sir or Madam,

PROPOSED GENERAL MANDATES
TO ISSUE NEW SHARES AND TO REPURCHASE SHARES
AND DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

INTRODUCTION

The purpase of this circular is to provide you with information regarding the general
mandates to issue shares and to repurchase shares which are proposed to be granted to the
Directors, and the proposed re-election of the Directors who are due to retire. These resolutions
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company convened for 15th May 2008
{(“AGM™).



PROPOSED GENERAL MANDATES FOR SHARE REPURCHASE AND ISSUE OF NEW
SHARES

On 10th May 2007 a general mandate was given to the Directors to exercise the powers
of the Company to repurchase shares of the Company. Such mandate will lapse at the conclusion
of the AGM. It is therefore proposed to seek your approval at the AGM of an ordinary
resolution granting the Directors a general mandate to repurchase shares representing not
more than 10 per cent. of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing the
resolution (the “Repurchase Mandate”). In accordance with the relevant rules set out in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) regulating the repurchase by companies of their
own securities on the Stock Exchange, the Company is required to send Shareholders an
explanatory statement containing information reasonably necessary to enable Sharcholders to
make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the resolution to approve the
purchase by the Company of its own shares. This explanatory statement is set out in
Appendix I to this circular.

Ordinary resolutions will also be proposed at the AGM (i} to grant the Directors a
general mandate to issue and otherwise deal with shares up to a limit equal to 20 per cent. of
the issued shares of the Company at the date of passing of such resolution and (ii) to approve
the addition of repurchased shares (up to a maximum of 10 per cent. of the issued shares of
the Company at the date of passing of such resolution) to the 20 per cent. general mandate.

DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning, Mr. Tso Kai-sum, Mr. Ronald Joseph Arculli, Mrs. Chow
Woo Mo-fong, Susan, Mr. Andrew John Hunter, Mr. Kam Hing-lam, Mr. Holger Kluge, Mr. Li
Tzar-kuoi, Victor and Mr. George Colin Magnus will retire by rotation at the AGM in accordance
with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association, while Mr. Yuen Sui-see who was
appointed Director on 1st March 2008 will retire in accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. The abovementioned Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. The particulars of these Directors which are required to be disclosed by the
Listing Rules are set out in Appendix II to this circular.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The resolutions to be proposed at the AGM are set out in full in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting included in the Annual Report. Your right to demand a poll on the resolutions
at the Meeting is set out in Appendix III to this circular. Whether or not you intend to be
present at the Meeling, you are requested to complete the form of proxy in accordance with
the instructions printed thereon and return it to the registered office of the Company at the
address stated above not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the Meeting. The
Directors believe that the resolutions set out in the notice of the Meeting are in the best
interests of the Company and its Sharcholders as a whole and recommend you to vote in
favour of such resolutions at the Meeting.

Yours faithfully,
FOK Kin-ning, Canning
CHAIRMAN




APPENDIX 1

The following is the Explanatory Statement required to be sent to Shareholders
under the Listing Rules and also constitutes the Memorandum required under Section
49BA of the Companies Ordinance.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 27th March 2008 (the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this circular),
the issued share capital of the Company comprised 2,134,261,654 shares of HK31 each
(“Shares™).

Exercise in full of the Repurchase Mandate (10% of the issued share capital of the
Company), on the basis that no further Shares are issued prior to the date of the AGM, could
accordingly result in up to 213,426,165 Shares being repurchased by the Company during the
course of the period ending on the earlier of the date of the Annual General Meeting in 2009,
and the date upon which such authority is revoked or varied,

REASONS FOR REPURCHASE

The Directors believe that it i1s in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders
to seek a general authority from Shareholders to enable the Directors to purchase Shares of
the Company in the market. Such purchases may, depending on market conditions and funding
arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement of the net assets and/or earnings per Share.
The Directors are seeking a general mandate to repurchase Shares to give the Company the
flexibility to do so if and when appropriate. The number of Shares to be repurchased on any
occasion and the price and other terms upon which the same are repurchased will be decided
by the Directors at the relevant time having regard to the circumstances then prevailing,

FUNDING OF REPURCHASE

In repurchasing Shares, the Company may only apply funds legally available for such
purpose in accordance with its Memorandum and Articles of Association aad the Companies
Ordinance. It is envisaged that the funds required for any repurchase would be derived from
the distributable profits of the Company.

There could be material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of
the Company (as compared with the position disclosed in the audited consolidated accounts
contained in the Annual Report for the year ended 31st December 2007) in the event that the
Repurchase Mandate were to be exercised in full at any time during the proposed repurchase
period. However, the Directors do not propose to exercise the Repurchase Mandate to such
extent as would, in the circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the working capital
requirements of the Company or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors are
from time to time appropriate for the Company.



SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have traded on the Stock Exchange
during each of the previous twelve months before the printing of this circular and during the
period from lIst March 2008 to 27th March 2008 (the latest practicable date prior to the
printing of this circular) were as follows:

Highest Lowest

HKS$ HK$

March 2007 40.40 37.75
April 2007 42.70 39.25
May 2007 4205 39.00
June 2007 41.10 38.00
July 2007 40.95 38.70
August 2007 39.80 37.45
September 2007 41.45 38.50
October 2007 40.75 38.25
November 2007 41.30 38.10
December 2007 45.45 39.70
January 2008 46.35 39.80
February 2008 46.80 43.00
st March 2008 to 27th March 2008 52.50 41.00

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

The Directors have given an undertaking to the Stock Exchange that, so far as the same
may be applicable, they will exercise the powers of the Company to make all repurchases
pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate in accordance with the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws of Hong Kong.

None of the Directors nor, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable
enquiries, their associates, have any present intention to sell any Shares to the Company if the
Repurchase Mandate is approved and exercised. No other connected persons (as defined in the
Listing Rules) have notified the Company that they have a present intention to sell Shares to
the Company, or have undertaken not to do so, in the event that the Repurchase Mandate 1s
approved and exercised.

As at 27th March 2008 (the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this circular),
Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“CKI") and its subsidiary Hyford Limited held
through certain subsidiaries of Hyford Limited (including Monitor Equities S.A. and Univest
Equity S.A.) a total of 829,599,612 Shares, representing approximately 38.87% of the issued
share capital of the Company. By virtue of their direct and/or indirect shareholdings in CKI,



Hutchison Whampoa Limited and its subsidiaries, Hutchison International Limited and
Hutchison Infrastructure Holdings Limited, Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited, Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trustee Company Limited as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust, Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trustee Corporation Limited as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust,
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited as trustee of another discretionary trust, Messrs. Li Ka-
shing and Li Tzar-kuoi, Victor (collectively the “Substantial Shareholders’™) were each deemed
to hold these same 829,599,612 Shares.

In the event that the Directors exercise in full the power to repurchase Shares which is
proposed to be granted pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate, then (if the present shareholdings
otherwise remained the same) the shareholding of CKI in the Company would be increased to
approximately 43.19% of the issued share capital of the Company and similarly, so would the
deemed shareholdings of each of the Substantial Shareholders be increased. In the opinion of
the Directors such increase may give rise to an obligation to make a mandatory offer under
Rule 26.1 of the Code on Takeovers and Mergers.

SHARE PURCHASE MADE BY THE COMPANY

The Company has not purchased any of its Shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or
otherwise) in the six months preceding the date of this circular.




APPENDIX 11

The follewing is the information required to be disclosed by the Listing Rules on

the Directors proposed to he re-elected at the AGM.

Mr. Canning FOK Kin-ning, aged 56, has been an Executive Director of the Company
since February 1985. He was appointed Deputy Chairman in August 1993 and became
Chairman in November 2005. He is also a Chairman of The Hongkong Electric Company,
Limited (“HEC"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Fok holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree and a Diploma in Financial Management, and is a member of the Australian
Institute of Chartered Accountants. He is the Group Managing Director of Hutchison
Whampoa Limited (“Hutchison™), the Deputy Chairman of Cheung Kong Infrastructure
Holdings Limited (“CKI"), a Non-Executive Director of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited
(*Cheung Kong™) and a Director of Hutchison International Limited (“HIL”), all being
substantial shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (*SFO™), and holds directorships in certain companies controlled
by certain substantial shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed above, he does
not have any relationship with any other director, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. He is also the Chairman of Hutchison Harbour
Ring Limited, Hutchison Telecommunications International Limited, Hutchison
Telecommunications (Australia) Limited and Pariner Communications Company Ltd.,
and the Co-Chairman of Husky Energy Inc.. In addition, he is the Chairman of Hutchison
Global Communications Holdings Limited which was formerly a lisied company. Mr.
Fok was previously a Non-executive Director of Hanny Holdings Limited (resigned on
1st September 2005) and Panva Gas Holdings Limited (now known as Towngas China
Company Limited) (resigned on 8th August 2006). All companies hereinabove mentioned
except HEC and HIL are listed companies unless otherwise indicated. Mr. Fok does not
have any interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO. There is no service contract between the Company and him. He is entitled to a
Chairman’s salary of HK$50,000 per annum and a Director’s fee of HK$70,000 per
annum. Mr. Fok does not have any information to disclose pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(h)
to (v) of the Listing Rules. There are no other matters of significance concerning the
Director that need to be brought to the attention of shareholders.




Mr. TSO Kai-sum, aged 76, has been an Executive Director of the Company since
February 1985 and became Group Managing Director in January 1997. He is also a
Director of most of the subsidiaries of the Company, including HEC. Mr. Tso worked
with the Hongkong Electric Group from 1966 to 1981, holding positions of Chief
Project Engineer of HEC and Executive Director of Associated Technical Services
Limited. In 1981, he joined International City Holdings Limited as an Executive Director.
In 1987, he joined the Hutchison Whampoa Group as Group Managing Director of
Hutchison Whampoa Properties. In 1997, he re-joined the Hongkong Electric Group as
Group Managing Director. Mr, Tso holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil
Engineering and is a Chartered Engineer. He is a member of the Institute of Civil
Engineers and the Institute of Structural Engineers in the United Kingdom. Mr. Tso is
an Executive Director of CKI, a listed company and a substantial and controlling
shareholder of the Company. Save as disclosed above, he does not have any relationship
with any other director, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of
the Company. Mr. Tso does not have any interests in the shares of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. The annual remuneration package for Mr. Tso for
the year 2007 under his service contract with the Company amounted to approximately
HK$16.85 million. The emoluments were determined with reference to the Company’s
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and
the prevailing market conditions. He is also entitled to a Director’s fee of HK$70,000
per annum. Mr. Tso does not have any information to disciose pursuant to Rule
13.51(2}h) to (v) of the Listing Rules. There are no other matters of significance
concerning the Director that need to be brought to the attention of sharcholders.

Mr. Ronald Joseph ARCULLI, aged 69, was appointed Independent Non-executive
Director in March 1997, and was re-designated as Non-executive Director in September
2004. He is a also a Director of HEC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Arculli is a practising solicitor and a non-official member of the Executive Council. He
also serves on the committees of various government and public service bodies and has
served on the Legislative Council from 1988 to 2000. Mr. Arculli is Chairman of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an Independent Non-executive Director of Hang
Lung Properties Limited, SCMP Group Limited and Shanghai Century Acquisition
Corporation, and a Non-executive Director of HKR International Limited, Hutchison
Harbour Ring Limited, Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited, Sino L.and Company Limited
and Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited, all being listed companies. He does not have any
relationship with any other director, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Arculli has a controlling interest in a company which
holds 2,011 shares of the Company. There is a service contract dated 15th October 2007
between the Company and Mr. Arculli appointing him as a Non-executive Director of
the Company for an initial term up to 31st December 2008 which automatically renews
for successive 12-month periods, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. He is entitled to a Director’s
fee of HK$70,000 per annum and a further fee for serving as member of the Audit
Committee of HK$70,000 per annum. Mr. Arculli does not have any information to
disclose pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to {v) of the Listing Rules. There are no other
matters of significance concerning the Director that need to be brought to the attention

of shareholders. Z



Mrs. Susan CHOW WOO Mo-fong, aged 54, was appointed Non-executive Director
of the Company in January 1996, and was re-designated as an Executive Director in
May 2006. She is also a Director of HEC and Hongkong Electric Fund Management
Limited, both wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mrs. Chow is a solicitor of
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the Supreme
Court of England and Wales. She holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.
Mrs. Chow is the Deputy Group Managing Director of Hutchison, an Executive Director
of CKI, a Director of Interman Development Inc., Monitor Equities S.A., Univest Equity
S.A., Venniton Development Inc., HIL and Hutchison Infrastructure Holdings Limited,
all being substantial sharcholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO. Hutchison and CKI are listed companies. She also holds directorships in certain
companies controlled by certain substantial shareholders of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, she does not have any relationship with any other director, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. In addition,
Mrs. Chow is an Executive Director of Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited, a Non-executive
Director of Hutchison Telecommunications International Limited and TOM Group
Limited, and a Director of Hutchison Telecommunications (Australia) Limited and Partner
Communications Company Ltd., all being listed companies. She is also a Director of
Hutchison Global Communications Holdings Limited and an Alternate Director of TOM
Online Inc., both being listed companies previously. Mrs. Chow does not have any
interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ. There
is no service contract between her and the Company. She is entitled to a Director’s fee
of HK$70,000 per annum. Mrs. Chow does not have any information to disclose pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules. There are no other matters of significance
concerning the Director that need to be brought to the attention of shareholders.

Mr. Andrew John HUNTER, aged 49, has been an Executive Director of the Company
since January 1999. He acted as Group Finance Director of the Company from January
1999 to January 2006. He is also a Director of HEC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Prior to joining the Hongkong Electric Group, Mr. Hunter was Finance Director
of the Huichison Property Group. He holds Master of Arts and Master of Business
Administration degrees and is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Hunter is
Chief Financial Officer of Cheung Kong and an Executive Director and Chief Operating
Officer of CKI, both listed companies and substantial shareholders of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Hunter also holds directorships in
certain companies controlled by certain substantial shareholders of the Company. Save
as disclosed above, he does not have any relationship with any other director, senior
management or substantial or controlling sharehotders of the Company. Mr. Hunter is
also a Non-executive Director of Spark Infrastructure Group, a listed company in
Australia. He does not have any interests in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFQ. There is no service contract between the Company and
him. He is entitled to a Director’s fee of HK$70,000 per annum. Mr. Hunter does not
have any information to disclose pursvant to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing
Rules. There are no other matters of significance concerning the Director that need to
be brought to the attention of shareholders.
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Mr. KAM Hing-lam, aged 61, has been an Executive Director of the Company since
May 1993. He is also a Director of HEC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration. Mr. Kam is a member of the Beijing Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic of China. He is President
and Chief Executive Officer of CK Life Sciences Int’l., {Holdings) Inc. (“CK Life™).
Mr. Kam is also a Deputy Managing Director of Cheung Kong, an Executive Director of
Hutchison, the Group Managing Director of CKI and a Director of Hyford Limited,
Interman Development Inc., Monitor Equities S.A., Univest Equity S.A., Venniton
Development Inc. and HIL, all being substantial shareholders of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. He holds directorships in certain companies
controlled by certain substantial shareholders of the Company. CK Life, Cheung Kong,
Hutchison and CK1{ are listed companies. He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Li Ka-shing, a
substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, and
uncle of Mr. Li Tsar-kuoi, Victor, an Executive Director of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, he does not have any relationship with any other director, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Kam is also
a Non-executive Director of Spark Infrastructure Group, a listed company in Australia.
Mr. Kam does not have any interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO. There is no service contract between the Company and him. He
is entitled to a Director’s fee of HK$70,000 per annum.

Mr. Kam previously held directorships in CrossCity Motorway Pty Ltd, CrossCity
Motorway Nominees No. 1 Pty Ltd, CrossCity Motorway Nominees No. 2 Pty Ltd,
CrossCity Motorway Holdings Pty Ltd and CrossCity Motorway Finance Pty Ltd
(collectively the “CrossCity companies™) {all resigned on 22nd December 2006), all
incorporated in Australia. The principal business of the CrossCity companies is the
design, construction and operation of the Cross City Tunnel in Sydney, Australia. A
voluntary administrator and a receiver and manager were appointed in respect of the
CrossCity companies on 27th December 2006 as they were insolvent. The amount which
led to the receivership proceedings was approximately AUD567 million. According to a
press release dated 27th September 2007 on the website of the Cross City Tunnel, the
Cross City Tunnel had been acquired by the ABN AMRO and Leighton Contractors
consortium.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Kam does not have any other information to disclose
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules. There are no other matiers of
significance concerning the Director that need to be brought to the attention of
shareholders.




Mr. Holger KLUGE, aged 66, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since August 1999. He is also a Director of HEC, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Kluge holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration. He was formerly President of Personal and
Commercial Bank, CIBC, ane of the largest financial services institutions in North
America. Mr. Kluge is an Independent Non-executive Director of Hutchison, a listed
company and a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO. Save as disclosed above, he does not have any relationship with any other
director, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.
He is also a Director of Husky Energy Inc. and Shoppers Drug Mart, both listed
companies in Canada. He was previously a Director of TOM Group Limited (resigned
on 30th June 2005). Mr. Kluge does not have any interests in the shares of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. There is a service contract dated 15th
October 2007 between the Company and Mr. Kluge appointing him as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company for an initial term up to 31st December 2008
which automatically renews for successive 12-month periods, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. He
is entitled to a Director’s fee of HK$70,000 per annum and a further fee for serving as
member of the Audit Committee of HK$70,000 per annum. Mr. Kluge does not have
any information to disclose pursuant to Rule 13.51{2)(h} to (v) of the Listing Rules.
There are no other matters of significance concerning the Director that need to be
brought to the attention of shareholders.

10—



Mr. L1 Tzar-kuoi, Victor, aged 43, has been an Executive Director of the Company
since May 1994. He is also a Director of HEC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering and a Master
of Science degree in Structural Engineering. He serves as a member of the Standing
Committee of the 11th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the People’s Republic of China. He is also a member of the Commission
on Strategic Development of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Li is
the Chairman of CKI and CK Life, the Managing Director and Deputy Chairman of
Cheung Kong, Deputy Chairman of Hutchison, the Co-Chairman of Husky Energy Inc.
and a Director of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC™).
All the aforementioned companies except HEC and HSBC are listed companies. Mr. Li
is son of Mr. Li Ka-shing, a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO, and nephew of Mr. Kam Hing-lam, an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Li acts as a Director of the substantial shareholders of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, namely Cheung Kong, Hutchison, CKI,
Hyford Limited and HIL. He also holds directorships in certain companies controlled
by certain substantial shareholders of the Company. Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee
Corporation Limited (“TDT17}) as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust
(“DT1”), Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (*TDT2”) as trustee of another
discretionary trust (*DT2”), and Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited as trustee
of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust in which each of TDTI and TDT2 holds units, are
substantial shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
The discretionary beneficiaries of each of DT1 and DT2 include Mr. Li Tzar-kuoi,
Victor, his wife and children. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li does not have any
relationship with any other director, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Li has a family interest of 151,000 shares and other
interests of 829,599,612 shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO. There is no service contract between the Company and him. He is entitled to a
Director’s fee of HK$70,000 per annum.

Mr. Li previously held directorship of Star River Investment Limited (“Star River”)
fceased to act as director on 4th June 2005), a company owned as to 50% by Cheung
Kong with its place of incorporation in Hong Kong and active in acquiring property for
development, Star River commenced creditors’ voluntary winding up on 28th September
2004 since it could not continue its business by reason of its liabilities. The amount
invoived in the winding up was HK$17,259,710.34 and Star River was dissolved on 4th
June 2005.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li does not have any other information to disclose pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules. There are no other matters of significance
concerning the Director that need to be brought to the attention of shareholders.




Mr. George C. MAGNUS, aged 72, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company
in February 1985 and acted as Chairman from 1993 to October 2005. He was re-
designated as Non-executive Director on 1st November 2005. He is also a Director of
HEC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Magnus holds a Master’s degree
in Economics. He is a Non-executive Director of Cheung Kong, Hutchison and CKI, all
being listed companies and substantial shareholders of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO. Save as disclosed above, he does not have any relationship with
any other director, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company, Mr. Magnus does not have any interests in the shares of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ, There is a service contract dated 15th October 2007
between the Company and Mr. Magnus appointing him as a Non-executive Director of
the Company for an initial term up to 31st December 2008 which automatically renews
for successive 12-month periods, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. He is entitled to a Director’s
fee of HK$70,000 per annum. Mr. Magnus does not have any information to disclose
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules. There are no other matters of
significance concerning the Director that need to be brought to the attention of
shareholders.

Mr. YUEN Sui-see, aged 57, has been an Executive Director of the Company since Ist
March 2008. He is also a Director of HEC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and certain other subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yuen joined the Hongkong Electric
Group in May 1986 and prior to his appointment as an Executive Director, was General
Manager (Transmission & Distribution). Mr. Yuen has over 30 years of experience in
the transmission and distribution of electricity. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree
and a Master of Science degree in Engineering. He is a Chartered Engineer in the
United Kingdom, a Registered Professional Engineer in Hong Kong and a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. Mr. Yuen does not have any relationship with any
other Director, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company. He has a personal interest in 1,500 shares of the Company. Mr. Yuen’s
emoluments covered by his service contract (which includes his basic salary, allowances
and benefits) are approximately HK$3.7 million per annum and he is entitled to such
amount of discretionary bonus as approved by the Remuneration Committee. Such
emoluments were determined with reference to the Company’s performance and
profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions. Mr. Yuen is also entitled to a Director’s fee of HK$70,000 per
annum. Mr. Yuen does not have any information to disclose pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(h}
to {v) of the Listing Rules. There are no other matters of significance concerning Mr.
Yuen that need to be brought to the attention of shareholders.

— 12 —




APPENDIX IH

Article 80 of the Company’s Articles of Association sets out the procedure by which

Shareholders may demand a poll:

At any General Meeting a Resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on

a show of hands unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of
hands) demanded:—

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

by the Chairman; or
by at least five members present in person or by proxy; or

by any member or members present in person or by proxy and representing not
less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the members having the right
10 vote at the meeting; or

by a member or members holding shares in the Company conferring a right to
vote at the meeting being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up
equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the shares conferring
that right.

Unless a poll be so demanded, a declaration by the Chairman that a Resolution has on a

show of hands been carried or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost, and an

entry to that effect in the book containing the minutes of the proceedings of the Company

shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes

recorded in favour or against such Resolution.

— 13—




ff & =

FRARANERMAUNENTRBERRITERURESFIXNKRARBRNER :

EEMARAEG B gREIMRAESR > AURF AR BFE (EEH
BFRBNMBERZBHERZI & P AL ERUBE TN RR > AIAEIR

(a) EH
by BPALZBALFREBRMAERLFHRRE ; &

(c) WLEWAMEXERLERNNBRMNERRERDR 22— B AE
HERERAKLENEM—BRE R —BIRH 5

(d) HHBRTEZGRLRREFMNALATRON - LR —EBK > W
WM E R G E M AR E SRR DR BT ERAEN2TRME
G e

BRIEAAMEERUBEFARR  FAERETHRHNWRRE - CHEF
RPEMER— A > NEESEREZEER > SRR - T EERA LR a5
FOERAY M 0 C B A R ETE > RIS BT O RERE TSR R TH B R B
BRBERFEREEFENEA R -

— 13 —




10.

EBEXE LT 2K ~ANALIHFEZABEESALFANITES > MH—
WN=ZFEF"FFRELALEFAERER - FERER_FEFIHET—H—
HEEREMTEDR FEETRALFA2ERBARATEERARLAE
Ho FEAETFHAEELEN -FREARET NERRITERFYITHE
i ERARSHE EHATRREES P REERAEXVIEAENE EERK -
PRETIEEESh > A RALEMAMEE BRETEE N ERSIERR
WA B R - REBFHF R BEROABEXVE » FAREIER A AL R R A
ZAMELE o ARRRERER“FFLELATRHEREAEF LELE
NEFRTEBTLRBE 4 EMR _FLAET_AZ+—BHH K
REEHAY > BXTEA > HBNARESFFASKTERENRESRER
EE -BFRAEZEFWEABSEBT-LAIT - FoE W BT ARIE LR
S 13.51Q2)(h)y 2 (v)FR B9 3 %E T ZH 48 BR 0 0K} - MR b B B F ek 2 B R IR

BrkBikE L+t FEANE=A—HABELEAEFLAFNTES - T
EENRBEARNZERBLARITERBARARAAETHOHBARZESE -
BLAEER—NWANELAMAFTBERER > MEHEZTHRITELEF > b
EEAWEIEERAZH - AL IR EEFE T4 FAILESE LR
WA YAXEST LEN . FEANMEETEMAEFE LEMEGE
EeL kA RALAEMNEMES  SREREN ET o E KRR &
TATEER - AEBARFAEELA BB 1L5008 - EEZRB&H » HE
FHMESAOABH =9t 1855 QEES - B AEN UAOAFMEE S
MAERBREREL - WEME I SBEALREFEB RN - REKTETE
R BE » Wb LESEZEEWEAEF R LE T - briod il 8T
B4R AR RIS 13,5 1(2)(h) F (v)TR A B8 i ZHPE B B9 kL o A4 L b oA BRI B 2
AZERKEHAREEE

— 12 —




FREXRE N+=Z —WNWNFEFAABELAEARLFATES - FhiE
B AEAB2ZEMB AR FTHEETRARAMS - BEAENFALIATESR L
BAURGHTEELLEM - FEEAPEARBEHH R+ —B2EE
BOFHZEE  FMRIHFERITERERRBEZAGZR - EFX4ART
HBERRIEATE EBHEFASHFMNER - MEDER » HTEER
AFBREEFREESLEEMBTARA R (NMEWD WY o LXREZ AT
(HFBEEARATREYWM 2HHBEELTAR « FERERFEFEHRLEN
S RAARRITEREEAREE Z B RIFESF R EERVISEXVE 2
HEBEEEEHAERAREERK - FHEANERERIF I ERABXVIER
ANTEERR PRI - A& - RITEH - Hyford Limited X AR HEZ
TR EREPFBEFZIALATDVETFETERREEHZAAMNTE - RIRTH
B I8 XVE - B £ The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust ([DT1])
{& ¥£ A Z Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited ([TDT1}) - & &5 —
2 HEZ 5t ([DT2)) {8 # A Z Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited ([TDT2J) -
YL % & & The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (TDT1 XTDT2 & HHHELEL) &
¥t A Z Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited®) B A& A 8] ZE R K - DTI
EDT2 Z W gE i ANOEEREEL  HETHT L - RAIEEEIN - FE
A B AR AT A IR - AR B I Bk  aRE RBCR S SEAT AT BR AR - R
BEHFEPEEROAFEXVE - FEEFH KK 151,000/ & H b &
829,599,612k A A R o AN FHE LR EZ MM ERF A - FRAZH
HWEREFERBELMT -

ZRABBIERWEAARAR ((ERAM)) 2 ER (ER_EFTHFANAN
HEEE) - BEFRAMRFSBFMAL  ShRITHEEIFZE % - HEBS
BEMADEEREAS EWWERMH S EEZEAEEE IR _F
FEENAZHADRITHABRERREF > BREFREN17,259,710.34
JLe RZFERENANBE - BR8-S R -

B L SCAr i B & 4 - ZE S W AT AR R L AR R AR 13.512)h) B (VTSI BLE
MAEHGENER HMEXGERHECE > T ABHEABRKIEDT -

— 31 —




BEREE A+TAEK WO AEAABEETAE AR B ERTES -
BAEENABALFRZEMBAREHERARARNE - AL WER
TR HEETRE TR o B G E K R AT R R
TR ZMITALENRXKERRBEREZ — - MEAEL LA AR KR
R R A RAEXVEBA AT EEREME 2 B ERMITHEE - B TIHKE
HH o BAERALAAMEMEMBES  SHRERBREENTRB R ET
eI B 1R = B SC AR A& R b2 7 #h A7 % fE I 4 % & Shoppers Drug Mart %
FoFAELRTOMEMARABER (W Z_FEHFEAR =+ HEE) - B
1S RO BB XVE » BT EEAALR R AL IHELE o 440 F)
BHEAER —_EECETATHEHERZAER AL AARA BB ERITHRE
TVRBESH TR _LEANET_HA=Z+—H0HH - EESHBHALH
BRTZMEA  HHARBALRASEENAGEAEBRERE - fiE4En
ERAPFREGEENLHETREAENZROMAZHETFEERLEXT -
JE 9 A Sl AT {oT 4R BB b 7l R R3S 13,51 (2)(h) B8 (v IR I 0 T ZEL B R ) HE ) o
MHMEBEBEE 2 ERIHFARRIEE -

- 10 —




BEEMEE AT —F> —AWNZELABREXIASLFAMTES - HAE
NAEEAGZEMNBAAFTETBAMRARES - HEEFFIRER LR
URHEEREEEM - HAEATRARMABHGRERTZA - Hik
EBBITAGHRRERNARAF RIAM) B RTHAE > FARTA
WU AMRHE - AHRTER  RUEREEERBEM - Hyford Limited »
Interman Development Inc. * Monitor Equities S.A. > Univest Equity S.A. "
Venniton Development Inc. B FIig & #Z W HE - i bl 4 SR ERE 55 RN R R
FIMXVEBAEAR EERE - RILAEG  BRE - IREARIHEEH B LW
AE e HEATAETEELARETEFERREHMNZ ARMIY - HEELR
REBES R EEOEXVEBA AR EERREEREEZ TR RAR RN
FTHPEEREREZHEL - RATKEES - kAR AT H T -
0 AR TR T T R R T ) AT AT BAR o H B R B IR B T 2 W] Spark
Infrastructure GroupF FLATIEIF - REEHEHNEREHSXVE - HEELE
BAAL ARG Z AL - AR EHE A MIERESH - HitEZ
W HEREFHER-CET -

5 4 % & T Y IR M 5E it 32 2 CrossCity Motorway Pty Ltd  CrossCity
Motorway Nominees No. 1 Pty Ltd * CrossCity Motorway Nominees No. 2 Pty
Ltd - CrossCity Motorway Holdings Pty Ltd & CrossCity Motorway Finance Pty
Lid (488 [CrossCity ARl ) X WMH (ERZFENFFSZHAZ+ZHBHE) -
CrossCity AT 2 T EXH AR T MMBRE T H BME 2 H - RAREE -
W EENE S T A=+ H B M CrossCityA 7 E S I TR EEHAREE
ANBRGBA - SIBBEERFEZEFHARTEANT L EHRT - RIEERIFE
WEHEZEFFLERALAZ L BZH MMM > BREREDT%ABN AMROKR

Leighton Contractors consortiumii 4§ o

B b SO ER A S0 - H JetE 3 AT AR AR L AR BB 13,5 1M E(WRRIIRE
ARG - MEL AT L2 ERHHARKELE -



BERFL: AWM, —WNWAFE—AMEEAELTERTTER > @
RZEFRELHMIABTEE - LI NAEXLAFNZEMBARFEE
BARALFIRERERESEHAMARTE - B+ AFBIFATHE R
FHERRARBEEERZHERM . WIFTHEEHELE80 - ML+ R
WEHEMTGAEE - RITEEHITIEN - Interman Development Inc. * Monitor
Equities S.A. - Univest Equity S.A. » Venniton Development Inc. * 50 43 &
Hutchison Infrastructure Holdings LimitedZ T3 » T M #i A FIRIBB 4 R &
BRSEXVEHYRELFFTERKE - MERRIERLHIHLAF - Lt h
ETREAXAETEIERREWNZAREL « BRAESZES > B EHE
2 AL o] FOARTE I - A0 A 2 BR - i R M A SR AL (T AR o Sb S - WA
LI BREEBEARARRATHS - M TMEEERA R XTOME A
M2 | FE# 4T IF > LA & Hutchison Telecommunications(Australia)Limited }
Partner Communications Company Lid. (2¥¥ A LT AR EH - HL LR R
MR ENERARLFAEERTOMERGRA ST ER (ML ¥ E
HLEATATR) - MBBHFEPERNEXVE > LT HEGELAFTRBZ
B - AAFHRH LT HMERRESSH - ML L2 EFHWERBEH
WLEIT - WL AT REE BT RIS 13,51 E (KA E M ALK E
MEHE HMEEGHTRAH LT ZBAKSEHAREED -

HERELE ) W Jusk: AN E—HBBRELEFLFARTHD > BH—1
IWNWEFE—RAEZZFARE -ABETENMBEYD - WAL TAELFA2ZER
BARIGFEHEEARAFTES - MAEMMAFREEEHAT ST E
HEMBER HEAERANEHERLIBULAHETEELEN . Y AFKE
FHEGRMGERETEGNNAETE -HMESLRARAWBEAERRITE
BMTHEFREULEE REARITHEL WA R REES KXW &K
EXVEAALWEERK -BAEENRBAETEELARAETEERREMZ &
RAIME S o Br AR E AL - BRAEA BRI K B - BRE B
B, B T i R TR AT AT AR o BR SR AR UK % UM B 7T ®l Spark Infrastructure
GroupFE BLATHELF - MIFHF L RERFIDXVE > BAEW|mEeH AL 7R
ALtz c ANFHEABAEZH BB EL - MELZHTHWE AT
WL ETT o B SE A S IR ARG b TR AT 13.51(2)(h) Z (v) I 89 41 E Thi
BRRER - MELMARRAESE 2T AP HAREED -




HERHEE CTAR ~AWNAFZABZER/ELARTED > MKk —
AREE—AEREREMTF AL o W EIR B A2 FAER 6 B2 7
HEFETEERATZIY - R—AANEE-NLA—FMN > BREYE
BREBTHEEY . AEBTRARAE LEERAHE TR &L EE T
BAHRAFBTES o B — A —F WS4 A B BRI 5 WA R AR & T
AT > W — LA MARME WS E T A - WhE
R ANt FEEFEEREMLEEMETERLE - HREFFLIATIR
BB EEA - WRSHF IR - WEERSKE LA TRME G RN TR
Bag2o8 WHREARALAIZERERBR LN AFARIBERPTHE -
BREF AR E S WA RAATEMAMESR BRETEBNEREWERR
R EAT G - RBRHFRPEEABXVE  WRAETRFSAFALFARE
ZATIRES - MWRERALFZMBE AL H_FLTLEZFEMEN R
EH—TAREATLHAET WEMEISBALFAEFREFKNR - FK
FRMIGBBMME - eob WEEZWHHMERGFERLEL - Wik
3lf 4B AT T AR R TR A B 13,5 1(2) (h) ZE (v R 1 B0 T ZRUIB B O SRR o R
FHYREZTREFAMKEL -

BFERELE AR ~WNAEHE=ZABECABLERTESR WL
BEMENHYILERTES - EXREFAELAZEMEB AR FEER
HRATESH - MLt BMERN > ARTBOREETHER -HEETR
LEHFRAXBEAZZAGRA > SR —AWANEEZFTTLFHHEE
FrekE HELhFEXSGREFHARABDER - ERBEFRL
@ - SCMP#E 4 fR 2> & % Shanghai Century Acquisition CorporationZ 37 7F
AT FHHAEEEEMARAE - MEBHEARLT - FHEE (FH)
HRAG - FMBEARAFRRVERZEMARAAZ FRATHL (2
Bk TN A o BeA B L AT A AL A S - AR E S B B R
O AT (] BR o BT S A — PR A A R 2,00 LA AR 3 2 4 BB A 5
%o ANFHEEAN_EZLETATAACHERIAL AL LTS
FHEETIRBEH FHMRFEAESLZAZ+T—BHR - HEGE B
By BRH2HWA > HOERBEAAAHSERMGKESRRE®R - B
EATMMBEENSGEFREN LA REATHZERONAZHMEGFiEN
+ T oSSR AR N AR (AR SR LTI Z 13,50 (2)(h) ZE (v) Ik 1 L RE T 2R 7R Y
B MEHMEME AAE 2 ERBEERRED -




Bff 8% —

BEBRETARIARTFHRAHEZBN-_SSNFHEA+RBBTZRRAEKX

BLERBEAHSERNENT -

BREEARAE: AtARE . AWALF_ABEEAELARRTES - BE
R—NWARZFAREZELEER TR _FFLF T AWEER - EX
ANRBELFTEEMB AR FEEETRAR TN - BREFH LR L2
URMBEEE  UARMNNAEAMGEER -  BEEEANTENAR
AF(ME]D $EMELREN - RILEREMARAT ((RITER]) B EH -
RILIEZE GRE) ARAF (TRITD FRATEF XA LEFTRAT (THRA
EDEF M ELALARBESSEMNERABXVEHREALREERK - E
RENRAETXAREETERRRERNZ 2 A NITE - BRITWEEHRS  E
S AL EME T AR T I - v I R B T O R AR R A T B AR -
EARETAMTHEREFTRLF - MR EHAEEF ML - Hutchison
Telecommunications(Australia)Limited &2 Partner Communications Company Ltd.
ZEE > R RN FIBN R o o> WA DMK ERZER
FRAFR(EHEMABE) F - EXESEIHREEMARLAT (R -FFHF
A= HEE) RETREERARA R (RBREREERLA) (R FF
ANENANARE) ZHBTHEP - REXHABYSIN LBRZHBLA (F
BEHBHRLARAELERN A LTAR  RIFEHE LB ERAEXY
W BAEWESTAE N FIM G2 MBS o A2 W) B S Ak 2 TR 4 AR
G EAANEREFFeEFERLN RTINS EGERN-LET -
T8 50 AR W 4 E AR 98 L AT R RIS 13,510 E (R A BUE T2 5% 09 Bk -
EHBABEEREZMRATHARKER -




O A BB 4 B) K B RS 4 WD A RE i 26 45 BR 22 F) X Hutchison Infrastructure Holdings
Limited - BT H % (L M) H R A F - Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited
L The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust {8 £ A £ 4% - Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation
Limited2 The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust{& 5t A & % - Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustcorp Limited A 55 — 2 WEE L Z M FC A S0 - LR s s st (MR
BB #% 4y IR 2 Fr 4 M 1R] 2 829,599,612 -

il 3 T G JRy &2 T AT (0 4% PR ] SRE R R AT IR T Z B R B 1 ) > B (fiisE B
B Z MR A RILMEEA LG Z BRI EA R A AR CBITRA43.19%
DA R4 FERRHER B FHFE Z RIS E B o WS SR A s A% T GE &
BAARINEER G HFRD B RGBS —TAREZE BB -

DEBETZROBER

A0 o B H AN A - AN R W R R AN R Z AT AR A (SRR TR
K FHEAT) o



i 11 {8 46

FARAZRGBRODEFERZA T _HMAGARE_FENF=_A—HBE_
FEANF=ZAZ+EH EENHA XM Z G & T T BB WMEBRLFT AR

B EEREERNT
BS
A
ZEELFE=H 40.40
“EELFEMA 42,70
“EZELFIA 42.05
Z“EREELENHA 41.10
ZEEALFLH 40.95
ZEELENA 39.80
“ETLENH 41.45
—EELFETH 40.75
ZEELFET—H 41.30
ZEELFEAZA 45.45
ZEENFE—HR 46.35
TEENFEZH 46.80
TEEANFEZA-HEZZEBANE=ZHA_+-LH 52.50
B

15§

37.75
39.25
39.00
38.00
38.70
37.45
38.50
38.25
38.10
39.70
39.80
43.00
41.00

W R T B AT R ARG  TEAT (R AR R > R WA R E

HE I B 3 ) 2 R T HEAT e

it 45 10 AR A HE B AT (> AR W BB GUHARS — 5 B &
HAL(ME B AL B AT EE MM RGE TAELR « ALFZHMEMEAML G L
THAESR) WEAEELFAEEANAERRBE TALA » NERETHKR G

T AL -

BEEZAE=ZAZFHLA (HEABRMZRETHRTTEL - RiIE
WEMARAS ((ELEE]) BHEHE 2 8 Hyford Limited? ## Hyford Limited 5 28
Bt B 2 & (£ 3% Monitor Equities S.A. J Univest Equity S.A.) 3 7% It £ 829,599,612
B EAANTCBITHRAL3887% AR HERITERZEE L SR - M




B & —

ATARBETRAREXRR 2R\ LB K QA ROIBIBARIRTE
ZHRE® -

g 7

BEZZFAF=ZAZ+-tH (BN R 5 HETIETIT B3 A0 0
EBITZREA 52134261 654 FMBERN — T2 IH (TAXR]) -

DRERBEFRKEAMZ W ABETRMAILE . BEIRHZ K507 6E (EL
ALBITRARSZ ) ZHBSERMEALARE_FZTAFEFRIEAFEREGRAR
BTHRE RSB - F P8R Z A AR M O AT
213,426,1654% -

BEORGzRE

MHFHME - M&BRRTSER—ERME  EI5 5 60 m L8 E &2 R &6
e ALARREBRR BERNGE - WEBARGTE > REHTHEIRESE
BmE  TERS-RBZEERER SR EEE - HEFHIEIK—HAEHEBRH
A EALTEREMR TR ERE RS - EEAHRTHFHEZRAOE%AR
Bo W 18] Ji5e iy & (T4 S B AR - AR A BRI M M H /@i 2 MEwmE -

BORO2ES

2% 7y B #E T AR R S A 0 B A 2 ] 22 AH A T RR R A8 B R E AT B B R AR
A HEZ B MEE R o TR B B B 7 2 B B R B A ) 2 AT A IR
A o

it Jr 2 5 B 1) O O 2 AT AT B ] 0 R T RE R BB > MR RER AR R 2B
BeRBHaEH (BBRE_LET LS+ A=+ B L ERIIMEELZE SR E
PR 2R ) A E R ZABER o SR - TCQFR AR R 0 Bh A7 (o By [ 5240
UBEHERREASNHECALFZBERENBHENAERZIANESE -



RHREHBORORBRITHNER

RZFFLFRLATH > HER/BR T -ATEBEAL ARG K —RER
i o SLIRERAEA R RO R G AR R USSR BTHOEMN R REFEX
GLEEZ—THEFEREE > T AU — SO A%HE G 0] 1 430 16 4 2 W) % 4 288 ot
RERZABCBORAFAIIZHZMAp (THERZRE]D - RBFERESXE AR
SR TBEZE RN )) W3 LB A (T L BRI D) 57 % 8 ) 22 =) 75 10 22 57 B 1) B0 A4 55 38
FH BRI ZBTRK > A0 ERM@ERRERE — MR WIGE LT
fER R R EM R E R TR EW S EH A2 R IR KA 5y 2 kR
R WRPAXHRINNABRME—F -

Boh s RRFEAER G LR WIHRERMOR FTEYH —EH— R
BT RURE T UEREABRAABHBERRRE LA CHITRATAZ 2+
Z BBy B it MEAE A oz 2 R 2 1A R 5 ] R BB (R
ABEBRZRRRZHAQFCETRETTZ 1) o

REERCEE

REALFAASERAAE - — ]k BERELL  FREELE - HE
Bk - FIEST L+ - BEREA - HEMATE - BN - BRESE RS
HEEEMRBAIBFERG LREER MR _FEAFEZA -0 BFREAERZ
Bk AW Sed AR A A AR R E L TR EFE A& LR » B
FHEEEEL - R LMAAMAREZSETZ GBI N A TG -

BREBFKE

AP EFE RS LIRS IR RS R F R A 2 RRE E R iE
Ko BTFAIRAE LERUBREFNRBERRIEPTHRALBENEE -
W OBTESHEHREAG  SaREE LMz THEZRZRARE - RKREH
EAMEETGEHANMEZERELRZEMPEE -BTFEMEERGBEEHTEIZ
BHRBRTGALTRIABRENZ R G - FtiEE BTFRAeLNES
G FRER -

HE
Bt 8
EN:
BRE
RL
“EEANEFENMHAH



ERABERMERD A

Hongkong Electric Holdings Ltd.

REBREBEYHTRLAE
Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
i 173 (LW Stock Code: 0006

HEMNER  HRERHIEMR

AT EF

THE(ZH

R (LB EFHam)
JE A 5% 05 *

iRES

B

ZWE

2=l

g3

I 3 1

FHEH

e 7K il

B (B R 2 BT )

FlebhEdFinitiidesdsd

R E

kg,

fo o)
T BIE

HK Electric

FEHATEF
BARE L
gﬂﬁé\

RLEMITEF
Fl i A%
% 41
gkl

—BUuRERTHRRMOA

BERDcER

FRRERCES

Tt
it

AFEETER BT R UE B ER R T 8 55 547 0 i 0 S 1R R ) —
MEHEERTERN S RAESEEFNER - REFRREHRELFTARZFEZAN
FRHATLEBHZRREFREG (RFRBFAG)D LRE -




HEBEXHFARLFTHAX G ZHERAAR ) BHERESEEE TR ARR
R WHBERSBARAXGEHBREAHGAETELLETELERE
i 5| 8 22 AT o 18 KRR P8 4L ol AT -

ek,

fele
= e
HK Electric
EREREEEBRAFA
Hongkong Electric Holdings Ltd.
(AAFBEmm LA Mad)
(B3 1K %% - 0008)
- BRUEBERTHRORA
BER{<E2E
RRBERZES

ZEEZAHEMA_H




We M

of @

File No. 82-4086

ERCREMARLAE A&
Hongkong Electric Holdings Ltd. “&~ B

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) i
(Stock code: 4006) H K Elecrrlc

Proxy Form for Annual General Meeting

heing the registered holder(s) of ¥ shares of HK$1.00 each in Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited itk

i A 45 B AT R 4% W) hereby appoint @ the Chairman of the Meeting or

of

as mylour proxy to attend and vote for mefus and on my/our behalf at the Annuat General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday,
15th May 2008 at 12:00 noon and at every adjournment thereof on the undermentioned resolutions as indicated:

For ™ Against ¥

To receive the Statement of Accounts and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year
ended 31st December 2007,

To declare a final dividend.

i To elect Mr, Canning Fok Kin-ning as a Director.

ii. To elect Mr, Tso Kai-sum as a Director.

iii,  To elect Mr, Ronald Joseph Arculli as a Director.

iv. To elect Mrs. Susan Chow Woo Mo-fong as a Director.
V. To etect Mr. Andrew John Hunter as & Director.

vi.  To elect Mr. Kam Hing-lam as a Director,

vii.  To elect Mr. Holger Kluge as a Director,

viii. To elect Mr. Victor Li Tzar-kuoi as a Director.

ix.  Toelect Mr. George Colin Magnus as a Director, |

X To elect Mr. Yuen Sui-see as a Director,

4. To re-appoint KPMG as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. To pass Resolution 5 of the Notice of Annual General Meeting (*AGM Notice™) — 10 give a general
mandate o the Directors to issue additional shares not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

6. To pass Resolution 6 of the AGM Notice — to give a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase
shares not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.

7. To pass Resolution 7 of the AGM Notice — to add the number of shares repurchased to the general
mandate given to the Directors to issue additional shares.

Dated this day of 2008.

Signature(s) '

Notes:
n
(2)
(3)

(4)

(3

(6)

(7

(8)

9)

Please insert your full name{s) in BLOCK CAPITALS.
Please insert your address(es) in BLOCK CAPITALS.

Please insert the number of shares of HK$1.00 cach registered in your name(s). If no number is inserted. this form of proxy will be deemed 10
relate to all the shares of the Company registered in your name(s).

If any proxy other than the Chairman of the Meeting is preferred, strike out “the Chairman of the Meeting™ and insent the name and address of
the proxy desired in the space provided. Any alteration made to this form of proxy must be initialled by the person whe signs it.

IMPORTANT: If you wish 10 vote for a resolution in the AGM Notice, please place a “tick” in the relevant box under “For™. If you wish to
vote against a resolution in the AGM Notice, please place a “tick™ in the relevant box under “Against”. In the event that neither the box under
“For" nor that under “Against” is completed, the proxy will be entitled 10 vote at his discretion.

This form of proxy must be signed by you or your atorney duly authorised in writing or in the case of a corperation, must be either under seal
or under the hand of an officer or atlorney duly autherised in that behalf.

In order to be valid, this form, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed (or a notarially centified
copy of such power or authority) must be lodged at the registered office of the Company, 44 Kennedy Road, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours
before the time appeinted for holding the meeting.

In the case of joint holders of any share, any one of such persens may vote, either personally or by proxy in respect of such share, provided
that if more than one of such joint holders be present al the Meeting personally or by proxy, the person whose name stands first in the register
shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

The proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the Meeting in person to represent you.
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